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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting for April 14, 2009 is now in session. The time is 9:05. The Chair
would like to introduce the Members that are here this morning. We do
have Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Kaho' ohalahala.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nishiki, Mateo, and Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. Excused at this time are Members
Johnson and Medeiros. Supporting the Committee this morning we do
have Gayle Revels as well as Lance Taguchi, our Legislative Analyst, and
Yvette Bouthillier our Committee Secretary. This morning from the
Administration we do have the Budget Director, Mr. Pablo; as well as our
First Deputy Corporation Counsel Traci Fujita Villarosa. And this
morning, Members, we'll review the grants for OED, and with us this
morning we do have Deidre Tegarden, Economic Development
Coordinator.
Members, we do have several people that are, had signed up for public
testimony this morning. At this time, I'd like to provide the rules for
people that providing public testimony. You do have three minutes to
testify. If you can announce your name and the organization that you
represent our Committee would appreciate you doing that. Also, joining
us this morning is Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. The first person signed up for
testimony this morning is Lyn McNeff.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MS. MCNEFF: Good morning, Chairman, Budget Chairman Pontanilla and
Council Members. You had some questions yesterday about our Maui
Economic Opportunity's Early Childhood Services, so I wanted to come
and answer some of your questions.
We were asked by the Department of Housing and Human Concerns to
take a 10 percent cut. In a childcare facility you can only, you can't cut
10 percent out because you have licensing regulations that say you have to
have so many teachers per students. So a 10 percent cut would have been
eight children, which would have meant still we had, needed to have two
teachers in that center. So we had to take a one whole center cut. So that
was where we got the 25 percent. But we didn't get, the 29 percent was a
bigger cut than what we had submitted. We, we had to do it that way. It
was the only way we could do it. We didn't want to do it. The impact for
that will mean that 20 families will have, will not have childcare for full
day and summer, and it would be a Kahului, it would be a central center.
So it would be people that live in the center [sic].
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You had several other questions that will enforce that. You asked about
the wait list in summer, Councilmember Mateo. We have about
25 applicants; we serve 20 children on the Molokai summer program. We
didn't cut that. There was also the question about single parents. Half of
our families are single parents, either single mothers or single fathers. So
you cut 20 families out, you cut more than likely the single wage earner
out of the ability to work, go to school, or education, and that means that
their shelter, their safety, and their food are in jeopardy. So those are, I
hope I've answered your questions for that, and it wasn't our intent to
knock the 20 families out. That was the only way we could do it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, good morning -MS. MCNEFF: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --Ms. McNeff. Thank you for being here this
morning to clarify some of these things. You mentioned that the center
that you were going to cut is a center in Kahului. Is that at Luana
Gardens?
MS. MCNEFF: It probably will be, yes, because we have the most, yes. So it
would be the low-income families again. Well, they're all low-income
families, but, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's, that's a very sad thing. That's
20 children; right?
MS. MCNEFF: It's 20 children, 20 families affected, correct, and it makes a very
big impact to these families.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much for clarifying that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Lyn, what was the location again?
MS. MCNEFF: Luana Gardens.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Luana Gardens. Thank you. Members, any more
questions?

-4

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning.
MS. MCNEFF: Good morning.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: The other day Director also indicated that there would
be some stimulus monies that would provide additional support primarily
to Head Start. Are those funds also being considered to supplement some
of these consider... considerations?
MS. MCNEFF: The funds cannot be used for that. They have to increase the
number of children you serve. They cannot supplant what you currently
have. So it cannot, and they're only for a one year period.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the cut of $25,000, 25, right, would affect 20 kids?
MS. MCNEFF: The cut of 25 percent -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, 25 percent.
MS. MCNEFF: --would affect 20 children, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, again, thank you, Lyn, for
being here. Can you clarify, again, you said the impact would be to
20 families.
MS. MCNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then what would be -- what
would be the reduction in, you said, summer programs as...
MS. MCNEFF: It would be one summer center and one year-round after-school
program. So there would be, they wouldn't have full day. They would
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have until noon in, during the regular school year, and then during the
summer the eight weeks they would not have any summer program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then I, I wanted to
clarify because the Department presented that, that you were making these
proposed cuts -MS. MCNEFF: We...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --you know, which was different
from what I heard, at least in the testimonies throughout the communities.
So, just to clarify, again, you were asked to make these cuts?
MS. MCNEFF: We were asked to make a 10 percent cut, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah. And then, Chair, you
know, I guess in, in this case, you know, rather than taking an
across-the-board kind of view and just cut across, we should be taking a
look at where the needs, you know, currently are and are most needed so
that those areas that can use an across-the-board that's fine, but for those
that are going to be impacted, like this, perhaps we should reconsider how
that is applied across the board. So, thank you for your clarification.
MS. MCNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Kaho' ohalahala. You know, as I
stated yesterday the frail and elderly as well, as well as early childhood
programs those are the programs that I look that is very important to this
County; taking care of the elderly as well as ensuring that our keiki are
brought up the right way. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Just one more
question, Ms. McNeff, just for clarification. So if I'm adding up the cuts
that Head Start is going to take, it looks like it adds up to about $75,000,
and it looks like that is the cost of operating a center.
MS. MCNEFF: Right, for summer and for, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MS. MCNEFF: Yes, for summer and for . . . (inaudible).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so, if you had spread it among all the centers,
then you would have had this problem with not meeting licensing
regulations?
MS. MCNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it was, the least harmful was to sacrifice one.
MS. MCNEFF: Right. We are bound by many laws and one of them is licensing,
having a certain number of teachers which is your expense.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right, and Kahului has two, so -MS. MCNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you gave up one. Okay. I follow. Thank you
very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We'll see what we can do.
MS. MCNEFF: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. What age group of
children are these?
MS. MCNEFF: Three to five years.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Three to five years. So you have a day
program, a preschool program?
MS. MCNEFF: Head Start pays for the, the morning portion of our preschool.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Then you have, you have an
after-school program and a summer program?
MS. MCNEFF: Correct. So the...

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and will the day program be
impacted?
MS. MCNEFF: No, they wouldn't, we would keep it till 12:00, but then the
families can't work, go to school, or be in training. That's the impact.
They can't come home at noon and take their children to another childcare
facility, if they could fmd one.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Do several of the children, after the
day program stay for the after-school program?
MS. MCNEFF: All of them do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: All of them.
MS. MCNEFF: We require that those in the center be working, or in school, or in
training so that it is justified for the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And the after-school program the children
can stay there until what time when the parents or whoever picks them up?
MS. MCNEFF: Three or four.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Three or four.
MS. MCNEFF: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So in Council Chair Mateo's question
about the stimulus money, we know our budget's not done yet, so you
won't know the impact on you until our budget's done.
MS. MCNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But if it stands, and you have to make the
cuts as you've projected will that, will the stimulus money then be able to
be applied because then you'll have less students and that will bring you
back up to your normal level?
MS. MCNEFF: I won't have less students because I'm still required to serve 298
in the Federal government. It says that you supplement the afternoon
portion where they're able to attend. It would still be morning students, so
it wouldn't be adding students to the number.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. I see. Okay, thank you for that
clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none, thank you Lyn for...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair? Chair, one question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Good morning, Lyn.
MS. MCNEFF: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Just for my information, so if there are clients,
they meet the income guidelines, then the morning is basically subsidized
as free?
MS. MCNEFF: We say it's free to them -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. MCNEFF: --because it's really not a free program. The Federal government
subsidizes it, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And then they keep their kids past 12 o'clock,
then, then the clients pay for that portion?
MS. MCNEFF: They don't pay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh.
MS. MCNEFF: That's where the County comes in.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay.
MS. MCNEFF: We can't charge, we could charge them, but our parents can't
pay for childcare. I mean put food on the table, pay for childcare. I mean
there's options that they don't have.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But they have to be working as well?
MS. MCNEFF: They have to be working or in school and training.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, one more question please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. In your day program and
after-school program besides childcare is there an educational curriculum
included in those hours?
MS. MCNEFF: You've hit on one of my pet peeves. It's not childcare. It's early
childhood services.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. MCNEFF: And it's education throughout the day. They receive their dental
care, they receive their health. It's very comprehensive. They receive
their nutrition. We provide their breakfast, lunch, and snacks in the
afternoon. They, they're, we are required, we have 1,787 performance
standards we must meet for these children.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, thank you for clarifying that because
we keep seeing the title of the grant being childcare, and I was thinking,
well, if it's childcare it's like babysitting.
MS. MCNEFF: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But then you still...
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MS. MCNEFF: Early childhood services, it includes education.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Right, so you do have an educational
component.
MS. MCNEFF: Absolutely. It's education all day long.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. Thank you, Lyn, for all
this information and, and the clarifications. My question is you stated
earlier that you still have to have your 200 and some odd students for the
morning program.
MS. MCNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you're shutting down an afternoon and
summer program for these 20 children. They still have morning? They
would still be included or they're out entirely?
MS. MCNEFF: No, they would have morning for nine months of the year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, but no afternoon and no
summer.
MS. MCNEFF: And no summer, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So that's what we're eliminating by
eliminating this, this monies?
MS. MCNEFF: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And it was done because it was simpler
because of the way the laws are set that you do one instead of trying to go
two here, three there, because you still need one teacher per eight
students?
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MS. MCNEFF: Right. We can't, we can't just pick and choose because you take
one child out it's not going to make any difference in the...the teachers are
what you pay for and the supplies. It's not going to make any difference
in that classroom when you still have two teachers in. So we had to, you
have to eliminate a class so that you eliminate the two teaching staff
during the afternoon portion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Lyn, I guess the next question I have
for you is I've heard some of my colleagues say, well, in certain areas you
have no other choices, but in Central Maui you've got other choices. Do
these people have other choices?
MS. MCNEFF: Preschools are very limited, they're very expensive. They're
from $675 to 1,350, if you're an infant/toddler, a month to go to. They
don't make money, they're non-profit, and they don't have, because
they're not going to take them in the afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. So in other words your answer is
simply, no, there is no other option. Once this program is eliminated or
you cut off this group they don't go somewhere else like has been stated
by others that, oh, there's other options out there.
MS. MCNEFF: No, they probably go home to a relative and watch TV or they go
home by themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which is not a good thing all around.
Thank you. Thank you, Ms. McNeff. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Lyn, for being here this
morning.
MS. MCNEFF: You're welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You hit the nail right on the head. There's other
programs out there, but, you know, how many parents can dish out six to
eight hundred dollars a month for some early childhood services. It gets
pretty expensive unless you can afford it. You know, this is a program
that can help especially those single parents, you know, trying to get by,
you know, with child services from an organization like yours. Thank you
very much for being here this morning.
MS. MCNEFF: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Kathy Lewis and Roy Katsuda.
MS. LEWIS: Good morning, Council Chair, Budget Council Chair, and Council
Members. I'm Kathy Lewis. I'm the Personal Care Program Director
from Hale Mahaolu.
MR. KATSUDA: And I'm Roy Katsuda, Executive Director.
MS. LEWIS: We're here this morning because we've received a letter from the
Department of Human Services from the State of Hawaii, we received this
letter last Wednesday, April 8 th, letting us know that the personal care
program that we've been running for the last 24 years in Maui County
serving our frail elderly and our disabled adults has been cut altogether.
We did anticipate some kind of cut in funding, but not the elimination of
the program.
The clients that we're serving under this program do not necessarily meet
criteria for other programs like Medicaid Waiver services or Kupuna Care
services because of their age or their income. But they do rely on our
program for subsidies that we provide to help them get the in-home help
they need to meet their personal care services such as things like bathing,
grooming, hygiene, perhaps meal prep, toileting, it could be transfers,
turning them in their bed, whatever it takes to help them maintain an
independent lifestyle in their homes. We're currently serving 18 clients by
providing these subsidies. We provide over 16,000 units of service with
the funding that has been cut. So we're here to appeal to the County
Council to help us in any way they can to help continue these services to
these clients.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Fast question. What was the State funding
to Hale Mahaolu?
MS. LEWIS: It was $233,280.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa followed by Member
Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank, thank you, Chair, and thank you, Kathy
and Roy, for being here this morning. So effective when does this stop?
Today?
MS. LEWIS: It stops June 30 th '09, and our contract actually doesn't expire until
June 30, 2011. So it was quite a shock to us.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a shock to everyone. If you're sitting there in
your bed and need somebody to help you get out of bed what do you do?
MS. LEWIS: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if you have funding until June, then this is
something that hopefully we might be able to help you with come July 1 st
which is your new year.
MS. LEWIS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That gives us, because we're working on this
budget right now. So for 18 clients it, it's this $230,000. What is it?
MS. LEWIS: Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To serve 18 clients how much do you need?
MS. LEWIS: Well, the 233,000 does serve all of the 18 clients. Some of them
get up to four hours a day, seven days a week. A lot of these people live
alone. They don't have any family so they rely on outside help to come in
and help them. Some of them might have a family member who has given
up their own work to stay home and take care of their loved one, but they
need some kind of source of income, so the subsidies help them. So it
helps our clients in a number of different ways.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You mentioned 16,000 units of service. Can you
define a unit of service?
MS. LEWIS: A unit of service is one hour.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is one hour. And the average client gets how
many hours a week?
MS. LEWIS: The average client gets, I would say, about 24 hours a week.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: A week?
MS. LEWIS: Uh-huh, the average client. So we do have some with a little more
and some with a little less. The maximum we can go on this program is
four hours a day, but most of them receive daily services.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Are they income eligible?
MS. LEWIS: Yes, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And do they pay anything?
MS. LEWIS: They pay a co-share. The maximum we can provide is 12 hours. I
mean, I'm sorry, $12 an hour, but many of them have to pay at least $3 an
hour because most outside agencies charge about $15 an hour, but it is
based on their income. We use a sliding fee scale. So they can pay
anywhere from $3 an hour up to, you know, $8 an hour. So it just depends
on what their income is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. I'll defer to others.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
MR. KATSUDA: I'd like to just add a little comment to that. Out of the
$233,000 about half of that goes to frail elderly and the other half goes to
the clientele, the disabled adults, the sector that Kathy was speaking about.
So about half of the 233,000 goes to the seniors, frail elderly and the other
half goes to disabled adults. This program serves not only seniors, but
people who are under 60 years of age.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino, question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well very enlightening. I guess the
question I had, you know, has been asked. I just wanted to know where
that 233,000 and the 16 -- and of that 16,000 hours, I guess units of hours,
whatever you call it, is that split half-half for the elderly and frail and, and
the disabled, or just, just the numbers of people?
MS. LEWIS: It's not necessarily split in half.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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MS. LEWIS: But that's approximately what the numbers run.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, of the, of the 18 clients you have.
MS. LEWIS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And these are spread, what, throughout the
County?
MS. LEWIS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. LEWIS: And in addition to the subsidized clients we also maintain a registry
of personal care attendants who we might refer to people in the
community who are looking for in-home health and may not necessarily
afford the cost through an agency which would run probably about $25 an
hour and require a minimum of two to four hours. They can contract with
one of our aids and, you know, probably get services for about $15 an
hour.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's directly through...
MS. LEWIS: And that helps serve the community as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's directly through you folks?
MS. LEWIS: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and I guess the other question I have
is that $3 maximum is that mandated by law or policy? How does that,
how do you come up with the $3, that's the maximum?
MS. LEWIS: No. No, our maximum subsidy is $12 an hour.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So...
MS. LEWIS: Yeah, and that's by way of our contract.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MS. LEWIS: And it's based on what the average rates of service are in the
community. It's, $12 is kind of on the low side right now, but, well, with
the way funding has been going the last few years we really haven't been
able to increase it much more than that, but the average that a private duty
personal care attendant would charge is about $15 an hour. So that's
where the $3 participation from the client would come in.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do you anticipate any other cutbacks by the
State? Because this -MS. LEWIS: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know, this is a bombshell. What
others do you expect?
MS. LEWIS: Well -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If you expect.
MS. LEWIS: --the Stated provided the funds for this whole contract. So when
they say they cut this funding it eliminates the whole program.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. LEWIS: So essentially these clients would be without services.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair I'll yield to my
colleagues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before I call on Member Medeiros, I don't
know about the other counties, but are the other counties also affected by,
you know, a program like this being cut by the State of Hawaii?
MS. LEWIS: Actually this is a pretty unique program to Maui and even Hawaii.
This is the only program that I know that exists in the State, but like I said,
we've been doing it for 24 years, so it, it works, it's cost effective for the
families, the counties, community, the State. We've really, through this
program, saved millions of dollars. You know, it's prevented
institutionalization. It's kept people in their homes. We've serviced
people in their homes until they've passed away, and we've serviced a lot
of our clients for years, and it works. It helps. It saves and...
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member...
MR. KATSUDA: I'd like to add that in the 24 years Hale Mahaolu has not made
a dime on this program. In fact, usually Hale Mahaolu we have to
contribute towards some of the shortfalls every year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And, and good
morning. Thank you for being here. Any Federal stimulus money
available to replace this funding?
MS. LEWIS: Not that I know of and in speaking to the - our contract manager at
DHS, he mentioned that any stimulus monies that the State was getting
was going to be going into the Medicaid Waiver services side, their new
QXA(?) programs. So...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Any other sources of Federal funding, not
including stimulus money, for human services may be available? Do, do
you folks have Federal grants or funding -MS. LEWIS: Not through...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --for other senior services?
MS. LEWIS: Well, we do have a contract through the Maui County Office on
Aging for the Kupuna Care program, and I believe there's some Federal
funds in that program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So it doesn't look like you have any
other sources of Federal funding to replace this?
MS. LEWIS: Not for this program, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it was mentioned that half of it was frail
and elderly and half were disabled, and I, I heard disabled adults.
MS. LEWIS: Adults, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So what's identified as an adult age?
MS. LEWIS: Anybody over 18.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Over 18?
MS. LEWIS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And can you tell me why it's limited to
adults?
MS. LEWIS: It's just an adult program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MS. LEWIS: It's an adult personal care program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. Thank you for your testimony.
Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more
questions? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Ms. Lewis
and Mr. Katsuda. Just to follow up on Member Medeiros' line of
questioning about other sources of funding. Obviously, you know, being
that time is so short and as you well know the State, it looks imminent
we're going to lose that $18 million of TAT. So we're in somewhat of a
dilemma, and I know some of us have been talking about adding back to
other programs to make up, but the realities is if we're going to, Members
are going to do that, myself included, we're going to have to look at
cutting other programs or raising real property taxes. That's the realities
that we're going to have to deal with. But my question is with the 233,000
that you need would you deem this, if we don't, if this is, this program is
not funded is this then, would you deem it as somewhat of an emergency
then, because then what happens to these people?
MS. LEWIS Well, we're going to try and help, if we didn't get funded see where
we can recommend or refer some of the clients to. The clients who are
over 60 we can refer to the Kupuna Care program, but the services will be
a little bit more limited compared to what they're receiving now, but at
least that's some option for them. The ones who are under 60 there's
really no other program for them. Even if they did have Medicaid they're
not nursing home level, so they don't necessarily qualify for the Medicaid
Waiver services, but they do need, you know, some assistance to remain
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independent. So my real concern is there's really no place where we can
refer the people who are under 60 to.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: The proposed reductions made by the
Administration they focused on the, prioritized the cuts by stating food,
safety, and shelter, so that's sort of the reason why I'm asking how critical
this is.
MS. LEWIS: Safety.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So it is a safety issue.
MS. LEWIS: Safety. Defmitely.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: This would be a one-time request for this fiscal
year at this point and in the meantime it would give you guys time to look
for the next fiscal year?
MS. LEWIS: Exactly. We had anticipated some kind of cut, but, you know, not a
total elimination. So we were looking at other, you know, revenue
sources. One was possibly OHA, but it would be, you know, only for
Hawaiian residents. So that would be, you know, partial. And the way
that program works, even if we did get any kind of a contract, we wouldn't
realize it probably until the end of this year or maybe early next year. So
immediately that wouldn't help us even if we did get that kind of funding.
So right now we're just trying to see what we can do to at least keep the
program alive, and keep services, you know, for these people who rely on
them.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, again...
MR. KATSUDA: I would just like to add we are also, of course, going to appeal
to the Department of Human Services and ask for some additional
dialogue because this is a rather late notification. We, we believe it might
be due to the diminishing estimates from the Council on Revenues, but
we're hoping that they would not eliminate the program and at least keep
it alive because we do have a contract through June 30, 2011. We're
hoping for some funding, but even if there's no funding if we kept it alive
at least there's hope for the next year or so.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Mr. Chairman, I think it looks like this
may not be the last that we're seeing some programs that are being funded
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by the State that we're getting sucker punched at the last minute. So
anyway, but thank you for at least telling us how critical this is because if
it is a safety issue, then maybe, you know, Mr. Chair, we might have to
look at some way of finding ways to help. And I'm hoping that in the
meantime it gives you folks time to seek other sources of funding, but
because our backs are against the wall with this so we have to be prepared
for the unexpected. So, thank you for your testimony. Thank you, Chair
MS. LEWIS: Thank you for your consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki followed by Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Roy, now that we've got you here -MR. KATSUDA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --I've been meaning to try to make some
contact, but now we got you on the record. You have, Hale Mahaolu has
provided senior housing.
MR. KATSUDA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: There is talk by Council Members also about
using perhaps the affordable housing for land purchase. We've also heard
from many of the non-profits that many people here in Maui need rent
subsidies. In order to build rental housing, and you've surely done a lot
for the seniors, I've noticed that you've also always gone perhaps to the
County, like in Kihei, for land that the County had to build your senior
housing.
MR. KATSUDA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is there a need for land to try to put up senior
housing or rental housing?
MR. KATSUDA: The short answer, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Has the County ever approached you about
building any type of, say, rental housing?
MR. KATSUDA: I think there's always dialogue about . . .(End of tape 1A). .
for a specific project, no.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair Roy -MR. KATSUDA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --it appears to me that the alternative, if this is not
funded, a couple things I want to talk about. One, is yesterday we had
Human Concerns here and there is a line item in the budget that says grant
for services for the frail and elderly, and maybe some of that money, not
all of it I know because they already took a big fat cut, we took $70,000
out of the line item already, if any of that could go to you that would be
helpful.
See the problem is my understanding is if you don't provide this kind of a
service, these people are the ones who wind up in Maui Memorial, and
they need to keep the beds for long-term care, and Hale Makua doesn't
have any room, and Kula doesn't have any room. So it's really amazing
that the State doesn't understand that it's cheaper for them to fund a
program like yours and keep these people out of institutions than to have
to pay either of those, but, of course, that's not even an option because
there is no beds. So what do we do with our sick elderly people?
MR. KATSUDA: I think that's what we've been trying to do. We've been trying
to, not only for the frail elderly, but also for the frail disabled adults, trying
to keep them out of institutions. And the more of that we can do the more
preemption, it would save millions of dollars as Kathy has said. Over the
last 24 years I would say the State and our community has saved millions
of dollars not to mention the quality of life for these individuals. These,
these are very important.
We, you know, as I said, we'll be dialoguing with the Department of
Human Services because it's a rather late cut, and it's severe and dramatic.
Again, we were expecting some kind of reduction, but we were not
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looking at elimination. And when, when I said reduction, our worse case
was maybe 50 percent which is, it's a pretty worse case, big case.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I regret we didn't know this yesterday because we
had both Human Concerns, and we had the Executive on Aging here, and I
would have liked to ask her about the OAA monies and if there was any
possibility there.
MR. KATSUDA: Yeah. Well, we will still try to participate as much as we can
and as much as the Administration would allow us to participate in the
Kupuna Care. I think the gap group here would be the disabled adults.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. KATSUDA: They have nowhere else to go that we know of that can provide
services unless it's strictly volunteer services and that is very difficult to
do on a regular basis, consistent basis. So we, we have some savings that
we can use, not from the program, from within our organization that we're
going to put towards this program. We have some of our employees who
said that they would donate some of their own money towards this but,
you know, those are not significant amounts of monies.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Anyway, thank you for coming this morning and
adding to the challenge. The list is getting, I'm on my third page on the
computer. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair has a question. The clients that you serve do
they have income restrictions or any assets restrictions?
MS. LEWIS: They have income restrictions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So all of the clients meet your income restrictions then?
MS. LEWIS: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine.
MR. KATSUDA: I do want to say that for those clients who don't receive any
subsidies though, and we have a lot of clients that don't receive any
subsidies, but they utilize our registry service which Kathy has just, it's
the state of the art. I mean she's really got a lot of people. So these
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people who don't receive subsidies receive the service, and they receive
reliable service.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes, thank you, Chair. Roy, you
mentioned that this contract that you have was until 2011 then?
MR. KATSUDA: 2011, June 30.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So how, how binding is your
contract?
MR. KATSUDA: Well, we looked at it. It wasn't written by our attorney. So...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm just looking at...
MR. KATSUDA: It's as, as funds are available.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, so, okay, thank you.
MR. KATSUDA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? If not
thank you, Roy and Kathy, for being here this morning.
MR. KATSUDA: We thank all of you, but we don't envy your task and, again,
the public owes you folks a large mahalo. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MS. LEWIS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the Chair to...you know, overlooked
introducing one of the person's from Administration, Jo-Anne Inamasu,
who is the Deputy Coordinator for OED. Good morning. Members, the
last person to testify prior to the, or to sign up prior to the meeting is
Victoria Cheromcka.
MS. CHEROMCKA: Good morning, Council Members, Chairperson. My name
is Victoria Cheromcka, and I'm here today as chairperson of the
Affordable Housing Committee for the Realtors Association of Maui.
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This is hard for me. And I apologize, I'm probably going to read more
than I should.
For the last five years I've worked as an advocate for affordable housing
for Maui's working families. For the first time in many years I am seeing
a serious positive change in the environment for working class, first-time
homebuyers. The stars are truly aligned at this moment. Consider
historically low interest rates, lower home prices, the new $8,000 Federal
tax credit that expires at the end of November, and restructured FHA, VA
and USDA loan programs. All of these together work to help homebuyers
be able to actually afford a home in the current market. Now is the time
we really need the Maui County First Time Homebuyers Grant and that it
can actually do a lot of good. This is not the time to drop our support for
first-time buyers.
The purpose of this contribution of County funds is to help families who
are buying their first home to meet their down payment or cash down
requirements. Typically the first mortgage only covers 80 percent of the
cost. Twenty percent remains uncovered. Families usually attempt to
make that up with a second mortgage, but still need help with closing costs
and other cash requirements. Lenders will not fund loan packages that
require a third loan. That is why this program will not serve its intended
function as a loan, it must be a grant. We have spoken to a number of
lenders who agree with that prognosis. You'll find letters attached to my
testimony. The consensus is that third and even second loans will not be
accepted because they create additional liens on the property. In this post
toxic loan environment lending standards have greatly tightened, as they
should have, making these proposed loans non-functional. That's why the
Mayor is proposing a realignment of the first-time buyers program from a
loan, that lenders will not allow, to a grant that they will, in many cases,
allow.
We understand the hesitancy to grant citizens money to buy homes;
however, stop and consider this. If all of the proposed 1 6 million were
used to create $15,000 grants, 106 families would be helped to buy their
first home. Imagine what it would cost Maui County to build homes for
the same 106 families. Please recognize that there is no possibility that
these grants would be used for anything except helping otherwise well
qualified Maui County families to buy their first home. That is exactly
what the ohana [sic], the Obama administration is doing, and I am
encouraging you to do the same. In these times of dire economy this fund
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in the form of a grant could feasibly spark a bright moment allowing
106 Maui families -MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MS. CHEROMCKA: --who currently rent to own a home. First-time buyers
have so many factors available now; interest rates, tax credits, prices.
Maui County can add this one vital piece that would be the deciding factor
for many to make FHA and other loan programs work. There's been a lot
of rhetoric in this room about affordable housing. I'm really hoping now
to see you walk the walk. Thank you for your consideration.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Victoria,
thank you for your testimony. At the time this legislation was created, of
course, the economy was, was hot and there were a lot of people waiting
to get into their, get into a house. As the market is right now, how much
decrease, if you will, of potential homebuyers are out there because, you
know, people have lost their jobs. Obviously, they will not qualify. Have
you seen it decline?
MS. CHEROMCKA: I have seen that in the part of the market that is most
vibrant is this lower under $500,000 range where all these programs come
together. And a teacher and a nurse can buy a home. What they're often
missing, though, is that 20 percent down payment. They need to cover a
PMI, private mortgage insurance and other things like that. The $15,000
will work. The other thing that's really exciting is the renewed use of
FHA and VA loans, other programs like that, that allow funds from a
non-profit or a government agency to be part of the qualification process.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, so are you saying now, strange as it may
seem, this may be the most opportunistic time to help the so-called gap
group, which was the, one of the main intentions of the, the program in the
first place.
MS. CHEROMCKA: That is the place where right now prices have come down,
that we can actually get buyers into their first home. It's very exciting.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, you know, because this is
legislation that's already been created, the issue for the Council now is to
consider a repeal of the law versus, you know, doing it, doling it out as a
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grant. What has been stated to me is that the administrative cost, and I
guess it's been, it's more cumbersome for the Administration to dole out
the monies -MS. CHEROMCKA: To do a loan.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --presently the way as it is, but I thank you for
the information you've given to us from the fmancial institutions. So it's
something we'll have to deliberate on, but, you know, I'm, I'm in
agreement with you. We need to get the monies out to these people, to
those in need as soon as we can. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
MS. CHEROMCKA: Thank you, Council Member.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier this morning? Seeing none, thank you again.
MS. CHEROMCKA; Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we do have two people signed up for public
testimony after the meeting started. I'd just like to provide both testifiers
the rules. You have three minutes to provide public testimony. If you
could provide us your name, organization that you represent the
Committee would appreciate that. The next testifier is Rita Barreras.
MS. BARRERAS: Good morning, Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the
Council. I am the Director of the Aging with Aloha Coalition, and I was
listening to Roy Katsuda and Kathy Lewis give their presentation. And
it's quite concerning to get this news. You know, we all expected the cuts,
but one of the reasons that our formerly, we were called the Maui
Long-Term Care Partnership, we're now the Aging with Aloha Coalition.
We're kind of like a watchdog in the community of long-term care. And
so, I will work with Roy and Kathy to see what we can do to get, mobilize
their advocacy network.
I'm also on the Quest Expanded Access Advisory Committee for the State,
and I didn't hear this. So I'm really quite concerned for our County, but I
will say that one of the reasons I think that our coalition is so valuable for
the community is that back in 2003, we were doing, we began doing some
baseline research on what capacity looked like here in Maui County for
long-term care services, and we knew back then we were maxed out, full
capacity. And we also found and discovered, I personally felt that what
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Roy Katsuda has built for this community and this County is so
innovative, and he has managed to keep people out of institutional settings
for so long that our community really needs to let the State know about
this. And I will work to help Roy package together some sort of evidence,
including asking Dr. Pang, who is the head of the Maui Health, the Maui
Health District Officer, to work with us on doing some sort of cost
effective analysis to show that these programs work and they're, it's an
investment for the community
I also would recommend to the Council that you invite Tony Krieg to be a
speaker here. We have a new innovative program that came to Maui this
last year. It's called the Program for All Inclusive Care for the Elderly,
Maui PACE. And it's one of 15 projects funded in the country, but
unfortunately it is for people who have to meet nursing home level of care.
So Kathy's correct. Probably these 18 clients would probably not need
that, but for other people who might be coming down in the pipeline we
need to know more about this program. So I just want you to be aware
that's a new option in the community, and I would encourage you to invite
Tony Krieg to come and share information with you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Good morning.
MS. BARRERAS: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for being here. I just have one
question because you alluded to it, and it came from previous testimony
this morning about nursing home care qualified, I guess. Who determines
that, a doctor?
MS. BARRERAS: Under, if it's a Medicaid program, yes, they have to I think
determine medical necessity. If there, if there is a medical, you know,
there has to be a physician or physician assistant, I assume, but Tony
would be able to explain how that process works.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: How that's done?
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MS. BARRERAS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. BARRERAS: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the
testifier? Thank you, again, for being here, Rita.
MS. BARRERAS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier, last testifier that signed up is Warren
Watanabe.
MR. WATANABE: Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Members of the County
Council. I'm Warren Watanabe, Executive Director of the Maui County
Farm Bureau. And first of all I want to continue expressing our continued
gratitude for your support. As you know, I think you're all aware, as
we've testified in the past, Maui County has been very supportive of
diversified ag and ag in general in the County. I just want to point out
some of the things that we do.
We are still working on Ag in the Classroom Program partnering with the
Office of Economic Development. And in, in this regards we are, we have
targeted for the last four years second grade students, both public and
private schools. It's open to all of them, and it's up to them whether they
choose to participate. Just for your information each year we've had more
and more students involved.
Also, we did, through, through the Office of Economic Development and,
and through Clark Hashimoto, we had an Ag Awareness Day on, well, I
believe it was May 13th before our ag fest, and that, that one drew about
five, four or 500 students also. So this year we actually reached about
1,000 Maui County students, and I think it's a great success.
I also emphasize that we have our partnership with Maui Economic
Development Board. I think Jeanne Skog did testify about that. It's a
very successful program and the, the focus on this program is to bring our
teachers up to speed on agriculture to give them some background as to
what the possibilities are in having careers in agriculture are, and it's just
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not, you know, working seven days a week in the fields. So, and I think
that's an important component because our farmers, as you know, as I've
stated before they need to be on the farm. So we're, we're hoping to reach
out into the, to the teachers, their, their counselors and everybody else, the
administration to get agriculture back into the school curriculum.
Another component we, we, we were, we are looking at adding is, I'm
sure you've all heard about school gardens. We are looking to sponsor
that with CTAHR and with again the Office of Economic Development.
Another thing that we are now focusing on is our Grown on Maui, and I
want to recognize Councilmember Kaho'ohalahala and Councilmember
Johnson for that ag forum we had on the 4 th . I think it provided a good
meeting point, and I think a lot of issues came up on the table, and I think
it shows that there's a lot of work to be, to be done. I think one thing that
came out of that that really impressed on me and what I've been trying to
focus on is that our medium-range farmers, and what I mean by medium
range, is in acreage.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. WATANABE: I think those are the farmers that need a lot, most help, and I
think that's one of the focus that we need to work on. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Warren, for your testimony. I got a fast
question. Yesterday, we had someone testifying from the Food Bank, and
one of the things we talked about was, you know, when farmers, I guess,
harvest their crop, you know, sometimes, like potatoes for instance, there's
potatoes in the ground. Not all of them are pulled out. You know, the
possibility of having a group, you know, come over and, and gather
whatever that's left over in the fields to feed, you know, people of this, of
Maui or Maui County.
MR. WATANABE: Well, they did approach me and ask me about that, and they,
they were, they were concerned about by doing that would that harm the
farmers income in any way? And I think one of the, what I told them was
that one of the things we need, we need to recognize that Hawaii is a very
limited market for agriculture. So they took a different approach, and I, I
know they've done it. I saw, you know, I saw articles in the Maui News
about going around neighborhoods, picking up excess fruits from, you
know, just from your neighborhood and providing that for the Food Bank.
I know some the farmers, Kula farmers would not object to it. I know that
some of the Kula farmers did partner with Pukalani Superette for, like, a
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food, food drive. So there is that possibility. What I was, I kind of tried to
get them to focus on too was that when you have, like, an off-grade
product that the farmer cannot sell maybe turning it into a value-added
product instead so that it doesn't compete directly with the fresh market.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. I'll go right down the line. Member
Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair Warren, just a quick
question. You know, with your funding how much of it is set aside for the
educational component? What percent would you say of the funding you
receive? Twenty percent, 30 percent?
MR. WATANABE: I would, I would estimate it's about 30 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and do you folks include organic
education in...
MR. WATANABE: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's inclusive in this. Okay.
MR. WATANABE: Just as, I mean Farm Bureau, as we stated, we, we represent
and, you know, I'll be blunt, you know, we have taken some flak for it, but
we do support all types of agriculture, including the biotech industry,
conventional and organic.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and you are, I know you, you're made of
diverse, you know, farmers, those who emphasize organic farming aspect.
So you folks are inclusive of them as well, their concerns as well.
MR. WATANABE: Yeah, because our, our County by-laws we made it so that
each major commodity that's grown in Maui County is represented on our
Farm Bureau board, County board.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, thank you very much. Thank you,
Warren, for being here. We're glad we got you off of the land today. It's
good to have some real people here once in a while. You know, our
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farmers, we all know that without you we don't eat. I'd like to understand
a little bit more about what you do with the money that the County gives
you. Can you give us just a brief rundown?
MR. WATANABE: Basically, like I said it's broken up with the Ag in the
Classroom, Grown on Maui. From year to year we kind of decide which
way we're going to put our emphasis on, and like I said, this year we're
emphasizing more the Grown on Maui. We also have funding to do our
events, to get, make, generate public awareness. We did, and I appreciate
the County's support and the Mayor's support of our recent ag festival. A
large of it went to that. And I think basically that's it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You make grants to other organizations?
MR. WATANABE: We are looking into our own fundraising capabilities. For
instance, Hawaii, we're, we're a County chapter on Hawaii Farm Bureau,
and the Hawaii Farm Bureau about a year or two years ago, we formed a
501(c)(3) ag education component. So we're, we're looking to that to
fund this similar programs, Ag in the Classroom, those kind of, across the
State. So it will, it will help all our 11 County chapters.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you very much. And thank you for
giving us our food. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair And thanks,
Warren, for being here. Again, I wanted to follow up on the, on the
Chair's concern about the Food Bank. According to the Food Bank they
said that they did have a conversation with you, and they said that they
were, what prevents you is that there was liability for them getting into a
farmer's field perhaps to pick up the remaining food that's not, either
off-grade or not going to be harvested for, for any use.
MR. WATANABE: Well, my comment to them was, I think, you know, as you,
because, you know, the, the person collecting the food has his own, you
know, your own safety concerns. And so, you know, I mean if they
approach the farmer and the farmer says, okay, I see no problem with it,
you know, because the farm should have insurance coverage in the first
place, right.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, so do you think then
this is a possibility? Because here we are with the Food Bank coming to
say that they're low on supplies and, in fact, now they have to go to
Tennessee to buy their food and bring it here to Maui, and at the same
time we have farmers that have extra, you know, crops that they're not
selling. And what, what are we missing in terms of making a connection
there so that the food that is grown here can, in fact, support the people
that really need the food?
MR. WATANABE: Well, I think, you know, I think similar to our May 4 th
meeting, right, there was a lot of discussion about, you know, lack of
communication, you know, between the farmers and, you know, the
consumers or the buyers. And I think the same holds true. I, but what we
can provide is a list of farmers, and I think it's up to the farmer on an
individual case-by-case basis whether he wants to choose to do so. Some
may not want to do it, some will, will be more than happy, willing to do it.
So I think that needs to be worked out.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is this something that the
Farm Bureau would be willing to coordinate, because you know the
farmers and here we are we, we have two programs that are coming to us;
one that needs food and one that grows food. So does it makes sense then
that, that the Farm Bureau would be at least one point of, of initiation to
begin these kinds of conversations to link up to where the food may be
needed, and then find some way of, of allowing that to occur?
MR. WATANABE: We can do that, but just, I think you're aware that we, we
don't have all, all the farmers as members of the Farm Bureau. So, you
know, we can approach our members. Yeah, we can do that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Watanabe,
good morning. Thank you for being here.
MR. WATANABE: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I'm looking at the, the grants and there's one
for Maui County Farm Bureau and that's your organization.
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MR. WATANABE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Do you also share in the agricultural
promotion grant from the Mayor's Office?
MR. WATANABE: No, we do not.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So is this the only grant that comes to your
organization, the Maui County Farm Bureau grant?
MR. WATANABE: Yes, it, it does, and it does include the five commodity
groups in our grant.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: It does include what?
MR. WATANABE: The five commodity groups.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Thank you for that clarification.
Okay. Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Warren, this is a hard question, and you may not
like it, but I've got to ask it. Recently, at the State Water Commission
hearings a great many taro farmers from East Maui attended that hearing
trying to fight for their water which has been diverted by the major water
company moving that water into Central Maui. The concern and hurt
when the Farm Bureau testified on behalf of that major company that was
diverting a lot of water I think hurt a lot of the taro farmers. And my
concern whether you need to relook this statement because you heard a lot
of kalo farmers from the east side. I'm not telling you what to do, but it
was passed on to me by people from East Maui. Your comment or
something that you may have to look at because of the Farm Bureau's
stance against giving water to perhaps these farmers? It just seems like
there's a little duplicity or you need to look at trying to support these
farmers that need water.
MR. WATANABE: Can I, I respond?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Comment?
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MR. WATANABE: Yeah. Our position was not against restoring the waters in
the streams. Our position, our comment was toward the process that the
commission may, used to come to their decision. That was our comment.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So I think that maybe you need to touch
base with these farmers saying that you may want to help them get their
water. I appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any of the taro farmers belong to the Farm
Bureau, Maui County Farm Bureau?
MR. WATANABE: In Maui County I'm not aware, no.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. But they're allowed to join?
MR. WATANABE: Oh, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine, thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I have a couple of quick
questions for you Warren, and you've heard me ask this before, but I'll
start on the other section that you mentioned earlier and the concern as a
farmer. You mentioned, oh, the farmers get insurance so no need worry if
somebody come on the land and get hurt. I think you better go back and
ask your members because they might be a little upset at that statement.
Let me be perfectly honest on that one because the fact remains that if you
do good for somebody, which I'm not against, and I'm all for, and
someone takes advantage of the situation and gets hurt, Warren, that
farmer is the one that gets the. . .(Inaudible). . . for their insurance in the
future as well, because when you get workers they're contractually
covered under Workers' Comp and what not. You have a volunteer that
comes in to harvest and something goes wrong, not a good issue all
around. And that's one of the biggest challenges.
Why do you think this County has to require all these different groups that
use our properties to have insurance, because we don't want ourselves to
be caught with the litigation that could occur? It's unfortunate, but it's the
real world we live in. So I would recommend you go back and ask your
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members because I think some of them would not take well on that, that
statement, but that's, that's would be my recommendation.
The other question on the water issue I think was very important that I
need clarification that your, Maui Farm Bureau doesn't oppose restoration,
you, you want to work together with all parties to make sure it's done in
an equitable manner is that what you're saying?
MR. WATANABE: Regarding the insurance, yeah, I recognize that. You know,
we, for us, even for us, you know, when we do our events our insurance
company, you know, has cautioned me very strongly about doing, even
doing those kind of things. And I think that's where it come from. Like
even from the, you know, I know the Council, and I know Councilmember
Baisa has, has looked at the ag tourism and even that we caution our
. . .(End of tape 1B). . . of what you doing. And that's why we feel it's
important that the County, and it's by State statute, adopt an ordinance
regarding ag tourism. We need it done. People are asking for it. But
anyway, yeah, I'm aware of that concern about the insurance. So, yeah,
I'll, I'll, you know, I'll take that into account.
As far as the water, we recognize, again, the importance, and we just want,
again, like you said we're not against restoring stream, some stream flow
and water for, you know, native Hawaiian rights. We don't question that.
We just question the process that the commission took to come to their
decision, because they did not ask our Upcountry farmers and ranchers
what are your water needs before they made their decision. And that's
what we took issue with. They didn't, we feel that they didn't fairly
balance in-stream and off-stream use which is mandated by the water
code. That was our testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the last question I have for you is, and
I've asked you this question before, you have farming in the classroom.
You know, you going to offer it to all the second graders across the
County, but realistically the farming itself, because of the necessary land
you need, water, all the various issues, how viable is it? I mean
realistically how viable is it? How many people would want to get into
farming as individuals? And I've asked you this question before, and can
you tell me what you really believe, would there be a lot of people, or
would there be enough to do this backbreaking business and make us
sustainable as we have talked about?
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MR. WATANABE I, well, I mean, I think you're well aware that, you know,
there's a lot of issues involved in it. I believe there is. See I think the
problem is, I feel we skipped a generation. You know, you have farmers
like my age ready to retire then you... but where's the 30, 40 year olds?
That's the, that's the age we're missing and that's where we're trying to,
right now I guess we're playing catch-up like with everything else. And I
think that's the problem. If we had one sizeable amount of those guys,
because when I came back to farming a lot of my friends that I grew up
with in Kula we all came back to the farm. And the children, our children,
or my friends' children...because I don't have any children, my friends'
children they decide, are deciding not to return and because, it is because
of the hardships that you are faced by going into agriculture, but there is
hope.
I mean just look at Chuncy Monden. His strawberries he just got into
Costco. Jeff Haines his hydroponic lettuce. They, he also just got into
Costco. You know, and those are the kind of markets we need. We need
to further develop our grocery stores, our Safeways, our Foodlands. Those
are the kind of outlets we have. We have the support of the, you know,
your local mom and pops like Superette, but we need to further broaden
that support.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Warren.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Warren, a fmal question from the Chair, in regards to
school gardens, how many schools on Maui presently do have ag
classrooms?
MR. WATANABE: Formally, I, I'm not sure. One of the problems I, I, we're
aware of with the Department of Education is that they cannot find ag
instructors. We are trying to work closely with Lahainaluna, with Keith
Ideoka. As far as I know, I've, you know, I've heard that, you know,
South Maui sustainability has established some school gardens in Kihei.
What we hope to do is try to have one, again, we're going to send, we're
sending, working with CTAHR and OED. We are approaching the
schools now to see what the interest is and what we are plan, our strategy
would be to have, do one school in each geographical area of Maui.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just to
preface I have one question for Mr. Watanabe, but I know we started to
stray into the issue of water restoration and kalo and everything.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Yeah, let's keep it to the budget.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you. Thank you, because we
certainly don't want to have any Sunshine Law issues here. So I mean
those are very good topics, but it, I think it's more appropriate the
discussion should take place in either Mr. Victorino's Water Committee or
Member Johnson's Economic and Ag Committee.
Very briefly, Mr. Watanabe, I presume you are here to talk about your
appropriation and give us a description of what you do for the Maui
County Farm Bureau or how the funds are being used. You have a
$10,000 reduction. Any comments? Any, you see any major impacts on
your ability to continue your program?
MR. WATANABE: Well, with the $10,000 reduction I just say thank you very
much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So you're okay.
MR. WATANABE: Yeah, we're okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, Member Molina, the Chair was aware
in regards to your comments and the reason why I let the Members to
continue to ask Mr. Watanabe -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --those questions was that basically because they're up
for some grants on Maui that some of the questions that we may have, you
know, could have been answered or have been answered by
Mr. Watanabe. Member Kaho' ohalahala and Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair This is
a budget question. Warren, in your, your total budgets I'm looking here
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then you're steered for $425,000 for the next fiscal year. What percentage
of that, if any, goes to the Maui Aloha Aina Organization, because they
came forward here and asked at one time about funding that they would
like to be supported by the, the Farm Bureau. So what are your comments
to that?
MR. WATANABE: Just so you are aware, they're, that commodity group has the
largest share of all five commodity groups. How we, deci...,we do not
decide how much the commodity groups, what their request is. The Maui
County Farm Bureau Board asks each commodity group to submit their
own budget requests that we can, we incorporate to our total Farm Bureau
package. And so, their boards decide how much they want allocated to
them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the groups submit to the Farm
Bureau -MR. WATANABE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and then, and then you make a
decision as to how they're disbursed with the five commodity groups?
MR. WATANABE: Normally, in this situation because there's a $10,000
reduction, our plan is to ask each, each commodity group and Farm
Bureau will cut back a certain percentage to meet the 425. But, again, I,
we, we ask the commodity groups for their budget requests, and we,
normally we don't question it. But because of the current situation, as
you're probably all aware, Administration did ask that we reduce it by 10
percent, so we did have, have a fall-back budget of 10 percent reduction.
And so, you know, I mean we, we, we do not ask the commodity groups
unless we need to, to cut back their budgets. It is what they feel they need
to operate on.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the percentage to each
of the groups is not an equal share then?
MR. WATANABE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It's not divided into five ways?
MR. WATANABE: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Do you know what MAA
or M-A-A gets then out of that percentage?
MR. WATANABE: Their, I mean their request was a little over 20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Over 20,000.
MR. WATANABE: Twenty.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So of the 425,000 then what
percentage of that goes to the five commodity in total and what percentage
remains with the Farm Bureau then?
MR. WATANABE: Again, you know, it's, it's what the commodity groups
request. And like I said MAA has the largest request, and I believe the
smallest request comes from the Maui Onion Growers.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then in terms of your
Ag in the Classroom, and you've done that for quite a while as you said
today, is the second grade class going to be your main target group in
terms of students? And the reason I ask is because if you're saying at the
same time that we're missing a gap group or generation of people that
could consider farming as an important career, shouldn't we target then
some of the, the high school or intermediate levels of students so that we
can inspire them to look at this as a potential career?
And I just wanted to also put that on the table is that we know right now
that Hawaii imports 85 to 90 percent of our food, and if we do not make a
serious change in how we look at food then we are going to be very
vulnerable in terms of where our food comes from, and we're not growing
any of it here except that we're importing all of our food. So, so I think
we did establish that there is some concern about that, but in terms of your
program, then are you considering looking at other age groups within the
schools today so that you can, in fact, support them, you know, through
high school and perhaps into more, you know, upper level education in the
agricultural or farm or food, the food production, you know.
MR. WATANABE: Yeah, that's a good, and that, that is in our plans. I mean
that's what we did with Clark Hashimoto, the ag awareness for the fifth
graders. We, we were looking at six, sixth grade, but, you know, fifth,
sixth grade. We're also looking at probably sophomores in high school
because my understanding is a lot of the high schools now have what,
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what they call academies and the students kind of need to know way in
advance what, what their interests are when they go to, on to college. And
that is part of also why we formed the Hawaii Farm Bureau 501(c)(3) ag
education component.
We recognize this is, this is an issue not only in Maui County, but it's
across the State. As I've said before, the average age of the Hawaii farmer
is now 60 years old. And so, you know, we really need to act fast, and I
mean that's why we have a lot of bills in the Legislature that we try to
improve on, it mentioned the 80, 85 percent, to increase...and, again, it
gets back to our...getting our...the whole system incorporated into buying
local or supporting local. Right now, I mean, let's put it straight, I mean
the cost of production is so high now that it's not like when my parents
were farming where they could afford to spec, what we call speculate on a
crop. They can't do it anymore. I mean you've got to maximize your
yield that you can get out and, and have it all marketed, and right now we
don't have that.
So, I mean one thing that we've done on Hawaii farming that we didn't try
to get past is, is the procurement code. There are a lot of issues with that,
it's HB 988, and we've, we've worked with the legislators, and we feel we
have a good bill now that will have institutions buy from local.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. At least, I think we do
agree that it's important for us to continue growing our food.
MR. WATANABE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And that we shouldn't be so
dependent on the 90 percent that's being grown elsewhere. But in terms
of the economics, like you said, we needed to convince our people to buy
local. It was also shared that every dollar that we can spend back here in
Hawaii generates $8 in the economy. And if we look at the 90 percent it
represents $4 billion that we are exporting or paying for farmers
elsewhere. And if we took even a minor percentage of that and turn it
back home. Maybe the education needs to also be in the area of allowing
people to know why it is important to not only grow our food locally, but
to buy our food locally so that we can understand how to bring that dollar
back to Hawaii or back here to Maui County so that we can in fact
multiply it and generate $8 of, of, of business and service and products for
every dollar we keep at home. So is that going to be one of your focuses
from the Farm Bureau?
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MR. WATANABE: Well, that's part of our Grown on Maui and the State's Buy
Fresh, Buy Local program. We did meet, I mean our County Economic
Development Coordinator Deidre did, we did meet with Sandra Kunimoto
about that program, and we are looking at partnering with that, but I think
it gets down to also that, you know, I mean, it's a, it's a great goal to, you
know, reduce that, but, again, if the farmer is not viable, that's what we
keep saying, it's not going to happen. The farmers need to make some
money too.
And so, because their costs of production have skyrocketed, fertilizer last
year tripled, you know, and they can't afford it. We did a survey,
Statewide survey, as I mentioned at our meeting, I mean less than half said
they, they thought they could make it through the rest of this year. And
that's how serious it is. And so, unless we, and that's why we had several
bills trying to reduce the farmer's cost of production, because that's the
only way they can compete and that's where we feel we need the most
help with.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Maybe perhaps this
Council needs to take a closer look at what that means, and you need to
help us to interpret what that means so that we can effectively support the
idea of growing food once more here in Maui County. So, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Kaho'ohalahala. And I would suggest
that anything to do with economic, more economic development should go
to the committee for lengthy discussion in regards to how do we help our
farmers here in Maui County to provide food products to, to the people of
our County as well as the State. Thank you, Mr. Watanabe, for being
here. The Chair appreciate the discussion.
MR. WATANABE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can I ask my question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Watanabe? Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I think Bill was ahead of me too. Thank you.
Mr. Chairman, you know in this discussion amongst nine of us, I just hope
that we will listen and not tolerate, but when a statement is made that my

-42-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

question in regards to kalo and water is not germane to the subject of the
Farm Bureau, I think it's wholly germane. I think when Warren said that
it wasn't against the farmers, but more towards supporting water for the
Upcountry area I think that's good, but my question was why the Farm
Bureau didn't support these Maui farmers. There was no statement made
that they support the water going to the farmers and that's why, for me, if
the Farm Bureau is going to come up and represent the Farm Bureau, and
we're giving money to them, hey, you know what? Hawaiian taro farmers
were here before any farmer was here on the island. And you know what?
You need water to grow crops. And that's what the East Maui farmers are
fighting for, and that's all I'm saying.
You asked the question about are they part of the Farm Bureau, and
Warren answered I don't think so, or whatever his answer was. It doesn't
matter. Taro is agriculture. We need to support them whether -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --they are members or not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki, can you provide your comments in regards
to this particular budget rather than straying? If you want this discussion,
I suggest that we go to a Committee to have proper discussion in regards
to farming for Maui County including taro farmers, the farmers that they
represent, the Cattlemen Association and bring this to head if need be, but
not in this Budget and Finance Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I, I don't think we need to butt head,
Mr. Chairman I think it, my statement is talk to the farmers, try to
encourage them, and that is what the Farm Bureau is supposedly
representing to grow food here in Maui County. So anyway that's all I
wanted to say, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I'm not going to take any more questions for
Mr. Watanabe. Mr. Medeiros, if you want to talk to Mr. Watanabe feel
free.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Chair is going to call a ten minute recess, and we'll
reconvene at 10:35. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:25 a.m.
10:38 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, at this time the Chair would like to
close public testimony without any objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010 FOR
THE COUNTY OF MAUI (CC 09-59 and 09-88)
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, this morning we do have the Office of Economic
Development with us and at this time I'd like to call on Ms. Tegarden to
provide us with some comments. And as soon as you fmish your
comments we'll review the grants and for, from the Department.
Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Good morning, Committee Chair Pontanilla, thank you, and
good morning, Council Members. Today the discussion before us pertains
to the line items for the Office of Economic Development. Just as a
refresher from my testimony the week before last, the bottom line is that
we reduced our proposed budget by 1 2 million from last year, a portion of
that coming from OED operating expenses; 765,000 of the decreases
resulted from one-time projects or projects that had already come to
fruition.
It was difficult to make these decreases to the budget because we all, as
we all know, economic development and stabilization crosses all
industries. All of the major areas we fund are linked to one another, so
decreases to one are decreases to many. We understand that all
organizations are facing difficult times. Instead of creating a large
hardship for one organization, with the kokua of our OED grantees, we
were able to help one another with small cuts to many making up the
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balance of our decreases. Our mission is to promote and nurture
sustainable economic development within Maui County consistent with
the needs of the community and their priorities. Again, this is very broad.
In making our decreases we considered several factors. Number one, the
sustainable economic development component of the project, and job
creation, and/or retention; number two, other funding opportunities
available to the organizations; number three, for what the County funding
would be utilized; and fourth, what the significant impacts would be if
OED funding were not provided. It was also important for us to look at
projects that keep the morale of our residents up so we ensured continued
funding of culture and arts programs which also offer a large economic
benefit. Our grants have been categorized in the following manner•
agricultural promotion at 795,000; culture in the arts at 525,000; business
development and technology at approximately 2 million; renewable
energy at 65,000; environmental protection at 1.6 million; and visitor
industry at 3.8 million; for a total of 8.8 million.
Some of our larger grants continue to be the Maui Visitors Bureau.
Visitors are our economic engine, and I don't know anyone who doesn't
know somebody who gets their paycheck from the visitor industry in some
form or another. And the trickledown effect of the visitor industry is
enormous. Maui Economic Development Board, a wonderful partner that
truly mirrors what I said earlier about economic development being joined
across the industries. Their programs reach from youth, to space
surveillance initiatives, everything in between, and link them all together.
MEDB is a wonderful partnering organization as well. High tech is a
growing field creating and providing jobs and answers the question of
diversification. Maui County Farm Bureau, agriculture, the backbone of
our community and such an integral part of our economy. In addition to
being advocates for their 200-plus members they reach out to the youth
through the Ag in the Classroom, which they partnered with this year with
MEDB, as well as to the postsecondary level via MCC. They continue to
work keeping Maui products top of mind through their Grown on Maui
campaign as well. And, of course, watershed protection because, of
course, that plays a vital role in the well being of everyone in our
community. We also have portions of money for ag promotion,
environmental protection, small business promotion, and this is where we
can focus on projects that do not have line items.
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This is a difficult year for all of us and difficult decisions are being made.
We look forward to going through our line items with you and answering
any questions you may have. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, we'll start off with the 8 Y2 by 14
handout that was given to you this morning. It's a revised April 14, 2009.
I hope everybody has a copy of this. Okay, Members, we're going to start
off on Page No. 3, Office of the Mayor - Economic Development, and this
is for Grants and Disbursements for Agricultural Promotion. And the first
one is Agriculture Promotion, Page 11-10 on your Detail Budget.
Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We are recommending $115,000 for this line
item. Agriculture continues to be a vital component of Maui County's
economy and provides open space in our growing community. This line
item funds projects and organizations that do not fall under the Maui
County Farm Bureau line item. For example, we fund the Maui Flower
Growers Association. We have also funded a Jatropha biofuel crop.
We're also funding two smaller organizations that are starting community
gardens. We hosted the Ag Awareness Day at Maui Tropical Plantation
on March 13 th where we had over 330 students and teachers from local
and elementary schools come and learn the importance of ag in their, in
our daily lives. This feeds off the Ag in the Classroom Project that is
funded through the Farm Bureau in collaboration with MEDB.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. So this is over and above
what the Farm Bureau gets then?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct. These are for projects that do not go toward Maui
County Farm Bureau projects.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then the idea of
promotion then is to promote those specific other entities that are in
agriculture like the flower growers, and then your, the Ag Festival that you
talked about, that was fully funded by this line item?
MS. TEGARDEN: There were, there was two things. We had the Ag Awareness
Day which was the day before the Agricultural Festival. And that's where
we worked with the local schools and had over 300 students come out to
learn about how agriculture, you know, what agriculture is really all about.
And that was different than the Ag Festival which was on Saturday.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So the Farm Bureau
funded the Ag Festival -MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and then you did this pre ag.
MS. TEGARDEN: Ag Awareness.
COUNCILMEMBER KAI-I0' OHALAHALA: And then in terms of promotion,
then what is considered an ag promotion, so that if there are others out
there that are looking for support in agriculture, what is an eligible
program under this line item?
MS. TEGARDEN: We are open to looking at all agricultural type projects. For
instance, right now we are looking at a grant from the Waste Not Want
Not organization. We have also funded workshops in the past. We have
funded Maui Aloha Aina for a specific separate workshop that they were
doing that was not covered under their Farm Bureau commodity grant. So
we are constantly trying to do outreach to the community We have gone
over to Molokai as well to let people know that this is a pot of money that
is available for agriculture type projects and our agricultural specialist
Clark Hashimoto is always, you know, out there and talking to people
about the funding and letting them know that we are interested in hearing
from them.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then this funding is totally
under your authority or discretion?
MS. TEGARDEN: The Office of Economic Development.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. In your opening
remarks you did mention that the grants and funding under your office,
some of the major considerations is for job creation and job retention.
Okay, and you do have funding for culture and the arts also?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, again, I want to follow up on that
same questioning that Member Kaho' ohalahala had. And so, if there's an
organization that would like to apply for funding under agriculture
promotion they would do that directly with your office?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct. We have our grant application online and they are
welcome to call us at the office. We have a rolling deadline for our
applications. So there is no strict timeline.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So under this grant do you consider places or
organizations such as botanical gardens? Because, you know, I know in
Hana, in Keanae we have a large one, and they, they plant kalo, they plant
sugarcane and, you know, all different things. And it's, for me Ag in the
Classroom is really important, but I don't think it's better than actually
being there in the field, and seeing, and touching, and having it explained
to you. So for places like the Hana Botanical Gardens in Keanae that I
talked about or even Maui Nui Botanical Gardens, where they're growing
kalo, varieties that we have very few of left as far as that particular variety,
and they're trying to propagate and increase the stock in that and where
farmers can benefit from that. Would they be a consideration for this?
MS. TEGARDEN: Certainly. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Okay, I appreciate your responses.
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Tegarden, in assisting with,
with some of the conferences, and the workshops, and when you do work
with the various entities in scheduling these promos, and you're dealing
with hotels for locations, do you require the use of local products? For
example, Kula strawberries instead of mainland strawberries; Hawaii
melons versus mainland melons on all of the refreshments and lunches,
et cetera.
MS. TEGARDEN: Just to clarify, are you asking specifically about ag
conferences or just in general all the conferences that we...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: In general all the conferences that the office assists
with.
MS. TEGARDEN: That's a very good question, and we do encourage use of
local products. Many of the hotels that we have worked with are already
utilizing local products, but it is something that we defmitely want to put
more of a concerted effort into as we move forward, not just local products
of food, but local products in general, using your local printers and your
local graphic artists, you know, things like that. Really making sure that
we're looking to keep things local and at home.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Terrific. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. The recommendation is for $100,000. Maui
Nui Botanical Gardens hosts a unique collection of native Hawaiian
plants. This funding is used primarily for salaries and operations. The
botanical gardens offer amazing outreach programs to the community and
partner a lot, as well, in our community which is very important. Our
recommendation is for 100,000 this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Ms. Tegarden, you must know that
they have come to us on several occasions and several public meetings
requesting that their funding be restored at the level of 125,000, which
they've had for the past three years, due to a number of circumstances, but
one being that this has been . . .(End of tape 2A). . . and, and the, the
botanical gardens itself. And the other side, the downturn in donations has
really put them in jeopardy of maybe losing a staff or maybe two when
they only had I think four staff members, if I correct, and my, my memory
is correct and, and maybe even further irreparable harm. And yet, you
heard Member Medeiros talk about what they promulgate as far as kalo
and other, you know, things that no one else is growing right now, or
maybe in Hana, but, you know, we're really in a dire straight. Why was
they taking so much where others were, you know, at 4 percent, 2 percent,
they were 20 percent and $25,000? What made you guys pick that number
in particular for that, that particular entity?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for the question. We looked at additional funding
sources that the agency, where agency gets funding. Again, these
decreases for all of our, our line items were incredibly difficult to make
and, you know, we would love to be able to restore everybody. However,
we did look at additional funding sources and what the funding was being
utilized for.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and, and I think that's important. I
mean, you know, I, I just wanted to know your rationale because that's
important. The question has come up for other, other areas and, you
know, across the board I know everybody is trying to be as fair and
equitable, but that was my concern, and they're claiming that they're
going to have a hard time, you know, getting back the monies in other
areas. So, and we know the State ain't giving nothing more, so forget that
issue. So, okay, you feel...okay, I'll, I'll yield to my other colleagues, and
then we'll discuss it further. Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Thank you,
Chair
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Tegarden, what percentage
of this is salary?
MS. TEGARDEN: I would say 90 percent, 95 percent of it is salary.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Where do they get their other funds from
besides the County?
MS. TEGARDEN: They have some private foundation grants, some State
funding, and fundraisers, and membership.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So what is their operating budget?
MS. TEGARDEN: Their, their overall budget if I, from Fiscal Year '08 was
$250,000 of which 125 is basically for salaries, and then the TDI benefits.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And I just wanted
to continue my line of questioning regarding Maui Nui Botanical Gardens
and, and make, and bring awareness. For me, one of the priorities is to
maintain our watershed areas, our native plants, our natural resources.
And this is an organization that helps us do that by planting native plants.
We can see the damage and destruction of our native plants in watershed
and forest areas because of invasive species coming in. And we need a
source where we can get stocks of native plants to replant, and it seems
like Maui Nui Botanical Gardens is one of those places that has focused
on native plants. And, and again with ag crops, you know, they're
planting varieties of kalo, sweet potatoes, and other things that were for
the Hawaiian culture, the staples of their diet.
So I think they're doing, you know, something very important for us not
only as an island culture, but also as, you know, a Hawaiian culture that
we need to protect our resources, continue to grow the foods that were
brought here by the original Hawaiians, and to also protect our watersheds
and native forests by being able to replace our native plants. So I too
certainly would have hoped that we could have keep [sic] them at a level
funding and Member Victorino did ask the rationale behind the 20 percent
reduction, and I thank you for that answer, but I think that it's important
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that we look to keep this organization viable and continuing in what they
do. Any comments on that, Department?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, we, we certainly didn't question the good that they are
doing, and we have every year been an advocate for this organization.
Again, when looking at budget decreases for this year that was one of the
things we considered, but certainly Maui Nui Botanical Gardens does
provide a wonderful service to the community, and we understand the
good that they do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that response. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. I'm looking
on Page 5 of this spreadsheet, okay, and then under the Water Supply
Grants there is a 19-19. Okay, no, my question is this is support that's
also going to the botanical gardens?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, she may not be...
MS. TEGARDEN: I'm...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ...familiar with this one.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, you don't, you don't have
the spreadsheet then.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, this is from the Water Department as a grant
from the Water Department rather than OED.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Yeah. I'm, I'm sorry.
MS. TEGARDEN: I'm sorry. That's not our...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I'm pointing out on Page 5
because it's Water Supply Grants, but I'm asking about 19-19 there that
has a line item for $50,000. So my question is, is this another support to,
to the garden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it is.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So this pays for, do you
know anything about this?
MS. TEGARDEN: To be honest, I do not, I'm sorry. I don't know the details of
this specific line item.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just asking because
we're on that, on this item, so I noticed that there's also this, this there. So
do we ask the questions later then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we're going to have the Water Department today
in regards to their grants just for fees.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll ask them when they come in for fees in regards to
the particular grants that they have. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then, so in light of this
it appears that there is also other grants that are going to the garden. So
my question is do they pay rent for any of the, the gardens itself, the
lands?
MS. TEGARDEN: I think that they do pay some rent, but to be honest I am more
familiar with what our OED grant goes to fund for Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens, and I wouldn't want to misspeak.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So your funding goes
mostly to salaries and not for operations. . . (Inaudible).. .
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct. It's salaries and TDI benefits. So that's what the
125 goes for, the 100,000 this year, the proposed 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So in terms of operations,
then you have nothing to do with, with operations?
MS. TEGARDEN: Not through our grant. That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So, I don't know where I
ask the question then?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Maybe Budget Director.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. In, in this line item then is
there rent being paid for the land that the gardens are located at?
MR. PABLO: Oh, for, for the Maui Nui Botanical Garden grant?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
MR. PABLO: No, I'm not, I'm not certain about that, but I, but I am, I will
contact the Water Supply Department, so when they come today on rates
and fees they will be able to answer that question.
COUNCILMEMBER KAI-10' OHALAHALA: Okay. I just want to know where
all of the funding sources are coming in, so we have a clear picture on
what's happening -MR. PABLO: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --with this entity, you know. And
so, and then besides rent are they paying any other kinds of costs? Is this,
you know, is this 50,000 to supplement their water? And is there still
water charges beyond that, so that we understand that there's over and
above...and utilities, are there utilities that are being paid for, for power
and all of those kinds of things in their operations? So, because if we're
only looking at, at personnel, then that leaves us nothing to understand
about where the operations are at, and I, I want to at least get some idea of
what that is.
MR. PABLO: Okay. I will get the Department to, to answer those questions
when they appear. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson, and good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning. I, I think it might be helpful
with the question that was just asked, we also have Lisa from Maui Nui
Botanical Garden, you know, here. So she is here. Mr. Chair, if the
Members would allow, I, I just, you know, I think it's important to answer
the question so that we don't have this back and forth because it's getting
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very late. So if the other Members want that, if Mr. Kaho' ohalahala wants
that I think she should be given the opportunity to answer that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Done?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I'm, I'm just asking, you know, so, I, I
don't know if you want to do it now, you know, if the other Members
would object. I'm just asking for her to come down and answer the
question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we're going to have the Department come up this
afternoon in regards to rates and fees, and then maybe at that time we can
ask the Department that particular question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I just thought it was more a question
that could be answered by the people that are doing the budget, which are
the, the main people at Maui Nui Botanical Gardens.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, but I have a lot of questions and most of them
are not to do with water. I'm, I'm interested also in the information that
Member Kaho'ohalahala wants, but even if we have the Water
Department they're not going to know about other costs that she pays.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions. And, you know, I'll support
your direction, Mr. Chair, if you would prefer to have the Water
Department respond -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --because we got a lot to catch up on. Thank
you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, we have a lot to catch up. At this time, with no
objection I'm going to call on Lisa Schattenburg-Raymond to answer
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala's question in regards to the funding source.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Aloha, Council Members. Thank you for
this opportunity. What was your first question?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: My first question had to do with
what was listed in our grants here under the Water Supply Grants.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And it has Maui Nui Botanical
Gardens at $50,000.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Okay. Our, our salary costs are currently
$190,000, so the funding we get through OED and the Water Department
covers mostly salaries and some operations. So, and then we raise the
other part of our operating budgets through our plant sales, through our
memberships, and our program grants, like our volunteer program, our
conservation program, and our event grants we get from other sources.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Now, I just want to clarify
what I heard. You said that your salaries are at what amount?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: It's 190,00 currently.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: One hundred and ninety
thousand.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So...
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: And our operating, full operating costs is
300,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Three hundred?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So we're looking at 300 plus the
190. No?
MS SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: No, our full...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Total.
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MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah, our annual budget is 300,000 and
our salaries are 190,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, 210,00 would be operations;
am I wrong? No.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: A hundred and ten.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: A hundred and ten.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, sorry. My math is not
that...I need some practice.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Brain Gym. (laughter)
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Brain Gym.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Let's see what was that thing we
had last night? Yeah, Brain Gym, yeah.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: And we...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So, 110 is for operations then. So
out of the 110 then is this 50,000 part of that then?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: The Water Department and OED money
combined is 175,000. Our salaries are 190,000, and then the other
110,000 is the other operating costs, supplies for the garden, nursery,
events, other programs that we do, conversation work, education
programs.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then I asked a question
about whether or not, are you paying any lease?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We have a license to occupy currently.
We are, I'm waiting for my insurance form, and we will have all the
paperwork together for the lease which will probably go in next week, but
we don't have a long-term lease right now.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So there is no lease then?
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MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So you don't pay anything at all
right now?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: A dollar a year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: A dollar.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then utilities. What is your
utilities?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We, we are not, because we're, we're, I
mean it's a County park, and, and we're stewards of this resource. That's,
that's, our non-profit just maintains this facility. So it's, it's free, open to
the public. It's, we treat it as if it was another County park. So we, we
are not paying for water. In fact, our water situation is such that we share
it with the County nursery and the amphitheatre. It's all off of one line
right now. So it's not submetered at all.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then...
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We use it on alternate days.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then, so, and power
you're not paying any power then?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: It's, it's, no, because it also goes through
the amphitheatre and through the nursery as well. So...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So what is the total
amount of funding that you get then from the County that comes in? I'm
seeing only two sources here. Are there...
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: That's it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just the two sources?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah, uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I just wanted some
clarification. I didn't know what that meant. I thought this is another item
or is this the same thing so.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: I don't know if you remember, but maybe
about five years ago our allotment was cut 50,000 and that's when the
Water Department picked it up. And so, and ever since then it's just kind
of been in two different places. It used to be all at one source, and, but we
partner with the Water Department to promote xeriscaping, work with the
landscape industry and the whole grounds are, you know, basically a
classroom too for homeowners and the industry to come in and, and see
how xeriscaping is done and how native plants perform in, in the
landscape.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So to make up then the
shortfall for your, just your personnel then, how does, how does that
happen?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: I don't know how that's going to happen.
That's my concern because, I mean I could write grants for programs and,
and things like that and, and get education monies and get, you know,
conservation monies, and event monies, but I can't, you know, salaries no
one, no one gives you money for that. That's, you have to come up with
that. And so, our plan, and again our last plant sale we, we only sold half
the amount that we were expecting, and our donations are down. And so,
you know, those are the kinds of monies that we can use for salaries, but I
just don't have that resource right now.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So the money that you get from OED as
well as the Water Supply are those monies, grants that you receive are
separate type of programs or is it one program?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: It all funds the same, I mean the work
that we do because we do, we do the conservation work, we do education
work, we do cultural conservation, xeriscaping, you know, it's, it just all
kind of helps us with all of that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Because we had a discussion yesterday in
regards to, you know, if, if an entity comes in with a...two different
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programs we fund it two different ways, but if it's one program, clarify
please, Mr. well, Director, that we'll fund separate programs by an entity,
but not on a single program with two different funding, am I right? We
had that discussion yesterday.
MR. PABLO: What we're doing here is the funding comes from two type of
funds; one is from the General Fund and the other is from the Special
Revenue Fund. Several years ago, I understand this was done because
when amounts are taken out of the Water Supply Fund, then we also have
to, at that time, it also affects the rates that we charge for water. So when
we see that certain programs should be supplemented from the General
Fund such as in the watershed protection and the Maui Nui Botanical
Garden, you will see the amounts both in the Water Supply Fund and also
a portion coming out from the General Fund.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, in this case, it's allowable then?
MR. PABLO: That's how we have done it, yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
MR. PABLO: For the past years.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just for clarification, because I think we had some
lengthy discussion about funding at two different sources for, you know,
for two different program, which is allowable, yeah. So, thank you.
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Raymond,
thank you for being here. How many employees are employed at your
location?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: There are four besides myself. We have
a nursery manager, a program manager, and a garden manager.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So a total of five?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Four.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Four plus yourself.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Three plus myself.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, three plus yourself. Okay. And the
funding from OED covers the salaries, correct?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: A portion of the salaries, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Some of the salaries. And does it also, the
salaries also include the cost of benefits, TDI, and et cetera?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So that's all in the total of the salaries?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and maybe refresh our memories. At
one time, that property was our County zoo and botanical garden, and then
it fell in really disrepair and there were great issues about the care of the
animals and so forth, and that property started to look really shabby, and
people wouldn't even go there. So you took it over as an organization
from when we, the County, stopped it as a zoo?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: And the cost of running the zoo way
back, and it's been 13, 14 years since it was closed, was about 250,000
and, you know, now the County, you know, we've been getting 175,000
and also bringing to this community another, at least another 100,000 that
we fundraise to support this facility. And, again, all the benefits that the
community gained from our stewardship there.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Well, you know, having visited it
when it was a zoo, and then having the thing fall in disrepair and great
concern about the health and welfare of the animals at that time, it
certainly is different now. Now, you, you refer to it as kind of like a
public park, and I, I agree. So there's a playground there for children; is
that correct?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and that's open to the public and the
children to use?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We have, also have picnic areas. We
don't allow barbecuing, but we have a number of areas for people to
enjoy.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So does your employees care for the entire
property?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So the County Parks does not send
maintenance workers there to, to assist?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: They, once or twice a year they do send
somebody to steam clean the playground and occasion..., we've had to
have parts of it removed recently because of disrepair.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: And they have come and done that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. All right. So, and this may have been
said already, but how long has your organization been there on this
property?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: We got the license to occupy in 2000,
and we were able to start about six months after that. So middle of the
year 2000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, you know, I learned recently that you
were propagating a plant that only had one left in the wild.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and you were trying to propagate so we
could have more stock in that, so we wouldn't lose that plant. And what,
what, what's the status of that project?
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Actually, it's not something we've
actually discussed in public.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: And I can talk to you privately about that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
MS. SCHATTENBURG-RAYMOND: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. And I understand why. Thank
you very much for providing the information and clarification. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for providing us that
information. Thank you. The next one is Maui County Farm Bureau.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We are recommending a line item in the amount
of $425,000. The Maui County Farm Bureau's goals include increasing
public recognition and appreciation of Maui's locally grown products and
continuing to support agriculture as a critical economic sector on Maui.
The Farm Bureau will continue to support its members by providing
educational workshops, professional development programs, improve
communication ventures, and continue to support marketing and
commercial campaigns such as the Grown on Maui Campaign. We did
hear from Mr. Watanabe. I just wanted to include that Maui County Farm
Bureau serves as the financial umbrella organization for five different
commodity groups, and those groups are: the Maui Cattlemen's
Association, the Maui Onion Growers Association, the Maui Association
of Landscape Professionals, the Maui Aloha Aina Association, and the
Maui Coffee Growers Association. Funding for the Maui County Farm
Bureau helps ensure the long term success of Maui's changing and
evolving agricultural industries.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank You. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, Chairman. My questions were answered
by Mr. Watanabe earlier. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you have the amount of fundings, Director,
that these various commodity groups get?
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MS. TEGARDEN: I can certainly get those to you. I know that they total about a
hundred and, $100,000 total, but I don't have the exact breakdown. I will
get those to you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I was wondering exactly,
you know, how much of this 425,000 did go to those groups. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and my question was the same
because I know that we've been getting requests too from some of the
people that deal with organics on the Maui Aloha Aina. So I really would
like to know that because if we do anything, even possibly putting in a
proviso, I just need to know that now. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, and then I guess just so that
we get some understanding. If, if, like you said perhaps 100,000 goes to
the five groups and that leaves, you know, a fair amount of money, that's
325,000. So is, is there a budget for this, for the Farm Bureau so that we
understand where the funding goes and aside from the five groups that you
mentioned and what else, you know, in, in their operations so that we can
understand. How many people are staffing the, the Farm Bureau; do you
know?
MS. TEGARDEN: They have one executive director, they have a part-time
individual who does marketing, and I can get the, the proper
Fiscal Year '08 budget down to you. I have numbers in my head, but I
don't want to misspeak.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, then, then I think it would
help us to have a clear understanding of where the funds actually go to.
So thank you for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I think I asked the questions I wanted to
ask. I did want to ask something about water too because you can't get,
have farming without water, but the instructions were that we may ask that
at another portion of our review. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman. The Maui County Farm Bureau they service
Maui island. Do they have a representation on Lanai and Molokai as
well?
MS. TEGARDEN: I know that in the past they have reached out to Molokai and
Lanai, but most of their members are Maui central.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So, and the only reason I ask is because when we
use the word Maui County it is indicative of all islands and in this case it
is representative of one island. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just a follow-up, and then I know you'll
provide us, yeah, if you provide Mr. Medeiros and Ms. Baisa the answers
to the questions I'd like a copy also. The one question I do have is how
much of this Farm Bureau's expenditure, and if you don't have the
answer, then if you could also provide that, is, goes directly to farming in
the classroom? You know, I'd like to know what percentage or the
amount of dollars that go into that.
MS. TEGARDEN: That will...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do you know the answer? Oh, okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: That will be in the budget as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: Off the top of my head I think it's about 30 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: About 30 percent of the 300,000?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: Of the, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If you provide that...
MS. TEGARDEN: I will, I will get all of that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: I, I don't want to misspeak on that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I won't belabor the point. Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I heard 30 percent also. Next one is UH College of
Tropical Agriculture -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and Human Resources.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Can I ask one more question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Short.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Short question. No, I'm just
looking at these two items side-by-side. Is the botanical garden something
that would fit with the Farm Bureau?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, I am not sure of the qualifications to become a Farm
Bureau member; however, I am sure that they would be open to
discussions with the Botanical Garden.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Coming back to UH College of Tropical
Agriculture and Human Resources. Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank, thank you. We are recommending $120,000 line
item. The University of Hawaii's College of Tropical Agriculture and
Human Resources serves the public and Maui County through cooperative
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extension services and the agricultural experiment station. Together they
develop products and research based, research-based information to
enhance diversified agriculture, protect the environment, and help families
and communities meet their goals. Thanks to the County of Maui's
funding in the past CTAHR's extension agents and researchers are able to
carry out programs that directly benefit Maui County's communities.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no question at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. So this program and
this grant, does UH College of Tropical Agriculture where are they located
here on Maui?
MS. TEGARDEN: At Maui Community College.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so, at Maui Community College
do they have an active agriculture facility, growing facility there?
MS. TEGARDEN: I, the, the funds that we go to, to help with are actually for,
they have some space up at the Kula Ag Park, and I, I know that they have
office space at MCC. I don't know if they have a, a growing facility there
at the, they have a garden.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Help me understand the connection between
tropical agriculture and human resources?
MS. TEGARDEN: You know, I, I don't know. That is, that is, it's just an old
name that they had come up with. . . . (Inaudible).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I think there's a lot of old names that we
need to change, and we discussed some yesterday. And I think Council
Chair Mateo brings up a good point. Many organizations are called Maui
something, something, something, and they service Molokai and Lanai, so
they should carry the Maui County name if they do, do service the three
islands because, you know, we see Maui a lot and yet, you know, does the
funding also help Molokai and Lanai. So that may be a consideration, but,
so their human resources part we don't know what's that about?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, for clarification, CTAHR does reach out to Molokai
and Lanai as well, and it was, it's established through the University of
Hawaii. So we don't have a lot of input as to, as to their name, but...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So this is the CTAHR program?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . (End of tape 2B). . . what's the State
funding to, to be compiled with our County funding? Do you know what
the State gives this program?
MS. TEGARDEN: I do not know what the State's exact portion of this funding
is. I do know that CTAHR does rely on our Maui County funding to be
able to do the projects that they do do in Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: And I'm not sure if they're getting cuts for next year as well,
but we can get that information.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And you may have mentioned this, but is
this program also the same or connected to the UH Extension Service in
Kula?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. With the farmers?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. So what, what
do we get as a product or, out of this funding?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, as we heard from Mr. Keyser yesterday some of the
projects that we've, that they've done last year with our funding on
Molokai, CTAHR activities supported by OED have led to the use of an
economical local source of plant nutrients from a byproduct of a local
company that processes fish and livestock waste. And after a workshop
training for growers on evaluation and the use of the fish and bone meal
product, growers confirmed that it was effective and competitive in price
with commercial and organic nutrient sources that were imported. As a
result of the work, farmers on Molokai and Lanai have purchased 25 tons
of the fish bone meal. So they do a lot of research projects that, in the end,
help our farmers move forward.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I know that Mr. Keyser
came here and, and made testimony on several different items here, but
this CTAHR is also the infamous taro, you know, GMO testing or research
arm as well. And so, is any of that funding now going to CTAHR here,
locally, being used for that kind of research?
MS. TEGARDEN: Our funding, as we understand it, does not go for that
research.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Is, is any of that being
supported in any way, you know, at all?
MS. TEGARDEN: We do not have any grants that are supporting that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, just for the Members, we received their
package on 4/13/09, and they have a breakdown on their budget showing
where each one of the, I guess the items go. You know, so it's like
livestock production. There's, there's various demonstration projects. So
if any of the Members want a breakdown of that, I know that 4-H also
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receives, like, $4,500. So the breakdown is there if people are interested.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. You know, University of
Hawaii, State taking away the TAT, you know, there will be some
challenges here with this one. I mean this, you know, a great program and
all, but...Ms. Tegarden, did you folks factor in the possibility, I mean if
we did not get the TAT, what would have been your Department's
recommendation for this, in terms of appropriation?
MS. TEGARDEN: I think as we look to that scenario we're going to have to go
back to the drawing board for, for everything. So we haven't necessarily
started making any cuts. We were, when we put this budget together we
were including that TAT revenue. So if that does not come to pass, we all
need to go back to the drawing board, and we will come with a, another
recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for that comment because I
think when the Mayor was here, initially I, I brought that issue up because,
you know, it's imminent now. Looks like we're not going to get that
$18 million or so. So some major adjustments are going to have to be
considered. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina, for bringing that subject
up again. Let's not forget $18 million. Next item is Molokai Livestock
Cooperative.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yeah, thank you. We're recommending a $35,000 line item
for operations of the Livestock Cooperative. The Livestock Cooperative
is providing the Molokai community with a necessary service especially to
prevent homeowners from slaughtering animals in their backyards. This is
a health and safety issue. The slaughterhouse currently receives 12
animals a week with about 700 to 850 pounds a week being sold to
wholesalers such as supermarkets and restaurants. The Cooperative
constantly encourages their membership to promote Molokai beef and
swine in hopes of bringing up their revenue to become self-sustaining.
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They are currently looking to pick up some school contracts that could be
one of their new major accounts. Although the closing of Molokai Ranch
has not affected their operation, they need to find more accounts which are
limited, of course, on Molokai to make ends meet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you, and I'd just like to make additions
to the Molokai Livestock Cooperative. This particular organization runs
and operates that Molokai slaughterhouse that had been in the making for
16 years that the County Councils of past had supported year, after year,
after year. They finally did get their own stamp. So they are a legitimate
operation on Molokai. Unfortunately, when the bottom fell out for our
community, they continued to struggle; however, there are, there are
ranchers like, for example, the newcomer Sakamoto who now is bringing,
is bringing cattle to the island. There is also, hopefully Balthazar who is
also going to be bringing couple of hundred head of cattle to Molokai as

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

well. There is also Duvauchelle's who's continuing to increase his herd
on Molokai as well.
So with this increase of stock on Molokai, the slaughterhouse, you know,
hopefully will become a real valuable economic engine for our
community. So, hence, the $35,000 even though it is with a reduction, at
this point, does provide my community with a hope. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. If there's regular barge services maybe we
can utilize the facility even more from, from ranchers here on, on Maui.
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that concludes the Grants and
Disbursements for Agricultural Promotion. Now, we go into Grants and
Disbursement for Culture, Arts and Tourism. And the first one is Maui
Community Theatre for Iao Theatre improvements. Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We're recommending a $50,000 line item and
this is to replace the grand drape curtain track and replace the lay curtains
and some of the flooring in the auditorium. The decrease, of course,
comes from the fact that the funding last year was specifically for the air
conditioning and ventilation system which I think many of us have now
gone down to the Iao Theatre and have been cool as we watch the
performances. So this 50,000 is just to continue making improvements.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next item is Aloha Festivals to be allocated
equally to Maui, Molokai, Lanai, and Hana.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. We're recommending a $35,000 line item to
be distributed equally between each island's celebration. This month-long
event that takes place in East Maui, Molokai, Lanai, and Central Maui
honors our host culture and recognizes the multi-cultural makeup of our
community This year's theme will honor the legacy of our ancestors and
last year the dollars were maximized by creating over 20 events
Countywide with community partnerships.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question is with regard to the State
funding. I noticed that there are festivals and some serious cuts taking
place on Oahu, and I guess throughout the State budget. What is the
likelihood that the Aloha Festivals will continue? Because I know that
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with the meager amount that we provide it's not going to make it if they
pull the funding. So do you have any feedback on that?
MS. TEGARDEN: The funding that they have received in the past comes from
HTA, and it matches the funding that the County has provided. I will say
that some of the Maui County areas decided not to take the HTA funding,
but still had a very successful event. The four islands are very resourceful
when it comes to fmding other funding sources, so I feel confident that
they will be able to proceed with the festivals for '09.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, regardless of whether they get State
funding or not?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is my feeling.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Let's hope it's a correct feeling
MS. TEGARDEN: Hope it is.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. What is the estimated, I guess, funding
from HTA that is provided for Maui County for this program?
MS. TEGARDEN: In the past it's, we have awarded 10,000 to each of the areas
and HTA has awarded up to 12,000 for each of the areas, but East Maui
actually, in the past, has decided not to take the HTA funding, and it still
had a very successful event.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. So is this
money being, then directed to Aloha Festivals or, I want to make a
distinction between Festivals of Aloha which we conducted in this last
year versus that of Aloha Festivals?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. It should be Festivals of Aloha and this '08
festival was admin..., Maui Visitor's Bureau stepped up to the plate to be
the fiscal organizer for the festival this year. Next year we're looking at
Tri-Isle Resource, Tri-Isle RC&D to be the fiscal agent for the funding,
but it, it should read Festivals of Aloha.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then the funding then
you're talking about that may be HTA funding is going to be under the
Aloha Festivals title or banner?
MS. TEGARDEN: You know what, I'm not exactly sure how they are going to,
to work, to work that. Again, both, both the County and HTA had
awarded the grant to Aloha Festivals back, the last time that it was
awarded to them was back in '07. So I'm not sure how HTA is going to
handle that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So we're not looking
forward to '09 being an HTA funded Aloha Festivals program then?
MS. TEGARDEN: We don't receive the money from HTA.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: It would go to, for instance, in this case, it would go to
Tri-Isle directly for fiscal year -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So...
MS. TEGARDEN: --for calendar year '09. So we, we stay out of that regardless.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So Tri-Isle will, if the
funds are available be the, the, the entity then that would perhaps seek
those HTA funds if they are available.
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And, Ms. Tegarden,
thank you for your comments especially regarding Hana. And regardless,
you know, of HTA funding or not, Hana will always conduct its festivals.
And the people of Hana still call it Aloha Week. I don't care how many
times you change the name because our Aloha Week goes for one week.
It goes from Sunday... Saturday to Saturday. And our tradition has been
not to change that.
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My comment is these festivals or whatever name you want to give it really
provides an economic benefit for our County to the visitor industry. And
so, I, I think, you know, this is money well invested by the County that
does have a benefit for the visitor industry. So, you know, I would have
loved to see the funding kept level, but thank you for the funding as it
exists. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, this is, this is an organization that, for, for
those of us who are familiar with Aloha Festivals know that Council Chair
Kawano for Molokai was chair of the Molokai Aloha Week Celebration
for 40 years, and it was more than just a time to party. It was a time to
recall the, the many incredible contributions of our host culture and the
importance of who we are as, as people celebrating under the umbrella of
the host culture. And for our community that does not get a lot of tourists
or visitors to our island, this for us is a ko'aina celebration. It is a
celebration of pride of the kanaka maoli of our community So it is really
a valuable asset for, especially our small rural communities. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's been all said. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, for your information the
ordinance says Aloha Week Hawaii, Inc., dba Aloha Festivals. And if we
need to change the name to its proper name which is Festivals of Aloha,
then we need to make a change in the ordinance. Okay. Next up is the
Maui Fest. Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Oh, I'm sorry. I apologize. Yes, Maui Fest we are
recommending a $25,000 line item. This agency brings foreign, local, and
Polynesian films and entertainment to remote communities to expose local
residents to films that they might not otherwise get the chance to see.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. Who's the recipient of this
grant?
MS. TEGARDEN: Ohana Makamae.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: The Maui Fest; right?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Department. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, just one...yeah, back,
backtrack, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Are these provided for on
Molokai and Lanai as well?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, they are.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: They are, okay, great. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next one is the Film Industry Promotion.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we are recommending an $80,000 line item. The
mission of the Film Industry office is to keep Maui top of mind as a film
destination. We are in competition not only with our neighbor islands, but
also international destinations as well. Some highlights from this past
year, we had the television shows John & Kate Plus Eight; Denise
Richards, It's Complicated; and Maui Choppers film here in Maui County.
Catalog shoots included Land's End, Victoria Secret and Sears. And, of
course, our crowning jewel, The Tempest staring Helen Mirin was filmed
in Lanai bringing in $6 million to our local economy. A total of
10 million in all has been put back into our economy as a result of the film
industry. And we also help support the Maui Film Festival through this
line item as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman Does this film
industry promotion have to be for films or can it be for presentation of
slides or projects that are not film?
MS. TEGARDEN: We do all the film, television. Our Commissioner Benita
Brazier has also put on workshops for local filmmakers or, or people who
are interested in getting into that type of work. So...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So this would include documentaries on
hysterical [sic], historical...
MS. TEGARDEN: And hysterical.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And that too, but historical events or, is that
included?
MS. TEGARDEN: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we've done that in the past.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you very much. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And,
you know, while I support that this industry brings in dollars into our
economy, one of the things that I am concerned with, because, you know,
having been on Lanai during the shooting of The Tempest, is that there
needs to be a component within this category that makes sure that cultural
resources are not being destroyed or inundated and that there needs to be
that kind of monitoring that goes on so that these shoots can, in fact,
continue to happen without that, even the perception of them inundating
what people might consider as important places. So as you look at Maui
County across the board, wherever these events may occur, that there
should be within your component here that kind of a staffing, or
requirement, or something that, that it ties in with that.
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MS. TEGARDEN: May I-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: --may I just respond to that? Our film commissioner
Ms. Brazier is very, very sensitive to ensuring that when we go out, or
when people come for film, or television, or catalog shoots they do respect
the culture, and they leave it better than how they left it. I know that for
the Lanai shoot we also worked closely with Kepa Maly to make sure that
things were happening as they should be. However, if there were things
done that shouldn't have been done we would like to, to know about that,
but we will take your, it's a very good point, and we will continue to
ensure that we always monitor those types of things.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, and thank you. I want to
also say that, and I agree with you that Benita did a wonderful job. And I
did talk to Kepaa concerning some of those incidences, and he is also in
agreement that there needs to be more monitoring or concern for that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Deidre, with the loss or, or potential
change in terms of the, I think it's the incentive funds and the tax credits
coming at the State Legislature, what, if any, impact is that going to have
on the attractiveness of films or, you know, producers to actually come
here and conduct productions if they're not getting, I think it was Act 221
or something, those monies?
MS. TEGARDEN: That's a very good question, and our film commissioner is
actually in Los Angeles right now with other location managers at the big
L.A. show that meets with all of the producers, all of the, you know,
writers to continue keeping Maui County top of mind. It will certainly
have an impact; however, a lot of the larger films that we see coming to
Maui want to come to Maui because it is Maui. You know, they're
coming to Maui County because it is Maui and while, of course, those
incentives play a role a lot of, a lot of the people coming here want to
come here because it is Maui, and the graciousness and the hospitality that
our hotel industry shows to the crews that are here we get very, very good
responses. But, of course, that is something, something to look at, but I
know that Ms. Brazier is constantly out there, and they're over there right
now.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I know that there was a little
bit of controversy about one of the reality T.V. shows that took place in
Lahaina, so I, I'm just hoping that, as Member Kaho'ohalahala said, that
there is some sensitivity, and not having Maui or its people portrayed in a
way that, and it sends the wrong message to the general public.
MS. TEGARDEN: Exactly, and I think that was right when I came on board that
issue was happening and, you know, it's always that very fine line. Do,
you know, where do you draw the line between what is appropriate, what
is making, showing our culture the way that we want to, want it to be
shown. But I think because of that reality show our office also, we don't
take anything that wants to come. We take the projects that we know are
going to reflect our community the best and there are plenty of other
television shows, reality shows, MTV shows, VH1 shows that want to film
here, but because they're not quite appropriate we, we don't encourage
them.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I really appreciate that because I know
that it created a little bit of negative publicity in, in many people's minds.
Do you know if Ms Skinner's position, I guess there was talk that her
position would be eliminated as film commissioner, I believe, at the State
level. Do you know if that has been defunded?
MS. TEGARDEN: The last I, I heard she still, she still had her position, but I
think, again, it's all up in the air and, and everybody is just on pins and
needles waiting.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, you know, because I don't think that
bodes well for us because there's a process to go through where, you
know, they work with the neighbor islands very closely, and I think the
little money that we put in may not be significant enough. I'm not saying,
by any means, that we should get rid of what we're doing, but if we're, if
we're on our own, so to speak, then I'd like to know that too because it
may mean that we have to take a different approach and possibly look at,
at least level funding. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Tegarden, I believe
Kauai seems to be at the forefront, yeah, for generating a lot of film
activity there. Do you know, offhand, what their county gives their film, I
guess, industry department or OED?
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MS. TEGARDEN: I don't have that number off the top of my head. We can
certainly get it. Kauai is very, works very closely with the Japanese
market also. So they get a lot of Japanese shows and catalog shoots over
there, but to answer your question I don't have that number, but I can get
it for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, they, they seem to attract a lot of the
blockbuster films over there, so I don't know what their secret is, but, you
know, I can concur with Member Kaho' ohalahala's issue on maintaining
sensitivity, and, you know, we certainly don't want Maui to be a place
known for hysterical films as, you know, Councilmember Medeiros used,
you know, but spawned a new phrase there, Bill. But anyway thank you,
Ms. Tegarden. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. That's a good one. Maui Arts and Cultural
Center.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. We are recommending a $290,000 line item
for Maui Arts and Cultural Center. This primarily goes for operations. As
we know, Maui Arts and Cultural Center does amazing outreach work
with our youth, with the non-profits, and the arts, in general, are a
wonderful economic benefit to our community So we, we thank the
MACC for all that they do and recommend a $290,000 line item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, just for operations?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, operations and marketing. I'm sorry, so about
60 percent goes toward repair and maintenance, 35 percent goes to
marketing and PR, and the remainder of our funding goes for community
and outreach projects.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman, just have a comment. I was reading today's
Maui News. Honored school principals include two Maui County
Principals and one of them is Ms. Espiritu from Molokai and the other one
is Ms. Yamafuji who is from Pomaikai School. And as you know Maui
Arts and Cultural Center educational department has been providing
training and resource to teachers as well as to my favorite school
Pomaikai. So thank, thank you for all what you do, MACC. Special
Events Program.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we are recommending a $45,000 line item. This fund
goes to support local sporting and special events that do not fall within our
other current categories. Projects that we have funded in the past include
the Barrio Fiesta, Paniolo Parade, Upcountry Fair, Maui Baseball Expo.
And these, this funding is, is not intended to bring functions from, from
the mainland. It's meant to support smaller projects here in Maui that
don't fall under our, our other categories.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is this line item disbursed by your office or,
or is there a recipient?
MS. TEGARDEN: It is, it is a large pot of money, for lack of a better word, and
people send in grant applications and that's how it's disbursed.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is Maui Visitors Bureau.
Department?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. We are recommending a line item for
$3.8 million. The economy of Maui County depends on the health of our
visitor industry. The mission of Maui Visitors Bureau is to keep Maui top
of mind to those visitors who travel. And I'd like to share some statistics
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on the visitor industry. The visitor industry is estimated to bring in
$83 million in real property tax which is approximately 40 percent of our
revenues for this County. Visitors in Fiscal Year '08 spent over
$3.6 billion in Maui County and that goes to keep our businesses afloat.
According to the 2007 Maui County data book there are 65,000 non-ag
jobs in Maui County; 35,000 or 53 percent of those are visitor industry
related jobs. And these, that does not include retail, restaurant, or other
service industry jobs. If you add in all those ancillary jobs that makes up
almost 75 percent of our economy being reliant on a successful healthy
visitor industry.
The marketing helps keep our residents employed. In the past, the visitor
industry has brought in the TAT funds that are used as a source of revenue
for our County operations. The economic impact from the visitor industry
is very significant to Maui County and that is why we defmitely support
the work of the Maui Visitors Bureau and their continued funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair Before I ask my
question, the time you plan to set aside for lunch break, Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Noon.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay, yeah. No because I anticipate this
may get a lot of discussion so, you know, if you do plan to go past 12:00
on this or do we break.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll go on till we, we're done.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's your intention. Okay. All right. So be
it. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ms. Tegarden, so you're recommending just a
1 percent reduction on MVB. So, you know, we had Ms. Vend here the
other, yesterday testifying. So based on this, your recommendation, and I
know you stated you're looking at, you had listed your priorities as to your
level of funding adjustments. So with this, you will . . .(End of tape
3A). . . continue. What, what, in addition to, how will you help MVB, I
guess, with their goals and objective because I know OED has a role to
play with, with our visitor industry?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, thank you for the question. We work very closely with
Maui Visitors Bureau in all areas including reaching out to our
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international partners. The Visitors Bureau this past year has just been
going above and beyond ensuring that they are doing target marketing to
our, to the individuals and the groups that they know are most likely to
come to Maui County. However we can assist them whether it's through
letters or phone calls, you know, we, we do our utmost because we realize
that our economy really depends on our visitor industry, And while we all
talk about diversification and, and diversification is of the utmost
importance, right now there is not another industry that is going to be able
to step up and provide the jobs that our, our visitor industry provides.
And it was funny, I was talking to someone the other day who has, really,
I mean nothing to do with the visitor industry, but he was saying, you
know, it just dawns on, dawned on me we really rely on the visitors, the
visitor industry because there are less people coming in my stores now to
shop for these home products because the people that shop for the home
products are the residents. And if the hotels have to layoff people, or the
restaurants close, or the hair salon people are losing clients, you know,
they're not out there buying, buying goods as well.
So I think we have to, and I, I know you all, I'm preaching to the choir,
but the trickle down effect of our visitor industry is enormous. So at every
chance we get we, we work with the visitor industry, the hotel association,
how we can help, but we believe in this funding.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and my, and my last question now, I
would hope that, you know, you guys can do your part to promote, I
brought it up yesterday to Ms. Vend, the staycation issue. You know, we,
we got to do something for our residents here because the residents have a
big part in keeping the visitor industry alive. So if the word can, you, you
guys can help get the word out to the large property owners about doing
some kind of kamaaina rates. But I know they do, but still some of these
kamaaina rates are, you know, $250 kamaaina rate.
You know, we were on Lanai for our Budget hearing and as the Chairman
mentioned, you know, single digit occupancy. I mean to me it would
make more sense put somebody in the hotel room even if you got to slash
your rate, you know, better than having nobody there. They're going to
patronize the hotel, you know, with the restaurants and so forth, and if not,
they're going to go outside and patronize, you know, the other businesses.
So if you guys can do your part to work with the MVB on, on that aspect I
think that will certainly help our economy a little bit.
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MS. TEGARDEN: We will certainly do that. Also, last year when the Mayor
and her Administration went out to talk to the different industries about
the economic effects that they were seeing on their businesses we did meet
with the visitor industry and the hotels at that time were, you know, they
started talking about the staycations, it was the new word. So I think we,
we will definitely follow up with the Visitor Bureau and Hotel Association
to see how we can really, you know, get that from the talking point to, to
making it happen.
I do know that the Prince was giving, was doing $50 rooms about a month
or so ago, but I -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: --it didn't last long enough.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Anything, and anything during the slow
period because I look at it as a win-win thing. Thank you. Thank you,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'd just like to share a comment. You
know, I concur with Ms. Tegarden, you know, the local folks now come
up to, to me sometimes and say, you know, how they rely on the, the
visitor industry because nobody shopping, you know, in those stores that,
you know, rely on, on the industry. One scary thing, you know, coming
back from Lanai, you know, you used to see a lot of cars, right on Front
Street. And when you see Front Street empty it's scary. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair I, you know, fully support
what Member Molina has put on the table and the comments that are made
by the Director about the breadth of the effects of the tourist industry on,
on Maui and actually on our entire State. That I think that many times we
don't make the connection between that annoying person who's looking at
his map in front of you on the road or the person who is, you know, "in
your way on the beach or whatever," and the fact that we have an
economy that lives, and it does because of tourism. And when I was
trying to deal with the B&B ordinance it was brought home very clear to
me that when people stopped coming there were a lot of harmful effects.
The other day I was very, very sad to receive an email from one of the
folks that I got to know during that process and to hear that Brandon Shim
of Pauwela Café is having to close down. And that is a direct response to
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the lack of visitors in that area. And here was a young, local boy, with a
very successful restaurant, and it's gone down the tubes. So, you know, I
know these are hard times and like everybody else, in fairness, I'd like to
see everybody bite the bullet and take a part of the cuts that are being
made, but I think we better be very careful how we apply cuts because we
do not want to sink our economy. And this business is our economy.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Deidre, because we're contemplating
that the transient accommodations tax, which is largely, I mean from my
understanding anyway, this is what funds, you know, the $3 8 million are
the bulk of the monies that come into the budget to support the visitor
industry. Since we're more than likely going to lose that money do you
have any recommendation as to where we would replace $3.8 million?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that question. You know, the TAT funds fund
many of our, of our non-profits. So that would certainly be a loss to our,
our community in general. I think as we look at the fact that the TAT may
be kept by the State, I think we all have to come back to the table with
recommendations. I know they were talking yesterday about tax increases
or, you know, the State's going to allow the, the county taxing authority. I
mean there are a lot of recommendations out there. I don't feel
comfortable saying which one is the best one, but I think it's a group
collaboration between Administration, and the Council, and the industry
as well to come up with those recommendations.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and I, I'm sure that the Mayor, you
know, because, you know, obviously she's hoping that this would not
happen, but she gave us a budget in anticipation that that cut would not be
made. So I would really look forward to, you know, us collaborating on
how we can achieve the goal if it is important to protect the money that's
going to Maui Visitor's Bureau, then I think we have to just fmd out, well,
okay, if that's important what are the other things that will come at either
the expense of that allocation or how will we replace the money so that the
budget, as close to as being presented by the Mayor, can actually be put
forward and be funded fully. So I look forward to having a helping hand
from the Administration. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. You know, I
want to introduce, and specifically because, Deidre, you bring up, and you
say that we need to come back to the table with recommendations. You
also said that diversification is of utmost importance. Yesterday, when
MVB was here to testify she also indicated, Terryl, that it was time to
think outside the box. And as I'm listening to all that's going on right now
in this discussion we seem to be continuing to perpetuate the idea that
funding this, as an important entity, is merely what we must do because it
represents jobs. But that doesn't lead us to fmd any other solution than
maintaining what we have already maintained for the last 50 years, you
know, in the State's history in the, in the visitor industry.
So I need to ask then, then what are those directions that are going to be
different in terms of why we continue to fund the visitor industry and
that's going to make it more viable than it has, has been in the past? And
when Member Baisa explains and says that we don't make a connection to
the annoying person, whether on the beach or on the road, to the fact that,
that they are connected to the visitor industry, I think the same can be said
that we don't make a connection to the cost that we bear as a result of this
industry looking at infrastructure, looking at traffic, looking at housing,
affordable housing. We don't make a connection to that as well.
So maybe it's time for us to truly understand what this industry's impact
is. And if we're going to, in fact, look for diversifying this, thinking
outside the box, then I need to know how we're going to make it different
in this cycle of funding. So can you answer that?
MS. TEGARDEN: Lucky I prepared for that one. No, all joking aside and all, all
seriousness. You know, I, the, the best part about working in, for the, for
the Mayor and the Office of Economic Development is the amazing
diversified organizations that we get to partner with. We get to partner
with the Maui Visitors Bureau which is, you know, supports our tourism
which is our economic engine. We get to work with Maui Economic
Development Board that is out there looking at high tech jobs, stem jobs,
you know, getting women more involved with technology. We have the
Farm Bureau who's out there educating our youth about agriculture.
And you know, everything is, is, is so dependent on one another and when
we went out with the Mayor late last year to talk to the different industries,
you know, every industry was, was saying the same thing, whether it was
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the, the farmers, or the visitors, or the high tech people, is that we're all
connected. You know, ag, talk about thinking outside the box, is working
very closely with the tourism industry on ag tourism. Ag tourism not only
is there for our visitors, you know, coming up with a fresh new product for
our visitors to, to come see, it's helping our, it's, it's there for our residents
as well. I can't tell you how many times I've gone up to the Lavender
Farm or Surfing Goat Dairy with my own friends who live here as well as
visitors who come. You know, and that money trickles back down, and
it's helping the farmers who are providing the, the different, you know,
things for the value-added products.
There is eco-tourism. Here is the environment partnering with the visitor
industry. And, again, the eco-tourism not only helps our, it's there for our
visitors, it's there for our residents as well and for our island. You have
edu-tourism, volun-tourism, you know, people coming over here to
volunteer at the Pacific Whale Foundation. You know, maybe, maybe we
need to do more outreach to our residents and visitors making sure that,
you know, when the visitors come this is something we want to do. When
the visitors do come here, you know, respect our culture, respect what
makes Maui Maui. I think that sometimes we, we forget about that, but
that's one thing we've been talking to the Visitors Bureau about is doing
an educational campaign before the people come here.
And I don't know if I'm just pontificating and if I've answered your, your
question, but there's definitely more that, that we need, we need to do, and
we are diversifying, and we're doing all the, the things that we're
supposed to be doing as a County. It just so happens that we're in a really
tough economic time right now, and we, we need to work together, and we
need to realize that all of these industries are reliant upon one another.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You know, I, while I was at the
State Legislature, obviously, this has been a major issue as well in terms
of funding, and we spent $60 million annually to the HTA to help promote
an industry. At the same time, I've been reminded by a book that's titled
The Devil's Bargain. And if you haven't had an opportunity to, to take a
look at that, it starts out with describing Maui as being the ideal tourist
destination, and we can speak to that because we have been achieving that
kind of, of recognition globally, and we have received many, many awards
for Maui County. But The Devil's Bargain also says that if you choose to
accept this industry as your industry, then you must accept all of the
consequences that come with the industry.
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And perhaps we need to take a look at understanding what those
consequences are and, therefore, you know, I would recommend that we
take a closer look to understand if the industry, and, and these are the main
points of The Devil's Bargain. One, is that the money that normally
comes into this industry goes out to corporate headquarters that are
elsewhere, outside of Hawaii. So a lot of the dollars that are raised here in
Hawaii go back to some other location.
Two, is that it is the original attraction to a place that will be impacted the
most because what was now attractive, now does not attract people any
longer. As a result of that the industry tries now to reinvent itself to make
it look like it's a new thing. So we, we, consider all of these promotions
and these ads that now help you to take...like you just went down a whole
list of eco-tourism, edu-tourism, volun-tourism. You know, so we're
trying to reinvent this industry because it is expected for us to do that by
The Devil's Bargain.

And then lastly, it says that the people who are most affected are the
people that come from that area. And if you look right here at home, the
people that are most affected now are our own people, because they're no
longer being employed in an industry that doesn't pay the best wages.
Look at Lanai, you know, we talked about its occupancy being down.
Who are being affected now, are the, the local residents who have
supported this industry to have allowed it to become a part of Lanai's
reality. And now, today, even the, the owner made a comment about this
industry is not going to be viable. You know, that, that says to me then, if
these are all the symptoms, and perhaps The Devil's Bargain is being
fulfilled, then if we do not take note of that, and we do not pay attention to
how we're going to carry on these ideas of thinking out of the box, how to
look at diversifying, then we are, in, in fact, falling on track with the
Devil's, with The Devil's Bargain.
So, I think it will be worth our time to take a closer look so we understand
now how best to use these dollars and if it is an important component for
us. We spend $4 billion buying food from elsewhere, from farmers that
are elsewhere in the world. If we took a small percentage of that and
made that become an important part of where we live, in Hawaii, to grow
our food, if we change that by 10 percent, we're talking about increasing
monies to be used back home at 10 percent of 4 billion, that equals 400--is
my math okay now?--$400 million that we could be bringing right back
home. Is that not worth taking a closer look at in comparison to what we
need to spend continuously on an industry and perhaps looking at an
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industry that now would refocus, perhaps, some of that attention to the fact
that we need to grow our own food once more. You talked about how
food became an important part of our -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho'ohalahala, come to the question please.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, so I just want to know how
we're going to spend these dollars looking for directions then that are
going to, to help us to truly address this situation, and perhaps these times
are important times that help us to take a closer look and looking at that as
being more proactive than being reactive. So I, so I want to understand
how we're going to use these dollars to really seek those directions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MS. TEGARDEN: For, for clarification are, are you talking about the MVB
dollars or the dollars in our...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes, I'm talking about MVB
dollars because you, you mentioned about diversification being of utmost
importance. Then, then how are we going to use those dollars, and then
what do they include in terms of that diversification, you know?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, the, the funding that, Maui Visitors Bureau uses the
funding that the County awards them for marketing and for keeping Maui
top of mind. Within that they are continuing their marketing efforts
towards the, the niche markets of, you know, ag tourism, romance,
eco-tourism, all of the ones that Ms. Vencl had talked about yesterday. Of
course, we continually need to look at our, our home and our economy,
and how we are going to diversify so that not all of our eggs are in one
basket.
And I think that we are doing that in our office through the other grants
that we award. For instance, to MEO for the business development
corporation, for entrepreneurs, the Farm Bureau, MEDB So I, I think that
our office, as a whole, is trying to address those exact questions through
the people with whom we partner.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then in terms of the
marketing dollars then, do you know what percentage of, of this amount
specifically goes to marketing?
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MS. TEGARDEN: I can provide you with their overall budget; however, I would
say that most, most of it, it's all, it's all marketing one way or the other
whether it's helping to fund an event that is, is coming here like the
Mercedes. But it's all for market...it's marketing. The money is...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mostly marketing.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yeah, marketing, keeping Maui top of mind, and making sure
that we get the visitors here to Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So then just one more question.
Do you think then this is not the, the line item in which we should be
looking at diversification then?
MS. TEGARDEN: When I was talking about diversification, and, and perhaps I
wasn't being clear enough, I was talking about diversifying our economy
in, in general and that currently the visitor industry is our economic
engine. So through the, all of the grants that we award through OED, we
are looking at diversification. I, I didn't mean that we should take, look at
the 3.8 million to the Visitors Bureau and, and taking that and, and
diversifying that necessarily. I don't, I'm, I'm sorry if I was unclear.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So then by that I'm trying
to understand then that there are other components of your Department
then would be supporting the idea of diversification?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, and, and again I think that when you look at the different
grants that we award, you know, agriculture, technology, small business,
entrepreneurship, environmental protection, I think that that directly
speaks to diversification. I think that the 3 8 million that we've
recommended for the Maui Visitors Bureau, you know, stay there for their
mission, and we look at the rest of our budget as how to continue to
diversify what it is we do here on Maui and why we love to call Maui
home.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Chair, thank you. And
I'll, I'll try to work closely with your Department to consider looking at
those ideas for diversification other than just the visitor industry. Thank
you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. It seems like you're going to have some
short-term and long-term goals in trying to achieve that. It's not that easy.
Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And I'll try be as
short as can, because I don't want my colleagues to get hysterical about
lunch.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So for, my first question is what is the reach
of MVB? Do they reach to Molokai, Lanai, and Hana?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because certainly in Hana our largest
employer is our Hotel Hana Maui, and it is our economic engine for our
community. So we are really concerned when that business starts to see,
you know, very challenging times as they are now. So we certainly would
like to do what we can for the visitor industry. As has been said before,
we have so many people that work for the visitor industry and the trickle
down effect, when positive is great, and when negative is also great.
The marketing strategies of MVB, I'm not sure, but you say your office
works closely with them. My suggestion, under market, marketing
strategies, especially for Molokai, Lanai, and Hana, were to be sure that
they check with the local community because maybe some areas don't
want to be marketed. They don't want to be revealed as in the book. And
we are suffering the consequences of that book right now in Hana, because
that book, you know, suggests that people disregard culture, sacred sites,
private property, and just go on it, you know, so there are some areas in
Maui County that really don't want too much advertisement outside of our
visitor accommodation, you know, areas. So I would say, you know, just
be cautious of that.
And, but certainly, you know, for, for Hana, as I said, we, we, we need to
keep our hotel viable and, and being productive because without them we
have smaller employers, but many people suffer in our community on
layoffs, reduced hours, and so forth. What can you tell me about how
your work with MVB touches, like, Molokai, Lanai, and Hana?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that. And just as a point of clarification the
book to which you are referring, our office and MVB had nothing to do
with, with that, with that publication.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I, no, I realize that. I hope you didn't
think I was saying -MS. TEGARDEN: No. No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --that. What I'm saying is we're trying to
deal with the negative impacts of what that book created.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, and, and those are far reaching.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. TEGARDEN: So to answer your question there is staff in Molokai, they,
and Lanai. There is no staff, per se, in East Maui; however, many of the
campaigns that the Visitors Bureau puts on specifically talk about, you
know, Hana, and I am sure that if you would like to see their actual
marketing plan or something we could get that to you or, or Ms. Vencl
could explain it in, in more depth, but we could get that to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I would appreciate getting a copy of that
because it could help me to better understand the strategies that they have
in their marketing. And, again, since it has a reach to Molokai, Lanai, and
Hana, and all of Maui island, here, again, the title I would have hoped
their organization would have been called Maui County Visitors Bureau,
or Maui, Molokai, Lanai Visitors Bureau. Because then it definitely
shows, you know, what areas or, or that they're working on all the islands
to improve the economy of those islands and communities through their
work as a visitors bureau, but, but, thank you for your responses. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Ms. Tegarden, perhaps when you
have your discussions with the Visitors Bureau and with the Hotel
Association, perhaps you could throw on the table opportunity for
discussion to have the Hotel Association consider contributions during
lean times and having them help support the Maui Visitors Bureau through
a direct contribution other than the consideration of TAT, which is not

-95-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

their monies. It's been monies that have been paid by the visitor. And I
do know that the multiple properties have their own existing advertising
and marketing budgets. Perhaps during lean times they can make a
contribution to help the County of Maui because all these years, you
know, we have been carrying the bulk of the weight. And unfortunately
when we get to years like this, when TAT becomes questionable, that
virtually is the source. Without the source we are limited. And perhaps
though the, that organization can help us during these difficult times by
helping in the event of a cut in this particular area. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair My colleagues bring up
many very interesting dynamics. I remember growing up not long ago
that the world was falling, that agriculture, large agriculture was on the
way out, and many of us thought not in our lifetime, maybe our children or
grandchildren, my generation. It's gone. We only have two viable and
both of them are struggling just to survive here on Maui and that's it. So
we talk about agriculture, sustainability, great words. We had that when
we were young. We had our own gardens, we had all of that stuff. We
talk about sustainability, same old thing again. We only going back to
where we were, and I have no problem with that.
But there's a presence right now, today, here and now. Yes, change isn't
coming. Yes, we need to continue to work at that, Chair. And you,
Economic Development, got to be our spearhead. You have to be when it
comes to energy and all the others, sustainable, tourism agra [sic],
whatever it may be. But large scale agriculture is on its way out. We all
know that. And it had not been for a vision by our forefathers as far as
tourism is concerned and making that change for better or worse . . . (End
of tape 3B). . . would have been long gone from this islands like many of
my family had done. My family is a product of the plantation. I, and my
children, and my wife have worked in the visitor industry and done fairly
well working hard of course. And there are many people have worked
hard, and we've got to protect them today. So we need the visitor industry
and the Visitors Bureau to continue to promote and bridge the gap while
we make these changes. Change is inevitable.
This downturn in the economy has been something none of us had
expected and now to say to cut here, cut there, we're going to have to do
that, fine. I'm willing to cut wherever is necessary to protect the people of
Maui County. But it's, if we cut too much of the visitor industry or the
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Visitors Bureau, then more people are laid off. More people have to go on
a, on these entitlements, all these different non-profit groups that are
working so hard to survive. We're going to contribute more to it. So
we've got to work hard to get a level playing field and think ahead. I'm
not disagreeing with what some of the Members have said, but I'm also
saying now is the reality. Now we've got to keep going, and look for
those changes, and make those changes important and precise.
My question to you is very simple. You said we bring in $6.3 billion,
right, in revenue Maui County?
MS. TEGARDEN: 3.3.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, 3.3. Oh, I invert numbers. I have, I
have good math, but I just put numbers in the wrong place. I had 6.3.
$3.6 billion is what the visitor industry more or less brings in, and I heard
one Member mention that, they said, oh, the store told 'em been slow, no
more visitors. Well, how many of you have gone to Costco lately? How
many of you have gone to Costco lately and had to stand in line more than
ten minutes? I haven't. I've gone with my wife a number of times; in and
out. I remember staying half an hour in line. And you know what was in
front of me, visitors. It wasn't all residents, it was visitors. And they were
coming.
And talk about what Mr. Molina said about staying, you know, staying
when here. This past weekend we went to down to KOR, our whole
family. We rented six rooms, they gave us a great rate, and we had good a
time barbecuing, and our family mingled. And we had tourists asking us
what octopus was, what ahi was, what all these local dishes that we had on
our table that, what is that? I'm saying that here, right now, our tourist
business is still very important, and we've got to work hard to continue to
promote and protect, and make the changes in other areas. My question to
you is real simple. Can these monies be put in that direction so that we
can continue to protect what we have, make changes in the future so that
we can become less dependent because we came, became less dependent
on agriculture, we've let that go. One day we're going to have to let
tourism go. It's going to be a part of it, but we're going to let it go as we
get into other things. Will this be the bridge, will this be the money to
help bridge that over the next couple of years as we make these changes,
Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: For clarification are you speaking specifically--
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: --of the 3.8?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The 3.8, yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, the 3.8 that we're recommending -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
MS. TEGARDEN: --for the Visitors Bureau we recommend stay with the
Visitors Bureau to, to keep their efforts in, in marketing, to keep that very
important visitor sector coming back. I think as you look at the overall
budget of OED, then that is where you're really talking about
diversification and making sure, you know, whether it's renewable energy,
or, or agriculture, or high tech, you know, that small business promotion,
entrepreneurs, you know, that's, that is where the diversification is going
to continue happening. It's with the support that we give to the rest of the
organizations that we also help fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Thank
you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Whew, thank you. It's been long morning. Just, just a
comment from the Chair, you know, we talk about needing change, you
know, as we move forward, but in reality it is tough. You know, we do
have an Administration that want to do change, and, you know, we move
forward. Then when a new administration comes in, different priorities,
do we still move forward in the same direction as the present
Administration. So, you know, that's something that we all got to think
of, yeah, because things change, you know, along the way and once we set
a direction hopefully that direction, you know, and the goal that we want
to achieve is achieved and not changed in the middle of changing of
administration. So just a comment from the Chair.
The Chair is going to call lunch recess, and we'll reconvene at two
o'clock. This meeting is recessed until two o'clock. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:28 p.m.
2:03 p.m.

-98-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, we're now into Grants and
Disbursements for Business Development and Technologies, on Page 3,
on the bottom. Ms. Tegarden?
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. Yes, for the Molokai Economic Development
and Cultural Program we are recommending 135,000 for this line item. It
includes partial funding for our Kuhao Business Center operations and
additional projects for Molokai. Some of the projects we funded this past
year include the Molokai Food and Business Expo, Happy Holidays
Molokai Style, Preview Molokai TV project, and the Molokai
Entrepreneur Assessment project with MEDB. And this assessment will
also help us when moving forward with Councilman, Council Chair Mateo
and his community efforts to outreach for the historic canonization of
Father Damien later this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I heard all the good news in Molokai.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Business Research Library.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we are recommending $125,000 line item. They
produce the Maui County Data Book. They have ongoing research,
archiving, software and publishing fees that fall under this line item.
They're also annually doing electronic research and, and database updates,
and they also produce the Starting a Business in Maui County booklet.
The funding goes for salaries, for business research specialists who
respond to calls from Maui County citizens, small business, non-profits,
and government agencies requiring answers. Everything ranging from
licensing and registration, to complex census and custom demographic
questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Department, so
where is this located, this library?
MS. TEGARDEN: They are currently located up in the Tech Park; however, they
are looking to move their, move their location and consolidate into a
smaller space which also reflects why a portion of the decrease.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And our investment in this gives us what
kind of returns or dividends?
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, they put together the Maui County Data Book which we
utilize on a regular basis. We also are able to refer a lot of the people who
come through our business resource center over to them for research
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statistics and as well as phone calls that we get. So I think that the return
on investment is, is quite good. They do a lot of research for the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tegarden. Mahalo,
Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Page 4. Maui Economic Development Board for
Maui High School program model.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we're requesting a $50,000 line item. This funding goes
for operations to keep this nationally award winning automotive program
going. There are 120 students in this program who get hands-on
experience. And as we heard Mr. Rowe and Mr. Ishii share last week,
they estimate that at least 25 percent of the mechanics on Maui have
actually gone through this program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I noticed it was cut by 50 percent. Is it just
because, you know, budget constraints?
MS. TEGARDEN: It's actually for, thank you for the question. It's for two
reasons. One, last year we, Mr. Ishii was still actively involved with the
program, and they had brought on Mr. Rowe. So they needed some
additional funding for salary. Also, because this goes through MEDB they
were looking at making cuts to their overall budget and taking into effect,
or taking into account that a lot of that money had been used for salary, for
a salary that's no longer needed there. . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and that's why this one got -MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --got amended. And the reason that it's
separated from the other MEDB programs?
MS. TEGARDEN: This is a program that just came in for funding last fiscal
year, so it's not one of the MEDB's recurring projects. It was its own
separate project.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and then we would anticipate that this
will continue?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Excellent program. If the
Director could tell us, if I recall when the program was being first
proposed, maybe I think one or two terms ago, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 2008.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, there was, I think, a lot of support from
the ILWU and other organizations related. Has this program received
some assistance from those organizations, fmancial assistance?
MS. TEGARDEN: I, I, not, if they have received assistance it's in the area of
donations of product and there may be some other funding that they
receive here and there, but it's, it's not a specific scholarship fund that, as
I recall the ILWU contributes or anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. I was just curious. Thank you. Thank
you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And Chair, you know, recognize this
program because it was my interest in regards to some of the things that
the automotive classroom at Maui High School was doing. And, you
know, with the work of MEDB, you know, this is going to be a model for
the high schools. And, yeah, the union were involved in trying to get this
program, you know, off its feet and with the help of MEDB we got it off
its feet. And, Members, sometimes we talk about high tech, you know,
jobs. The Chair was looking more for technical jobs in this case. Thank
you. Next one is Community Clinic of Maui.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, no funding requested at this time. This was a one-time
project installing solar photovoltaic panels on the, the clinic. The grant
was just encumbered.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Friends of Old Maui High School (prior
years were in Housing and Human Concerns).
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. TEGARDEN: This year we're recommending a line item amount for
94,000. This is for project coordinating and the implementation as they
continue to develop plans for future funding for the building of the Patsy
T. Mink Center. And the reason for the decrease is because they have
started their, or planning to start their own capital campaign.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out if other funding was
coming in, and they were going to be able to utilize this money this year,
because I know things are really tight. I don't know what other sources of
funding they had, but much like the Pioneer Mill building project it's kind
of fallen on hard times and, you know, if it doesn't involve public safety,
you know, and, and these other core issues, you know, public health and,
you know, feeding people, I, I just wonder are they getting other funds so
that, you know, this money is just not going to sit there unused?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you for the question. I know that they have
applied for some Federal funding, and they're waiting to hear back about
that. And last year we were able to introduce them to a USDA grant, and I
think that brought in about 200-some thousand for them so...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and is that grant still, are they still
in receipt of that money or was all that money actually received?
MS. TEGARDEN: They're still accessing that funding, and they're still
accessing the funding from the Fiscal Year '09 grant through OED. So
that's not completed yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. You know, and, and I love the
program. It's just like I'm trying to look at every little bit of money, and if
they haven't fully accessed the money yet, it makes it kind of hard, you
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know, because like Friends of Moku'ula had a similar situation for a
while, so, I mean if you could just get a little bit more information as to
what the status is with the existing funding. If they're not going to spend
it down I don't, I don't mind putting in, you know, this for next fiscal year
if, if they're going to be able to still stay alive for this interim period. But
if they need it for matching, then I understand, but I just want to know
that.
MS. TEGARDEN: And just as a point of clarification. For our OED grant from
this fiscal year they are on track to spend it down. So I will get you the
information for the other.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because that would just be like another
month and a half.
MS. TEGARDEN: Well, yes, I mean they have until the end of whenever the
grant was encumbered, they have a year to utilize the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and that's what I want to know. When
does that year expire? Because if it expires at the end of this, you know,
this year which would be December 31 st, then I wouldn't mind reducing
this amount of money with the idea that then they would be able to access
hopefully additional funding in that subsequent year.
MS. TEGARDEN: We'll get you that info.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. I really appreciate it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Maui Community College for Long Term
Care Partnership.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we are recommending a line item in the amount of
$250,000. This program trains people on how to become long-term,
in-home caregivers. This represents a small portion of their overall budget
for this program, and with an aging population and more people wanting
to age in place this program services not only our kupuna but is also an
excellent job creator. In 2008, a total of 52 individuals have completed
the program, had completed the program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair My concern I guess is
not so much the money we're going to be giving them, but how is the
State, as far as, you know, contributing their fair share? I mean we can be
putting money in and if the State's not going to it's all for naught. So
what's happening as far as the State side contributions to this program?
MS. TEGARDEN: I think that we're all basically right now in a wait and see
pattern as to what the State -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. TEGARDEN: --is going to be contributing. I, I know that there are cuts
coming down, but we don't know the specifics yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again we get caught with the bat, again.
Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Similar to Hale Mahaolu
probably. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Fifty-two people took this course. What does it
teach you?
MS. TEGARDEN: It teaches various things on how to take care of the elderly,
ways on how to communicate in emergencies, what you need to do. I
know that Ms. Barreras is here with us this afternoon if you have more
specific questions, but it's an overall course on how to work with elders
and people who are aging in their home.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, so these are like -MS. TEGARDEN: The kind of skills you would need for that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --children of parents?
MS. TEGARDEN: It could be chil...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . (Inaudible).. .
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, I'm sorry. It could be children of parents, it could be
individuals who want to just give back to their community as a caregiver.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: There is no other program that teaches this?
MS. TEGARDEN: This Aging with Aloha and, and long-term care is, is unique
to Maui. There are similar, there are other programs, of course, nursing
programs and so forth, but I, I think when we heard Ms. Barreras testify
earlier in some of the community hearings the nation is actually looking at
Maui County for the great strides that they are making in this area. So I
think it is a unique program.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Does this funding,
for this program pay for, like, tuition of the people that are in the program?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, and does this program give them a
CNA certification, certified nurse's assistant?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it does.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you. And then to follow
along that same lines, then is all of the money then go to, to tuition?
MS. TEGARDEN: No, not all of the money. A large portion of it goes to tuition,
but much of, the money also goes for the instructors and, you know, basic
equipment, supplies, things like that, support services.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's tuition plus instructors
themselves. And these instructors are instructors that are currently at
MCC?
MS. TEGARDEN: I'm not sure if all of the instructors are at MCC. I know that,
as I stated Ms. Barreras is here and could probably give us a little bit more
in-depth information.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, my question is just trying
to understand in, in, you know, what percentages are the monies going
directly to the, to the, to the potential -MS. TEGARDEN: Students versus...
COUNCILMEMBER KAI-10'0HALAHALA: --student versus administration -MS. TEGARDEN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --versus, you know, personnel.
So if you can get that information.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I think Ms. Barreras would be
the best person to really address those questions, but I, having been a part
of the Long Term Care Partnership, which has now turned into the Aging
with Aloha Coalition, part of this was to develop a curriculum, because
with huge numbers of imported staffmg, assistants from Guam and the
Philippines, and problems at our nursing care facilities, problems with
even delivering services in a home setting which is where people said that
they principally wanted to age we didn't, we don't have workers. There's
nobody that's really trained. And as a person who is the recipient of
Kupuna Care Services I can tell you that the people that have gone
through this course have learned so much.
And the wages eventually we're trying to keep those up because it is, they
do it with aloha. They don't, they certainly don't do it because they get
paid an arm and a leg. But these are people that are actually the support
network so that we don't have elderly people showing up in the
emergency room with injuries, so that we don't have other people being
warehoused in other facilities. You know, and it also helps to provide
people that would do care homes, that would actually be thinking of
starting their own business, it actually provides them with the core
information on how to do that. So to me you know where I stand on this
and because it's a very close issue to me, personally, I completely support
this. So I'm sure Ms. Barreras will tell you where the money is though.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. I consider this as part of
our healthcare workforce development. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Total support.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is the East Maui
Culture...Cultural/Economic Development Program.
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MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We are recommending a line item of $70,000 for
this program. This fund provides programs in East Maui. In this current
fiscal year 50,000 was actually proviso'd for Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike for
general operations. However, additional funding went to Moolea Point
Management, and the Kapahu Living Farm, as well as Hana Fest and the
Hana Infant/Toddler Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So this program continues to fund Ma Ka
Hana Ka Ike, Inc., or it doesn't?
MS. TEGARDEN: This, this current fiscal year there was a proviso in there to
fund Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike. In the past it has not.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the one, the next one, maybe two items down is
that the same program on the sheet?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, for their renewable energy project.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, two different projects?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just to have a few comments that, yes, they
have two separate programs; a construction program and an alternative
energy program with the Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike and, but we are grateful for
the funding that is proposed because this is a great program in Hana that
not only does things, but it provides students with skills that they can use
and apply immediately or when they graduate. So thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One quick question. Can you tell me about this
Hana Infant/Toddler Program? I didn't know we had one in Hana.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, the funding actually went, it was $10,000, and it went
for staff time and training for transition to a, to a bigger space. In the past,
they had been working out of the, out of the school in a very small area
and this funding allowed them to start moving into a larger space.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And is that the name of the program or is there an
agency that runs it?
MS. TEGARDEN: The name of the program is the Hana Infant/Toddler Center
and the grant went through Ohana Makamae.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Small Business Promotion.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we're recommending a line item in the amount of
$135,000. This includes some of the operating costs for our Maui County
Business Resource Center. These funds also go to fund our workshops.
As I had mentioned before we've, we've seen a great increase in our
workshop participation and, and have had over 5,000 people from June of
last year come through our doors for counseling. Other projects that we
fund include a project out in Lahaina called Malama Lahaina where we
worked with some of the store owners just to do a cleanup of the, of Front
Street and also put together some historical information.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is Ma Ka Hana Ka Ike, Inc.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, this $45,000 is to specifically go for funding of their
renewable energy program where they train local high school students in
hands-on solar energy system installation as well as they're providing the
youth education on how to do energy audits. They also provide solar hot
water and photovoltaic systems to low-income Hana homes. Fifteen
thousand of this goes for salaries and stipends and 30,000 will be going for
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materials. They're estimating eight photovoltaic systems to be put on in
the next fiscal year with this funding.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair, I apologize. I made my comments on
this, but in two grants ahead of that, so sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, you okay?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, good.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: They got money also in East Maui Cultural/Economic
Development Program just to let you know.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Correct. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Next is Maui Economic Development Board.
MS. TEGARDEN: We're recommending a line item in the amount of $450,000.
MEDB continues to partner with the County to diversify Maui County's
economy. MEDB has created the infrastructure for our future through
diversification in the areas of tech, health, information systems, and
renewable energy. Their progressive approach to empowering our
students with critical thinking skills needed for the 21 st Century is
certainly having a strong return on investment, and I think we all heard the
testimony from the EAST students, and the robotics team, and of course
the Maui High School automotive team as well. The County's investment
is seed money that they leverage tenfold with funding from multiple
Federal sources and the private sector, and all of MEDB's actions and
projects are articulated by the Focus Maui Nui Program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You say they leverage this money. How much
money do they get from the Feds and the State.
MS. TEGARDEN: I don't have the specific numbers in front of me, but I can say
that it's a considerable amount of funding that they get for the different
programs from the, from the, from Federal sources.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair Ms. Tegarden, the
10 percent cut was that proposed by, by you or that was the cut made by
the organization? And I know you put the word out to all the grant
recipients so, and I guess, I presume at 10 percent. So was this done by
the grant recipient?
MS. TEGARDEN: No, it was not. It was done, it was done by us. We looked at
the different funding sources that the organization receives and I, I think
we've heard in, in subsequent testimony that a lot of the Federal funding
that MEDB receives cannot be used for business development, but when
we were making this original decision, hard decision we had looked at all
of the different funding sources and that was the reason for our cut.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let's go to Maui Food Technology.
MS. TEGARDEN: We're recommending $35,000 for this line item. Maui Food
Technology Center, Phase I, was accomplished to start up and have
laboratory development. Phase II had focused . . .(End of tape 4A). . . in
agriculture, food producers, and educators. And the Fiscal Year '10
funding, which is Phase III, will support their initiatives in particular to
develop, launch, and successfully bring to market five new value-added
Maui Nui agricultural products, develop and implement a test, taste testing
model to provide market research data for food product entrepreneurs,
expand its community outreach program, excuse me, and implement an
aggressive marketing campaign to increase the number of food producers
using the food science laboratory services and bringing the technology
center closer to self sustainability.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, Deidre, was this the, the
entity that came before us, and I think I asked the question about what
services they provided? Is this in Market, on Market Street, no? Am I
talking about two different things?
MS. TEGARDEN: I wasn't here for, for that. I don't remember. I don't know if
that was the technology center or...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's Market Street.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: On Market Street.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, probably.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then the, the question I
asked was whether or not their services were available, and he indicated
that they were available for a fee, and, in fact, a considerable cost. So how
does this work out in terms of the funding and the, the services provided to
potential, I guess, value-added like you mentioned?
MS. TEGARDEN: We can, I can get additional information based on, on that
conversation. I know that our funding specifically goes for, you know,
marketing, for their setups and things like that, and not necessarily
obviously for, for scholarships. I mean we do appreciate that the different
organizations that the County offers funding too also, you know, come up
with their own ways to become sustainable.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I was just wondering, at
this point, you know, this has been an ongoing funding for what, two fiscal
years then?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And are they at a level of
sustainability because from the information he presented sounded like they
were raising quite an amount of revenues.
MS. TEGARDEN: I think, I think that they are about at that level which also
explains the decrease that they're receiving, in the, you know, over the
years in the funding, but I think it also, they need to get a little bit more
word, the word out there about what they do.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And so this amount of money will
specifically be for that?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman. Ms. Tegarden, can you tell us what
percentage this 35,000 represents in this organization's total budget?
MS. TEGARDEN: I think it represents approximately 20 to 25 percent of their,
of their overall budget.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And the balance of their funds come primarily from
private funds?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Private funds, and I, again, I will get you a more detailed, a
detailed budget. I think next year too we will make sure to bring down the
budgets of all of our grantees with us -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: --so we don't have to get back to you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next one is Maui Economic Opportunity,
Inc., for Microenterprise Program.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we are recommending $200,000 for this program. It
facilitates economic development in the community by providing
entrepreneurial education workshops and microlending to provide capital
for startup, expanding businesses of low- and moderate-income
individuals. We work closely with Ms. Thieman at MEOBDC referring
clients to her classes. This program has a very high success rate and is
truly creating jobs and stimulating the economy. In 2008, there were 234
grads, 46 from Molokai, 188 from Central Maui. Ninety businesses were
started or improved and 49 new businesses are set to start within the next
six months. And the overall success rate of the businesses is 80 percent.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Deidre, under this program because I know
that it has been really successful about how many of the small business,
because it's basically a revolving fund, but it also expands, about how
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many new businesses are created each year with the seed money that
we're able to provide?
MS. TEGARDEN: Our money does not go for...just as a clarification, our
money does not go into the revolving fund; however, you know, this year I
think they saw an increase in entrepreneurs and people starting businesses.
In the next six months alone they're looking at 49 to 50 new businesses.
So, I mean if you multiply that we're looking at a hundred new businesses
a year of which 80 percent actually have a good success rate and, and stay
in business.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So this money is for their operations so
that they can provide the services to those businesses?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah, and nothing goes down. So the
only thing that would happen is if their funding is cut then they're a little
bit constrained in terms of continuing to offer services to additional people
that might come through the door?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Yeah, Mr. Chair, this is where we need
to concentrate some resources if we're doing reallocations, because these
are the people that are going to get us through the tough times. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. This is
the, the Core Four?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Four core or Core Four.
MS. TEGARDEN: Core Four.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I want to support Member
Johnson's concern that I, I do think that having gone Countywide that this
was expressed especially from the island of Molokai, I think, where this
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program has tremendously helped them come out of the idea that they
could only be a one owner company island, and they're fmding success as
individual entrepreneurs. So I too would like to support the idea of, of
keeping this level or increasing perhaps. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to remind the Members that this is the
program where the director advised us that there is $102,000 worth of
money lurking that really needs to be redirected back to this program.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, just in reference to Mrs. Baisa's statements.
The reference was CDBG funds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: CDBG funds would be Federal funds, and I don't know
if the Department is at the point of being able to reassign or what do you
call that word, the monies?
MS. TEGARDEN: Reproallocate [sic].
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, to repro...are we at that point?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Well, it's, it's actually the CDBG Program and OED doesn't
really have -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: --any jurisdiction over that.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. So, Mr. Chairman, can we have staff follow
up with the -MS. TEGARDEN: CDBG.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: CDBG.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: --yeah, with Ms. Gentz. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. The last item...oh, I'm sorry, Maui
Community College for Nursing and Dental Assistant Programs.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. We're recommending $450,000 for this
program. It's for nursing training. This funding is matched by the State.
The funding goes primarily for salaries and operations. Again, with an
aging workforce and the need for more nurses and nursing assistants, this
creates good paying jobs for Maui County residents.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Are you in charge of Workforce
Development too?
MS. TEGARDEN: That actually, yes, the, that comes through our office as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, how come you don't mention about, you know,
this program is, is part of Workforce Development?
MS. TEGARDEN: It's, that's our, our Federal program. We don't have
Workforce Development dollars that are going specifically into -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Into this particular program? Oh, okay, fine.
MS. TEGARDEN: --into this program, but we do certainly recognize that it is a
workforce generator.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member, Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, no other than this could be one that you
probably will end up revisiting real soon. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I, I know. . .(Inaudible)). _State programs
and this is one where if we can ever, you know, with the blessings of, you
know, the man above get our West Maui hospital going workforce is
going to be needed. So I know that we have some serious considerations
to make, but it doesn't do any good to build facilities, and then have to
import labor. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, I agree. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No comment. If, and I second the motion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, thank you. Ms. Tegarden, can I get
some information with regards to the percentage of salaries and operations
with regards to the appropriation and also, also, you know, Mr. Chairman,
I think with the fate of the TAT I'm hoping, I guess the Board, UH Board
of Regents, you know, now they gonna have to probably consider a tuition
hike, possibly, in order to sustain the program at these levels, I mean if we
want them to. I mean, we're in a rock and a hard place. I mean, you
know, it goes without saying this a very successful program, but, you
know, it is what it is, you know.
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So, unless we, again, we're going to keep it alive, then we got to look at
adjustments either real property tax increases or cutting other programs in
order to sustain one. So hopefully it doesn't get to a point where it's
like--what is it?--taking from Peter to give to Paul, that kind of situation.
But, anyway, just my thoughts. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Very well spoken. It's challenging times. Thank you,
Ms. Tegarden. Members, that's all for that particular area. The next
Grant and Disbursements for Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency.
First program, the only program is Renewable Energy Programs.
Ms. Tegarden.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We're recommending a $65,000 line item for this
program. The Office of Economic Development is tasked with initiating,
planning, and facilitating many facets of the Renewable Energy Program
of Maui County. The promise of Maui's energy future lies in the County's
ability to set the direction that leads to sustainable clean energy and
freedom from fossil fuels, and just a few highlights from this year.
Of course, we have the Maui County Energy Alliance in which we are
partnering with MEDB and MCC and are now planning our energy expo
for later this fall, 2009. The five working groups ,of which you have
heard a lot, have put together a draft plan on how we can look at Maui
County's renewable energy future. So that is definitely one of our
highlights. Also, the Mayor recently unveiled her public, her hybrid
electric vehicle, the plug-in hybrid electric vehicle and much thanks to
Maui High's automotive program who not only helped with the battery
installation, but their graphics program also did the very nice graphics on
the car. And we're also very happy that we were able to help facilitate
conversations between Phoenix Motorcars and Maui Electric Company to
start testing some of the electric vehicle fleets. We appreciate your
consideration of this line item.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions. I was there and saw the
vehicle and actually got to ride in it. So, yeah, well, well designed. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. This is specifically just for renewable
energy or does it also include energy efficiencies as well?
MS. TEGARDEN: It's energy efficiencies, renewable energy, anything that is
going to bring down that bottom line.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Would this be the program that Mr. Reyes, from your
Department heads?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, you are correct.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And this particular program are they even looking at
perhaps considering this specific building as a demonstration of what the
County can do with, with renewable energy resources? I mean, hello,
we're here, and we look at other peoples, and we don't look at where
we're at. So could any, is any of this plan to take a look at the existing
facility we're in now?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, actually Working Group IV of the five working groups
is actually focused specifically on efficiency and conservation in County
facilities and operations. And one of Mayor's goals was to, you know,
practice what we preach and look at this building to, I mean everything
from making the light bulbs CFL to, you know, doing larger retrofits. I
know that the work that's being done on the ninth floor right now it does
incorporate renewable, and sustainable, and green building methodologies.
So to answer your question, yes, that is definitely one of the...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. It would be nice if that whole concept for
the ninth floor works its way down. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki? Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, the only, my only thought
right now, Chair, would be that if this is a direction that we really need to
steer our economy toward that if you look at the amounts of monies that
we've provided for other, for other sectors for grant funding this is one
that's barely, meagerly funded, and I would think that this is where we
might, might want to place a lot of effort and emphasis, if we're looking at
truly becoming, you know, energy efficient, energy self sufficient.
MS. TEGARDEN: If I may respond? One of the things we thought about when
putting this budget was to really wait and see what comes out of these
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energy, the Maui County Energy Alliance working group
recommendations. I think that as we look at Fiscal Year '11 it would be a
larger amount, but right now knowing that we have a lean year we're not
quite ready to make all of those recommendations just yet. And because
we are able to partner with groups such as MEDB and MCC, we're able to
share a lot of information. So I, I understand what you're saying, and I
think in Fiscal Year '11 it would be a larger, a larger amount after we see
what recommendations come back.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I mean, I don't know what
the next fiscal year will allow us to do, but, you know, we're talking about
this fiscal year and the need to kind of make sure that we support it even
though we're in tight times, because this is going to be part of our
economic relief in the, in the long run I hope. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Deidre, if I missed this I apologize, but I
just wanted to fmd out what the projects were currently that were funded
with the $70,000 that's already in there?
MS. TEGARDEN: Part of that funding went toward the, some things, the energy
expo, some outreach. We also funded some smaller organizations with,
there's a solar, I can't think of their name right now, but they do the solar,
the solar tour. We were able to fund them. So this pot of money is not
unlike small business promotion and the ag promotion. We can also fund
smaller grants. We also did the, helped with the Jatropha oil seed crop
that I had talked about earlier. Part of that came out of renewable energy
as well.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and I noticed CTAHR had the Jatropha
project that was in their grant funding for this year. Now, was that an, an
offshoot of the start of this small grant that you did?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it was.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a couple questions. We know
photovoltaic on Lanai works. We know the wind generation up here
works. What other alternatives are we looking at?
MS. TEGARDEN: We are looking at hydro. We're making sure that, you know,
there's, of course, water, there's the water, there's solar, there's wind. We
don't know that our community is ready for geothermal, but that's
something that, you know, is, is a possibility as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So this working group will be working on, I guess, five
different plans and each of the plans going have value. So moving
forward we utilize the best plan or we utilize a multiple plan, you know,
based on, I guess, location?
MS. TEGARDEN: It's certainly a combination of, of all of those, and it's going
to be what, what works for Maui County, what works for our community.
And just, just as a refresher the, the five working groups are renewable
resource development and that is looking at prioritizing and, and putting
timelines together for County energy projects. There, the second one is
green workforce development, so we're working very closely, again, with
MCC and MEDB on a green workforce because it's all fine and good to
get all this renewable energy started, but then who's going to work in
those areas, and we want to make sure that we can provide jobs for our
citizens, our youth. Energy and transportation infrastructure, maximizing
renewable energy by making electricity a common energy currency for
transportation systems. Again, the one I had mentioned before efficiency
and conservation in County facilities. And then finally, greenhouse gas
and carbon emissions, looking at the, the value measured from the
reductions of greenhouse gas emissions and for the benefit of Maui
County.
And I was remiss in mentioning also that we do have stimulus funding that
we're looking to, the County is looking to receive. So that's another
reason our energy line item is not as, as large as it, it could be because we
are looking at the stimulus ARRA funding as well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Before you say anything, so if we go into
three different technologies and training for that three different
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technologies will be, well, somebody got to provide that. Are we looking
at the County or are we looking at partnership between County, State,
Federal?
MS. TEGARDEN: It's, it's defmitely a partnership. It's a partnership between
all three of those and, and the university, and MCC. So I, I think as we
move forward no matter what we do it's all about partnerships.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Budget Director?
MR. PABLO: Yes, thank you, Chair. I just wanted to make a comment on the
Council Members' questions on what are we going to be doing, doing
about energy on, on the County buildings. We do have a Capital
Improvement Project proposed for Fiscal Year 2010, and you will be able
to find it in the Mayor's proposed budget on Page 26-11. It's called
County Buildings Renewable Energy Feasibility Study. And this ties in
with the, with the program that, that actually Deidre and Victor Reyes had.
After the expo, which we hope we have in the fall, we'll be looking into
what we can do as far as feasibility study and preliminary planning for
proposed renewable energy technology for all County buildings. That's
funded, or proposed funding for 250,000 in 2010.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, the next set of grants is
Grants and dis..., Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You know, all of these energy developments are
good and fine, but my concern is where does it help those of us that are
paying our bills right now, meaning have you done an inventory on homes
here in Maui County and seeing how many of us have solar system. Do
you have an inventory on condominiums and apartments to see if those
have any system? And, fmally, all of this is good and fine, but why don't
we have any type of legislation mandating that certain systems be put on a
commercial building, or an apartment, or a single-family house? That's
my question.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you for that. And, and all of this is part of the working
groups and what our office is working towards. You're exactly right there
has to be legislation. It has to come from the top. You know, developers,
individuals need to know that this is the way, you know, we need to go.
Inventories for homes and condos I know that Dr. Reyes in our office has
been working on, on something to that effect, and, and we can certainly
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keep you posted, but you, you raise excellent points, and they all need to
be followed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: In that way we're going to see the individuals,
perhaps, seeing less payments in our utility bills.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I just was notified by Staff that we passed,
we passed a Maui Energy Code and previously we've been putting in
conditions in regards to solar water heating, but we never did anything in
regards to photovoltaic because it's costly, but we do have an Energy
Code for Maui County. I don't know, you know, what extent it is, but,
you know, you bring up a good point, Member. So the next set of Grants
and Disbursements are for Water and Environmental Resources. And the
first one is Aquaculture/Marine Resources Development.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We're recommending a $50,000 line item for this
program. In cooperation with the Sea Grant program the Maui County
Aquaculture and Marine Resource development program supports
extension activities in the County. The program is focused on
environmentally and economically sustainable aquaculture/agriculture
systems, including integrated agriculture/aquaculture, hydroponics,
aquaponics and low input aquaculture. Community outreach and public
education are vey important components of the aquaculture extension
program. This aspect of the program includes educational, vocational, and
demonstration projects.
This past year the agent carried out five aquaculture training workshops.
Four workshops were related to the backyard aquaponics training
program. The fifth workshop topic was Chinese catfish spawning. One
Maui resident is now producing Chinese catfish fingerlings commercially.
Prior to this year all Chinese catfish fmgerlings had to be imported from
Oahu or the Big Island. The agent also assisted in hatchery development
and facilitated permitting and other issues for an offshore open ocean
aquaculture venture in Maui County. The aquaculture extension program
also offers hands-on assistance throughout Maui County, the State and the
Pacific region. The program assists with water resource management
issues in Maui County and helps community organizations with their
sustainable programs.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. I'm very interested in this. Who is
the agent?
MS. TEGARDEN: Bob Howerton.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see, and where does he, where are these
backyard aquaculture things happening?
MS. TEGARDEN: They're, they're happening all over. We can get you a list of
some of the more vital ones
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's okay. MEO did this many years ago, along
when we were doing our herb thing, remember? We were also doing
catfish in backyards to use the, we were using the water, the fertilized
water from the fish tanks to use on the basil. It worked really good except
the project was transferred to Molokai, and I don't know what happened to
it after that. So I've always wondered because catfish is a very lucrative
market. Thank you.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It, it is. I have a friend that does it on Lanai that utilizes
the very same thing that you mentioned. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, it's just I had not heard of this before, so
this is kind of like it's the best kept secret in Maui County. It really,
particularly now when people are trying to feed their families, you should
be doing press releases on this and capitalizing on it, and so should the
person that's doing this program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you. I'm familiar
with Bob, and he's actually helped install a couple of the aquaculture
tanks in backyards. There are a couple areas I think that, that need to be
considered in this particular industry, is that the use of the water. The
water that, that is required to raise these catfish in the tank have to be
totally cleaned out and drained because of the amount of, of nutrients that
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go into the tanks. So, again, while you're looking at the product of catfish
you have to consider what the consumption of water is.
Now, if you're going to utilize that water to, to grow the basil as has was
mentioned earlier, then that is something that needs to be coordinated, I
hope, with farmers as well. So where these tanks are located is where
basil needs to be grown. So don't, so I think if the, the program was
coordinated in a manner that gives consideration because water is going to
be our main concern here as a resource for an industry that is so reliant on,
especially doing freshwater, and the fish need a good source of water, but
we also need to weigh the, the need for water between two living
creatures, us and fish. So the efficiency is I think is the other part that I
would like to encourage the program. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Environmental Protection.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we are recommending a $1 million line item for this. In
order to ensure Maui continues being able to provide protection from and
ultimately eradication of invasive species, we have placed a total of
$1 million in the budget. The breakdown would be general miconia, coqui
frogs, banana bunchee, fireweed, and we also have money for
environmental response. And environmental response money goes for
things like the Maalaea Pump-Out program, the Kealia turtle fence,
stinging nettle caterpillar, as well as invasive algae. And we also, this
year, added additional funding for fireweed control. This fills a much
needed void in our community and, and we hope you support the
$1 million for environmental protection.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Do you have any idea when the State is
going to take care of that pump, pump-out facility at Maalaea?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Right. We, we keep hearing that it's, it's forthcoming, but to
be honest we, we don't have a clear answer on that yet which is why we
continue to put the funding into the Pump-Out Program because it is a
necessity.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. So beyond what you've,
you've mentioned as far as environmental protection will this also be used
in areas like for miconia eradication, I mean anything of that nature would
this, these, these monies would be for the. . .(End of tape 4B). . . of
whatever it might be; yeah?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and then as far as how they
determine who gets what is there a formula or do you just say, okay, you
want this much and, okay, we can give you this much? How do you
determine that?
MS. TEGARDEN: A large portion of the funding, over half in this fiscal year,
went to Maui Invasive Species Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. TEGARDEN: And then we try to work with the, the farmers and other
environmental groups to see where to put, you know, other, other funding.
This year fireweed, you know, continues to be a, a major issue. So we're
actually going to be working with the Cattlemen's Association to see how
we can utilize that funding in maybe a better way.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. TEGARDEN: Because it's obviously a huge issue right now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And this is for the entire County, right?
MS. TEGARDEN: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right. Thank you. Thank you,
Mr. Chair. Thank you, Ms. Tegarden.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Do you see any stimulus money coming to
environmental protection?
MS. TEGARDEN: We, we have not seen any specific money coming for
environmental, for the environmental protection. The money that we're
looking at right now, of course, is the renewable energy ARRA and the
U.S. Department of Agriculture, but specifically for environmental
response we haven't seen that yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is the Pump-Out Program costing us?
MS. TEGARDEN: We, so far this year, have put $30,000 into it. Last year we
put in $50,000. So, so far it's, the last two years it's cost us 80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And the program is strictly voluntary?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you don't know whether all the boats there
are participating?
MS. TEGARDEN: Actually I have seen the reports and 95 percent of the, the
boats are participating and...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Why, why is this 5 percent not participating?
MS. TEGARDEN: I'm not sure. I'll have to get back to you on that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Who's monitoring it?
MS. TEGARDEN: This grant actually goes through Tri-Isle RC&D, Tri-Isle
Resource Conservation and Development.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Tegarden, other than, I guess every
one of these organization provide you with an audit. Is there, like, a
review of the Department in regards to some of these programs that we
fund to see where they are at in regards to, in this case here, that pump out
at Maalaea Harbor?
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, in, in all of our grants we require both an audit from the
organization to whom we are providing funding as well as quarterly and
annual reports.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So there's no physical, physical inspection done to
these groups?
MS. TEGARDEN: From our office we do not always, we're not always able to
go out and inspect everything. I will say, however, that we try to go out. I
mean we've been to the, the slaughterhouse. We do go up to the ag park
and, you know, some of the farmers to see what's happening with the
fireweed, and the organizations that we work with. For instance, Tri-Isle
RC&D, they do go out and physically see what's happening and that is in
their report.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, I just wanted to ask about
any collaborative efforts with the USDA and the Department of Ag in
terms of, you know, we are trying to look at the symptoms of
environmental, you know, challenges here, but we're not doing anything
to prevent them from entering. So while that responsibility is the State
Department of Ag and the USDA, is, is any efforts being initiated through
this particular line item to look at collaboration so that the introduction of
alien species could be targeted? Because other than that it's merely a, a, a
waiting game for these introduced species to reach epidemic kinds of
proportions, and then we are reacting to having to treat, and then get rid
of, and spend millions of dollars trying to do so. So just a question about
collaboration.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, and, and you're exactly right. We do collaborate with
the Department of Agriculture. One of the things that's just come up on
the screen in fireweed and the fact that we're really, we have hit epidemic
proportions of fireweed and, you know, how can we work together to
utilize this funding that, you know, we're awarding. So I know that the
State is just finishing their fireweed report. We're working with
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Ms Kunimoto over there. We also work closely with CTAHR. And so, I
think there is a large collaboration that's, that's going on. Of course, it
can always be better, but...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, while the airports are a
recognized point of entry, another area of entry has been described as the
ports, harbors, containers. And so, are there any efforts for us to kind of
take a look at where these potential pests may be entering? I'm not sure,
but, you know, when, when the, the Superferry was running back and forth
were there, you know, that would have been another entry of, of potential,
you know, alien species introduction. So, what does this funding do for
those kinds of areas of concern?
MS. TEGARDEN: This, this funding specifically talks more to the protection and
eradication once it, you know, unfortunately, problems that we already are
addressing right now. I know that the new invasive species area at the
airport opened. Last year we worked closely with that, with the State
again on that to see, you know, what kind of invasive species were coming
in. We relayed that information, again, to our partners over at MISC. So
everyone's on the same page knowing, you know, what type of species are
coming in, how we can ensure that, you know, it doesn't become an issue
like the issues that we have now. But I, I, hear what you're saying, and we
will definitely work closer with those partners to make sure that we can
keep a, you know, a better eye on what's happening.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, but I would like to say thank you for the
information about fireweed. Upcountry is a mess. It looks like fields of
yellow flowers instead of grass, and it's just growing faster and faster
along the roads, and in every pasture, and we got to do something because,
you know, that's what our animals eat, that grass. And if it's destroyed I
don't know what's going to happen to our cattle business.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next one is Maui Soil/Water
Conservation District.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, thank you. We're recommending a $40,000 line item
for this project. The West Maui Soil and Water Conservation District
request for funding is for clerical support for the four Maui soil and water
conservation districts to carry out their programs in West Maui, Central
Maui, Olinda, Kula, and Hana. The role of the Soil and Water
Conservation District is to carry out programs for the conservation of soil
and water, to prevent soil erosion, control flood waters and sediment
damage, and assist farmers, ranchers, and all private land users to make
the best use of their natural resources through proper, proper land use
planning.
The District's responsibilities also include assistance through the USDA
Natural Resources Conservation Service. Their role is to review drainage
and erosion control plans for land use changes, developments, and
subdivisions. The District also assists in environmental education of the
general public through school programs and other methods of recognition
for conservation-minded citizens.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, does any of this money
take care of the monitoring of, of wells within the watersheds?
MS. TEGARDEN: This is specifically for the clerical support for the Maui
Soil/Water and Conservation District. So, I'm, I'm not sure if...
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this looks like it's mainly just
for a position then?
MS. TEGARDEN: It is. That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, the next one is Soil/Water
Conservation Districts - Molokai and Lanai.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it's the, the same concept. It's $10,000 specifically for
Molokai and Lanai to provide clerical support for those districts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So is this a position that's, that's
on, on either of the islands or is this, I mean it's not even a full position.
MS. TEGARDEN: No, it's, it's a part-time position, and I, it's my understanding
that the position is here, but they do travel.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So it's within the
Conservation District Office then?
MS. TEGARDEN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Watershed Protection.
MS. TEGARDEN: Thank you. We're recommending $500,000 line item for this
watershed protection; $100,000 for each watershed partnership for
protection, renovation, replenishment of the watershed environment and
control of feral pigs and goats. The five watershed partnerships are East
Maui, West Maui, Leeward Haleakala, East Molokai, and the Lanai
Institute for the Environment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Kaho 1 'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, then my question again,
does any of this money now go to the monitoring of watershed within this,
this line item?
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MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, it goes both, it goes for monitoring, there's a portion for
salaries, operations, as well as equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, is, does it provide for
services that are contracted as well?
MS. TEGARDEN: I think, depending, it depends on the service. I, I can double
check. I...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay, that's fine. I'll
pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Ms. Tegarden, how many groups applied
for this one particular area, watershed protection?
MS. TEGARDEN: This is already specifically, it's specifically for the five
watersheds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: For the five watersheds?
MS. TEGARDEN: It's 100,000 to each of the watersheds.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the last one Kauaula Instream Flow
Study.
MS. TEGARDEN: Yes, we're recommending zero because the project has been,
is finished. Results can be found at hawaii.water.usgs.gov . The survey
represented a first step in providing some of the information to determine
the effects of stream flow on the recharge of the underlying aquifer,
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develop instream flow standards and better understand the amount of
water used from the various streams around West Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that concludes the total OED
grants that we just reviewed. Kind of lengthy, but at least we got
everything done. So, at this time, the Chair is going to call our mid...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, you know, the stream flow study out of
that there is no recommendations coming from any department? I'm just
kind of looking at it like we throwing away money to do this study, and
then we're not going to do a damn thing about it.
MS. TEGARDEN: In response.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes.
MS. TEGARDEN: The, the, the project is, is fmished. We're waiting to get the
final results. They have posted some preliminary results on the website,
and I am sure that the results will be read by the appropriate departments
to make recommendations. We don't have any recommendations right
now based on this report. We just help to fund it.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Would you know if, you know, a Committee of the
Council will be reviewing this thing also or, or is it only the Department
that will be reviewing this study?
MS. TEGARDEN: I will get all of the, the information for you and, and pass that
on. I know that, as I said, preliminary results have been posted on the
website and the reason that we're not asking for anything for next year is
because the project will have been fmished.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair'? Could you just repeat the
website?
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MS. TEGARDEN: It's at http://hi.waterusgs.gov .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As far as I understand it this will be coming
to the Water Resource Committee once all this USGS study, probably in
August of this year this will be coming forward once all these reports are
put together. So that will be presented to the Water Resource Committee.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Okay, Members,
we'll take our midafternoon recess. We'll reconvene at 3:30. When we
come back we'll take Rate and Fees, Rates and Fees, and we'll review the
Environmental Management, Water, and also the Parks. So this meeting is
in recess until 3:30. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:15 p.m.
3:35 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
Meeting is now reconvened. Members, that was a good break. Okay, this
afternoon we do have the Department of Environmental Management and
Director Okuma. And this, this afternoon we're going to be reviewing the
rates and fees for the environmental management area. So, Director
Okuma, if you could provide us with some comments and introduce your
team?
MS. OKUMA: Yes, thank you very much, Committee Chair Pontanilla,
Committee Members. Here today are Deputy Director Gregg Kresge and
Wastewater Reclamation Division Chief Dave Taylor. And if I may I'd
like to put this into context by making several comments here?
The Solid Waste Division and Wastewater Division are two heavily
regulated activities, regulated through State and Federal laws and
regulations and permits. This heavy regulation has resulted in increased
costs in terms of operating and CIP. I'd like to point out that the Solid
Waste Division pattern of an increasing budget perhaps reflects where
wastewater was 15 or so years ago. Fifteen years ago, as some may recall,
wastewater was subject to enforcement actions which required
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improvement to operations and the development of a long range CIP Plan,
which you see today. Wastewater turned that corner many years ago and
gotten out of that situation, and we would like it to stay that way. But
what it took for wastewater was a 76 percent increase in sewer fees from
Fiscal Year 2000 where a typical single-family paid about $28.69 a month
to today when most pay $50.45 a month. Or that equates to about a $5.60
increase over that ten years.
Solid Waste Division has been addressing the shortfalls of not having
adequate resources as required by requirements of State and Federal laws
and permits, and today we are still addressing those shortfalls as well as
proceeding forward with what's necessary to meet the objectives of the
County's recently completed Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan.
As far as some history on residential refuse collection fees went from $3 a
month in 1983 to $8 a month in Fiscal Year 2000, to $14 a month, and
current, which is current, current what the rate is. That's about a
57 percent increase or an increase by about $1.50 a week. We have other
areas of proposed rate increases which our Division Chief for solid waste
Tracy Takamine will go over.
But turning to wastewater, we realize that these are challenging economic
times, and it is with that hard realization that we struggle with the matter
of rates and fees for both divisions, for wastewater it has been the policy
that wastewater be self-sufficient and that revenues generated from sewer
fees pay for operations, maintenance, repair, and debt service for CIP. To
keep up with the efforts to maintain an acceptable reliability of the system
the recommendation you have before you is a 10 percent increase. Having
zero to something less than a 10 percent increase would mean that we
would, in future years, have to recapture that difference somehow between
that and the recommended 10 percent increase and also face increasing
costs and potential slippage on our compliance efforts. In terms of the
proposed rate you see, the single-family would be paying about $5.50, a
little more than that each month. I'd now like to, to turn it over to
questions and also as mentioned, Dave Taylor, our Division Chief, is
available for questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if you can turn to Page 27. I, I
think all of you got my memo dated April 9. Everybody got it? Okay,
thank you. On Page 29 [sic], under Fees-Sewer Collection,
Residential-Monthly Rates. Single family, and duplex dwellings served
by County water system per dwelling unit per month, the monthly base
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charge presently it's $23 and the proposed increase is $25.50; $2.50
increase. Member Victorino, you have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page? Again, Chair, I'm sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Page 27 on the Fee, Rate, Assessment
for Taxes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought you said 29, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excuse me, sorry.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Everybody got it? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Sorry about that, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the monthly base charge increased from $23 to
$25.50 and this is for single family and duplex dwellings served by
County water system per dwelling unit per month.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, Ms. Okuma, that would just be
the base charge; right? You're just referring to that as the base charge?
MS. OKUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Or Mr. Taylor -MS. OKUMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --or whoever would like to answer that,
yeah.
MS. OKUMA: The answer is yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then the rest is based upon the use of
water, is that correct?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then I read here, and because people
always ask me this question. You know, they say it's up to, for the first
9,000 gallons at which point it's capped.
MR. TAYLOR: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So the, you know, so if I do my math real
fast this would be, like, $25.50 and if I use 10,000 gallons, which most
people pretty much use in an average monthly time, that would be
somewhere...
MR. TAYLOR: $55.92 a month.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A month.
MR. TAYLOR: That's the max that a residential homeowner can pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and then that is compounded because
we get bi-monthly?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct. So your, your bill would be twice that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twice that. Okay, just so the public
understands because I hear this all the time. They get so upset. It's I use
too much water, and my bill goes way up. But it's capped at 9,000
gallons.
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct. We assume that if your water usage is more than
9,000 gallons, everything beyond that you're probably irrigating with.
You're not dumping it down the sewer, so we don't charge for that.
That's based on the past studies we've done. That's what we've, that's
kind of where the number crunch and that's what we think.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I think that's, that's, I know
that's something that, that I think the public needs to understand. Okay.
Thank you very much. I appreciate it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Yeah, let me read the rest of
the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What you going read the whole thing?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, that's for single family. And what Mr. Victorino
is talking is that also there's a monthly metered water usage charge per
1,000 gallons and this is for the first 9,000 gallons at, at which point the
charge is capped. So there is a cap. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair It was, it was
brought to my attention about, you know, you going by single-family and
is there a definition for single-family? You know, because the question
was brought to me about one person being in a home versus a family of
eight being in the same home. So they're still a single-family, but they're,
I guess they didn't equate the, the charge as being a flat rate across the
board.
MR. TAYLOR: The definition is based on a, a single residential unit, the
structure itself, not who is living there. Obviously, we have no way to
know whether one person is living in a home or whether 20 people are
living in a home. The numbers are based on averages. And so, basically
between the base charge, which essentially you can think that whether it's
one person in a house or eight people, you still have to pay your share of
the pipe, and the treatment plant, and all the fixed costs, and then the, the
additive rate, based on how much water you're using, takes into account
how many people are in your house. Obviously, if there's more people
you'll have a higher rate. So this is basically the balance to say that
everybody pays the base rate so that there's the base core infrastructure to
operate, and then the more you use the more you pay on top of that. So
that's how we sort of balance that out.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'll try to explain that then.
Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. I'm glad Member
Kaho'ohalahala brought up that issue, because I've been approached with
that as well. And, you know, you mentioned 55.92, that I guess would be
the max. So there's basically no, it would seem, at least on the surface, no
incentive to conserve. Because I know with the Water Department they, I
guess, with their fee structure there is I guess an incentive to conserve and,
you know, the heavy users pay. So what is the direction the Department
is, is looking at in the future with regards to this? Because, you know, I
guess on the surface for some residents who, I guess, you know, like
Member Kaho'ohalahala was explaining, you know, I'm going to have to
try to explain that too to my constituents, and, and I appreciate you gave
us the explanation, but your, your thoughts on this issue.
MR. TAYLOR: I think every year a question like this comes up, and I always
have difficulty answering it because conserving, processing the water is
not where our costs are. Our costs are to process the solids. So it doesn't
really help us, as the Wastewater Division, if people conserve water. It
doesn't really cost very much to move the water through the systems, it's
processing the solids. So the Water Department, obviously, is very
concerned with conservation. If we were concerned about conservation it
would be less solids which we really have no way to, to measure. So
that's why you really don't see that in, in our budget, in our fees, but you
do see it in, in Water's. And because, because we bill on a measurement
of how much water you're using, if you use less water you also pay less
sewer.
So kind of where that leads down the road is if everybody cuts their water
usage in half we'd have to raise our rates even more because even though
we'd be bringing in less water our solids would be the same, so we would
just need to charge more per gallon. So that's kind of how all that works.
And so, really if we could, if we could, if we had some way to measure it
we would charge for your, your, your weight of solid material you're
adding not for the amount of water, but clearly there's no way to do that.
So the closest approximation we come is volume of water. That's kind of,
of the background answer for that without getting into all the details.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Well that, that's more clarity
to something that I thought was initially murky, you know. So anyway
thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's still murky water.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no pun intended so to speak, Mr. Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. The next area is single family and
duplex dwellings not served by County water system per month. The flat
rate for dwelling unit goes from $44.50 to $48.75. Mr. Molina, questions
on that?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, just trying to figure out the,
yeah, go ahead, pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How does this, and I guess my only
question is how do we get a family or a duplex dwelling not served by
County water system...I mean where would that...Upcountry? No. No.
Give me an example.
MR. TAYLOR: Those are, that's Lanai; Kapalua; Kualapuu, Molokai; and
Kaanapali. Those areas are served by non-County water...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, private water systems.
MR. TAYLOR: Right. And so, we don't have any water billing information
from them. And since the Water Department does our billing for us we
have no water billing information, so they have to have a flat rate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. That made it perfectly clear in
my mind now. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. In, in light of that I was
going to say since you do not know the cost of water or the amount of
water used, then you were saying then you do a flat rate.
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and that's information that,
that cannot be obtained?
MR. TAYLOR: There's really no way to measure that because on Lanai we have
no way to get the water meter readings per house incorporated into the
water bill. Again, the Department of Water Supply does our billing for us.
So they know how much, from their meter readings, how to calculate our
share of the bill. Somehow, there would have to be a way to get the Lanai
and Kaanapali houses, get that information of how much water they're
using to the Department of Water Supply, have that calculated in for any,
for any detailed billings.
Now, I'm not sure about those, whether they have automated, automatic
meters or what they have, but because we rely on the Department of Water
Supply for our billing we're kind of stuck with a flat rate for those kind of
people.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next area is condominiums and
multi-family dwellings served by County water system per dwelling unit
per month. The monthly base charge is $23.00. Again, it goes to $25.50
and the monthly metered water usage charge per 1,000 gallons (for the
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first 6,000 gallons at which point it's capped) goes from $3.05 to $3.38.
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So if I read this correctly
condominiums and multi-family dwelling served by the County per
dwelling unit, dwelling unit, for example, a condominium that's ten stories
high and has 150 units, each one of those units is that how a unit is or you
talking the whole building as one unit?
MR. TAYLOR: Each, each separate living unit with a kitchen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's how you would determine that?
MR. TAYLOR: Basically, yeah, right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . . (End of tape 5A).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
VICE-CHAIR KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, and then just to find out why then
is your cap at 6,000?
MR. TAYLOR: Basically because condominiums use less water per unit than a
single-family home on average. So basically we cap it at a lower value
because they're probably not using as much water. So, say this a different
way. A condominium most of that extra water is going to be used for the
exterior, you know, common areas and things like that. So all of these
numbers came from studies about how much condos were using, and
houses were using, and how much of that was going down the drain, and
how much was being used for irrigation. So they were all sort of
back-calculated from real data and that's how the numbers came out to be.
If a condo per unit is using more than 6,000, because condos tend to have
less people per living unit the rest of that water is probably going to
irrigation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But the solid amount is still the
same, right?
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MR. TAYLOR: Agreed. That's also taken into account in another part of our
rates where there was also a study done of, of what the density of sewage
was from commercial and hotels and residential.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You're getting the same amount
of solids.
MR. TAYLOR: All of that went into the rates where it was kind of a very
complicated rate model to look at volume, density from different uses. So
which is one of the reasons that the base rate for hotel and for, and for a
restaurant is different than for a single-family home, because the density,
how much solids there is per gallon is different than all of those. So the
rates have a very kind of complicated mathematical, statistical background
to calculate these, to balance all of those things out.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: But if you did a solid per square,
square inch I'm sure that the number would be drastically different.
MR. TAYLOR: We, we don't really have the capability of actually metering that
in the field so.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: I mean you're doing all kinds of
calculations, and I'm trying to get to some idea to understand when you're
saying that it's really the solids that we're concerned about because it's
what we would need to process. A single-family, the amount of solids that
they produce is no different than every single unit in that 100-unit
structure. So, but they're getting less charge to the condominium and yet
the amount of sludge that they produce, on square footage, is going to be
tremendously more than a single-family. I mean I'm just trying to be
practical about that. You're telling me that's how you calculate these
things.
So in, in reality the calculation, if you went on per square foot, the amount
of sludge and weight, by weight volume, I mean I'm just thinking isn't
that the case? You're producing much more in a confined space than you
are in a single-family.
MR. TAYLOR: I think it's really based on the number of people on average in a
residence, in, in some living unit and in a condo there's less people per
living unit. So on average if you have a two-bedroom condo versus a
three—bedroom, single-family house there's going to be less solids
generated in that condo, a two-bedroom condo on average than in a

- 149 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

three-bedroom house because a three-bedroom house is going to tend to
have more people than a condo. So it's really based on, on these statistics
that have been done about how many people, on average, are living in a
multi-family unit versus a single-family unit.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. When you get the numbers
of the exact amount, then let me know.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and part of, you know, because
we're one of the condominiums that, I guess, gets a flat rate, one of the
things that we deal with is we have people that very rarely reside, you
know, on our property year round so, and we can't do short-term rental.
It's not permitted on our property. So ours goes, our, our water use, which
is how you would back out those figures goes principally for our
irrigation, and pool, and, you know, I guess washing cars and a few other
things. But we have all potable water on our property too. We don't have
two separate systems. So it's hard for you guys to actually gauge, you
know, because we don't have that kind of metering to separate the two.
MR. TAYLOR: And, and one thing, if you think about your situation you have to
pay for the infrastructure whether you're using it or not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: So that's the base charge. And even if your whole condo is
empty, the only thing we're saving is electrical pumping costs and aeration
costs. We still have to do maintenance on our equipment, we still have to
pay debt service, you know, we still have do rounds, and we still have to
fix things, et cetera, et cetera. So because infrastructure is a bigger part
than electrical operations that's why the base charges tend to be more
regardless of how much water you're using, because the amount you're
using is less important, is kind of a smaller piece of the pie than building
the system and the fixed costs regardless of usage.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: That's why the, that's why the rates are balanced that way.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and what was the increased amount?
What was it going from and to?
MR. TAYLOR: They're all listed on, on the sheet you're looking at individually.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Oh, okay. So it went up $3.38?
MR. TAYLOR: It went up from $3.05 to $3.38 per thousand gallons.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. All right. Because the sheet I'm
looking at doesn't have the 3.05, it just has the 3.38. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll get you a new page, Member
Anderson, [sic] because the one...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Johnson.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: God. The one that we have is, you show the old
numbers with a bracket in red, and then the new numbers in blue. Okay.
Multi-family dwellings not served by County water system per month.
Flat rate per dwelling unit goes from $36.50 to $40.50. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So is this rate then applied to
those areas that you mentioned that are under private water?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct, same, the same areas. These are just
multi-family.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The last one for residential is others per
months per dwelling unit. Haliimaile goes from $10.85 to $11.95 and
residential care homes from $75.00 to $82.50. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Where are the residential care
homes? Where are the...
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MR. TAYLOR: You mean geographically where are they?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So these are other than
residential, so any residential care home then -MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --will pay that flat rate?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: There's no, there's no cap or
anything, no ceiling, this is just a flat rate and that's based on...
MR. TAYLOR: It's a flat, a flat rate per, per unit.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: It doesn't matter what size the
residential care home?
MR. TAYLOR: I, I, probably, I don't know the, the original creation of this, but
I, I imagine the thinking was probably that because it's been here like this
for a long time that it's probably residential care homes tend to be, you
know, either one or two people per, per unit and probably there was just a
thought saying, you know, we'll just cap that. I, I really don't know when
this was created. It's been like this for a long time.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I don't even know where you are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 27.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I can't find residential care.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Towards the bottom.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh. Oh, I see. Right in front of me. Sorry
about that. No.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Question. Residential care homes, could that be like
Hale Mahaolu?
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair, frankly, I'm not exactly sure. I, I can't even be sure
that, that there is any units that actually fit into this category. I would
really have to ask our accountant whether or not anyone even meets this
criteria. I'm not sure.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. Thank you. Let's see. Continuing on,
monthly use, use charge - non-residential. The rates for this class of users
are based on the monthly base charge and water volume usage per
1,000 gallons the, with irrigation meter rate represents that the rate per
1,000 gallons that the customer would be charged for all other meters
should be, should the customer utilize an irrigation meter. Monthly base
charge per meter, per month goes from $13.25 to $14.60. And maybe the
Department should explain this particular one here with irrigation meter.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What is that?
MR. TAYLOR: A commercial, a commercial establishment is allowed to go to
the Department of Water Supply and get a second water meter and have
one water meter just for irrigation and one water meter just for inside uses.
So clearly if you've got, and, and we wouldn't charge any sewer bill on
the, on the water, on the irrigation water meter clearly because none of
that comes into our system. But the water coming through the water meter
that only goes inside clearly all of that water is going down the sewer. So
that's what with and without irrigation meters refers to.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, clear on that one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Continuing on Page 28, without irrigation
meter rate. Commercial goes from $4.65 to $5.14; hotels from $6.45 to
$7.11; industrial, restaurants, food service establishment, commercial with
restaurant/food service establishment goes from $7.95 to $8.76; United
States Government from $4.65 to $5.14; State $4.65 to $5.14; County
from $4.65 to $5.14; Religious $4.65 and $5.14. Department, fast
explanation on this one here.
MR. TAYLOR: Of what in specifically, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Regarding, so this is without the irrigation meter rate.
So this is all one meter?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct. That, that's if your irrigation and your inside
uses come through one water meter.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Maybe we should charge the State $5.65 like the PUC
recommends for some of our communities on Molokai.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good one. Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I ditto that and actually I'd like to raise it to
$25.88, then I think we can make up our $18 million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. You know, it's been a long day so we got
to get some humor in between; right? With irrigation meter rate
commercial is from $5.85 to $6.45; hotels from $8.55 to $9.43; industrial,
restaurant/food service establishment, commercial with restaurant/food
service establishment goes from $10.20 to $11.24; U.S. Government $5.85
to $6.45; State, County, and Religious goes from $5.85 to $6.45; Kualapuu
- flat rate per month $44.50 to $48.75. Department, comments?
MR. TAYLOR: Again, these are with irrigation meter rates, so you can see that
the assumption is all of this water is going to the sewer so that's why
they're higher than the, without irrigation meter readings.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And Kualapuu flat rate?
MR. TAYLOR: Kualapuu is, again, not on a County water system, so we have no
way to monitor their exact water usage.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Johnson? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Taylor, because you have no way of monitoring
would you have an idea of average use? Do you, do you guesstimate a use
to base the flat rate?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, and if you look, when, when we look at basically the ratio
is to look back at the residential uses. The max residential use is $55.92,
but when we, when we're not measuring the water that, we drop that to
$48.75 to say, you know, we're not going to charge you the max. We're
going to assume, since we're not measuring it it's some percentage less.
And that's exactly what we do with commercial.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. This is Surcharges. Rate per thousand
pounds of suspended solids over 4 pounds per 1,000 gallons of sewage
goes from $673 to $775; and, also, rate per thousand pounds for all pounds
of BOD over 4 pounds per 1,000 gallons of sewage goes from $1,101 to
$1,273. Mr. Taylor, can you provide us some insights or comments
regarding this?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, these fees are for, for special cases where, where people
are dumping basically some, some pretty nasty stuff into the sewer system.
For example, if a, if a ship comes, and they want to empty their sewage
storage tank, which, into our system, which, which has been there for a
long time, and it's, it's kind of nasty this gives a billing rate for them.
We'll go out, our chemists will measure it, we'll do some lab tests, find
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out just how much stuff is in there, and charge them accordingly based on,
on its density, and, and its components.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That sounds pretty heavy, so no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Then how do we know that the proposed 775 is an
appropriate amount to pay if it's, if it's stuff coming in and our system
needs to, to take care of it, then how do we know that this is a fair value?
MR. TAYLOR: The, the original rates were based on...we did a pretty thorough
study a number of years ago to come up with a computer model that
accurately weighs volume versus quality versus density versus different
users, and based on this number, this thing BOD, biochemical oxygen
demand, which is basically how, how organically dirty the wastewater is,
so based on that the dirtier it is the more it, we charge and this is, these
numbers are all compared against each other. So it's all rebalanced
against residential, commercial, et cetera. So that's how we know, it, it
follows the original assumptions we made. The original numbers, the
original statistics about how dirty this is versus residential versus
commercial. So it all gets rebalanced.
All the rates you see they, we don't come up with them individually.
Basically, we look at the revenue we need, kind of plug that in, and it all
re-sorts so everything changes. So, so the ratios between the costs are
always the same every year.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: So that's how we, we know it's the right number.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But it's not a break even kind of a cost. It is a, it is a fee
that you are going to be making some money off of taking care of their
waste?
MR. TAYLOR: Well, we don't really make money because obviously we don't
make a profit. So...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But we're not in the business of going broke as well.

- 158 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

MR. TAYLOR: Right, we're trying to, to stay even. We're trying to have our
revenues exactly balanced, our expenditures as a government operation.
So this is their share. If they put this in this is their share of the total
budget versus commercial versus residential, et cetera, versus how much
stuff they're adding to the system and how much it costs to process it. So
that's, it, it's calculated, it's not chosen, and it all comes out of that, that
weighting, sorting program that we use to balance residential versus
commercial versus hotel versus volume, et cetera.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Well as long as you're comfortable with this
kind of a fee because it's like shipping somebody's garbage to, to us.
MR. TAYLOR: This, this fee comes up very, very, very rarely.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: The great percentage of our fees are from permanent structures,
permanent buildings, but every now and then we get some special case
where somebody wants to dump a special case, and it's very, very rare.
It's just in there so that we have some legislated manner that we can
charge somebody a fair price, but it happens very rarely.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Can you name one of these customers,
these rare customers?
MR. TAYLOR: For example, I, I mentioned a ship once. There, there's been a
couple of ships that have come in that have asked, you know, to empty
their, their sewage tanks in our system. They do it with trucks and things
like that. So I, I think those are the ones that come to my mind. And we
try to, we try to help them because clearly, you know, they're allowed to
go out past three miles and dump. We don't want them to. So this gives
us a fair price to pay [sic] them, a fair price to charge them, and it helps
them do the right thing, because there is a way for us to actually accept
their waste and charge them appropriately.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next set of fees are Fees - Cesspool
and Septic Tank Pumping, based on service year of July 1 st to June 30 th of
the following year. Option 1: regular work hour service charge for the
first pumping in service, service year; fmal service charge for the second
and subsequent pumping within the service year from 498 to $552.
Option 2: contract basis through water billing - regular work hours: single
family and duplex dwelling per month per dwelling unit goes form $83 to
$92; single-family and duplex dwellings requiring more pumping than
provided for in Section 14.29.010, Maui County Code, per call during
regular work hours goes from $498 to $552; multi-family and
non-residential customers per load during regular work hours goes from
$498 to $552. Mr. Taylor, can you provide us with some insights and
comments?
MR. TAYLOR: Cesspool and septic tank pumping is still a program that we, we
have in our Department that we basically really just pass the money
through. Public Works Highways has the, I think they're our trucks that
Public Works Highways keeps, and their drivers operate them. For the
most part in the unsewered areas the private septic tank and cesspool
haulers do most of the business. I think it's really Hana and kind of a
backup on Molokai where you may not have the private haulers or they
charge a lot that the County still does some pumping or, especially on
Molokai, I think with a backup in case the, the two small businesses ever
go out of business we don't want to be left without some way to pump
those people.
So for the most part there's very few pumpings a year. We get the
numbers every month from Highways and there's very, very few County
staff pumping cesspools and septic tanks. It's mostly done by private
entities. So these are just the costs for the County to do it, and I think
Hana's the big one. 'Cause I think the private guys charge a lot of money
to drive all the way down there. And so, I think the County still pumps
some of those.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions in regards to fees,
cesspools and septic tank pumping? Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: My, my only concern, Chairman, would be these
residences that require the pumping, especially for our community, are
the, the old timers because they've got, they've got cesspools primarily,
and the transition to a septic tank for them is unfortunately expensive. So
to increase it, you know, at, at this rate for the individuals that are the, the
elderly, primarily, this is quite high for them, and we are limited, you
know, with those operations we have on Molokai that does provide
pumping. But, nonetheless, an old community, with old timers this is
high. Yeah. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more comments, Members? Seeing
none, go to private septic disposal. Per 1,000 gallons or less of waste for
private haulers that haul waste to the County sewage treatment system,
except for Molokai, goes from $72 to $80. Mr. Taylor, quick comment?
MR. TAYLOR: As I mentioned private haulers pump cesspools and septic tanks,
and they dump in our system, so this is the, the rate that we charge them
for their share.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions to this, for this?
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And how do you keep track because I see
them doing it down here on Waiehu Beach Road, and I think we asked
that question one time, but I, I forgot how you keep track, so give me an
idea.
MR. TAYLOR: It's basically the honor system.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yeah, you did say that. Go ahead.
MR. TAYLOR: We really have no way to, to, to measure exactly how much is in
their trucks or how much they're dumping. We do, everybody has to have
a permit. Every pumper has a permit. They, they have to fill out reports
and get them to us, and we do spot inspections, but a lot of it is just honor
system.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do you, do you think it's, it's a workable
system, I mean, in your opinion?
MR. TAYLOR: The, the loading is pretty small compared to how much comes in
anyway. We're trying to collect a fair amount. We, we try to be, our
pretreatment guys try to stay on the haulers. You know, we, we look for
reasonable numbers. We know how many cesspools there are. We know
how many there should be every few years. The number should, should
basically jive, but there's really no way to know absolutely if somebody is,
you know, collecting money from a resident and, and not reporting it to us.
There's really no way for us to know that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do you guys compare it to their bills that
they actually send out to the client or the one they...
MR. TAYLOR: No, we don't have access to their -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You don't have access to that either.
MR. TAYLOR: --private billings between clients.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I got one fast question. You know, on
Option number 2, contract basis through water billing. Regular work
hours, single family and duplex dwellings per month per dwelling unit. So
if someone, like say, on Molokai on fixed income have a cesspool, I don't
know if they do any calculations, but through their water billing, whatever
usage that they have, and, and adding this new $92, so they can compare,
right? In other words, Option 1 against Option 2, which is more beneficial
for them.
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct. And if they're pumping it a lot, if they're
pumping it really often they're going to go with Option 2 because, you
know, it's basically unlimited if you pay that amount.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good. Thank you. Next area private septic
disposal. Per 1,000 gallons or less of waste of, for private haulers that
haul waste to the County sewage treatment system, except for Molokai,
goes from $72 to $80. Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing, none, okay. I think we're going to get
questions on the next one. Fee - reclaimed water service. Rate per 1,000
gallons for major agriculture goes from $0.12 to $0.14; rate per 1,000
gallons for agriculture goes from $0.25 to $0.30; rate per 1,000 gallons for
all other users goes from $0.97 to $1.16. Department, if you can
comment?
MR. TAYLOR: First of all, we currently have no users in the major agricultural
class. There's a certain acreage that's in the code. I don't remember what
it is, but we have no one in that acreage using, using reclaimed water. So
everyone is either under the agriculture class or other users. There's a
third class that isn't in here. There's the, the Reclaimed Water Ordinance
has a, has a section called, it's called deferred costs. Meaning if I had a
brackish water well, and the County put a reclaimed waterline in front of
my commercial establishment, and told me by ordinance I had to use the
reclaimed water, I don't pay these rates, I'm allowed to say, eh, my
brackish water well only costs $0.07 a thousand gallons, so that's what I
pay the County, my deferred cost.
So those aren't shown on the rates because they are by, a few by, by
special contract because they're paying that deferred rate. Most of the
customers are paying the all others rate, but by far most of the volume
comes under the agricultural rate. Probably something like 90 percent of
the volume of water comes under the agriculture rate or under the special
deferred cost rate. That's where most of our revenue comes from. Only
probably around 10 percent of our total revenue comes in under the, the,
the highest all users rate or all others rate.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I hate to bring this up, but it is, it is a really nice
and attractive amount of money. I mean it's really cheap and maybe
Mr. Taylor can tell me. Do we have any trouble getting people to use this
water?
MR. TAYLOR: County ordinance says that if there is a reclaimed waterline in
front of your property you must use it for irrigation. So we have no
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trouble with anyone who, where we have a line in front of their property,
because they have no choice and that's only for commercial
establishments. So all of our customers, they want the water, clearly it's
cheaper than DWS water, so we have really no problem. As you heard
before from us, the problem is the next bunch of users are a lot further
away. So people want the water because, especially because they want to
pay these rates, but we don't have really any way to get them the water.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well it sure is a bargain compared to what
the rest of us pay for water. I mean it's just too bad that we can't create a
demand for it so that we could get more for it. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson? Member
Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . .(Speaking without mic). . ) The rate per
thousand gallons for agriculture I know we got only . . .(inaudible). . .
probably be Lahaina and Kihei that has this . . . (inaudible). . . What, who
are the users for that 1,000 gallons . . . (inaudible). . . Is that the golf course
. . .(inaudible). . .?

MR. TAYLOR: The, I have this information. It's going to take me a second to
kind of fmd it here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is that Elleair Golf Course?
MR. TAYLOR: Elleair Golf Course is, is one of the big users as is Monsanto.
(silence) Elleair Golf Course is paying...I think they're paying the
agricultural rate, I believe . . .(End of tape 5B). . . they might be under a
deferred contract. I, I'm not sure.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . (Speaking without mic). . ) Okay. Mr. Chair,
can we get the list of all the people, in Kihei any way, using this reuse
water, and I'd like to see what these people are being charged. My, my
question is who is, it says on where somebody's. . . (inaudible). .. I mean
who is the person that is . . .(inaudible). . .which one's to use
. . .(inaudible). . .
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MR. TAYLOR: The County Council. This is by the ordinance which is listed
here, 14.31.020, .29.60, and 20.30.080. The ordinance establishes user
classes and says what is the definition. Our staff looks at the uses and says
which, which does this fit into? We do not make a subjective decision.
We just do an analysis of which, which class they fit in by the Council
ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr Chair, then I would ask that the Department
show us in here what this special use is that's not here; isn't it? It's not
here?
MR. TAYLOR: I'm not sure what you mean, what special use are you referring
to?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You said that you've got -CHAIR PONTANILLA: The deferred rate.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --major agriculture, agriculture, and other uses.
Then you said you got a special rate.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay. That's also in the ordinance. The ordinance says, very
specifically, if you currently have your own source of water, and we, by
ordinance make you use reclaimed water, your rate is your deferred cost.
You have to pay us what, what it was costing you to run your own source.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Give me an example.
MR. TAYLOR: Let's say I had a brackish water well on my golf course.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Give me a, a real life example, here in Maui
County, where you've got this special rate.
MR. TAYLOR: Kaanapali Golf Course.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: We, we did a CIP project a decade ago or so ago. We ran a
reclaimed waterline to Kaanapali Golf Course. At that point, they fell
under the ordinance, and they had to use our water, but they said, well, we
have a brackish water source that only costs us, you know, five cents a
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thousand gallons or something to operate. So by ordinance their cost they
pay to us is five cents per thousand gallons.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do we need to relook, relook this, this rate that
we have?
MR. TAYLOR: That's, that, that's up to the Council. What we do is we go back
time to time, and we ask for renew electrical, you know, new electrical
billings, you know, and we raise that based on what their new deferred
cost would be, but the, if the Council chooses to do that and wants to
change the, the deferred rate part of the ordinance, you know, the
Council's free to do that. But it was put in at that time because some of
the, the larger users said, well, wait, you know, we have our own water. If
you're going to force us to use this water why should we pay more for it?
And so, because of that the Council, at that time, decided to put that clause
in the Reclaimed Water Ordinance and whether or not it remains in there
is, is clearly up to the body.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to get a list of
those users and also to see what they're paying. I, I, bet it would be very
interesting.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It would.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The other area is in Kihei, how many users fall
under this so-called special rate?
MR. TAYLOR: In fact, the, and that's called the avoided cost clause. In fact,
there's only, there's only three avoided cost customers, that's the Haggai
Institute in Kihei, Kaanapali Resort, and Maui Pineapple in, in Lahaina.
Those are the three that are operating under these avoided costs clause.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Haggai had a well. Okay, and who else?
MR. TAYLOR: Haggai, Kaanapali and Maui Pine. Maui Pine in Lahaina behind
the wastewater treatment plant.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and so, the...
MR. TAYLOR: I believe Maui Pine has used, they use almost no water. Really
it's, there's really two; Haggai Institute in Kihei and Kaanapali Resort in
West Maui are the two that are under the avoided cost contract clause.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about the Elleair Golf Course?
MR. TAYLOR: No, they're under, Elleair Golf Course falls under, they're not an
avoided cost clause. They, they're under one of the, one of the, one of the
rates. I'm trying to just look at the numbers here and figure out which,
which rate they're under. (silence) They are under agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Anyway, I'd like to get a list,
Mr. Chairman That's all right. you don't need to get it for this
Committee. I'll get it myself.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, yeah. Like Mr. Taylor said only three I think
Member, Chairman Mateo? Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So that completes the...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, can I ask one question?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, sure. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: How do you, how do you verify
their, their costs?
MR. TAYLOR: Their costs are, that's something our engineers look at. We, we
get their electric bills so we know how much, let me say this. From, when
it first started they had electric meters or they, we had pump sizing, so we
knew how much it cost to run their pump, some money in there for
maintenance, et cetera. And so, as electrical costs go up that's basically
the increasing factor. So it's basically calculated that way.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's, that's the only measure
you use then?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, it's, it's basically between their engineers and our
engineers trying to work out what seems reasonable. There is no, you
know, absolute way. If you're asking, we don't have a CPA come in and
do a cost accounting of their, of their actually cost or anything like that.
It's really engineering calculations.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and then you mentioned
besides the golf course Elleair that Monsanto is another large user.
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then they're paying the rate
of what?
MR. TAYLOR: Elleair...or Monsanto is paying also the agricultural rate.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, and you're going to
provide that information on the various users and the rates?
MR. TAYLOR: We, we can do that. In fact, it's a spreadsheet that I have in front
of me that we'll transmit officially.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions? No more questions?
Thank you. Page 30. Go to the Solid Waste Fund, Page 30. And joining
us will be Mr. Takamine. Thank you, Mr. Taylor. Thank you. Director?
MS. OKUMA: Yes, thank you very much. Perhaps just a few words before
turning it over to Tracy Takamine. The increases in rates and fees are
needed to address an estimated $16 million gap between Fiscal Year 2010
operating costs which amount to about 29 7 million and there's a projected
revenue at existing fee levels of 14 million. Under current rates, our
programs would have a gap of approximately 53 percent between revenues
and operational expenses. Hence, the reliance would be on general funds
to cover that gap.
I'd just like to mention that even with the proposed fee increases that
Mr. Takamine can cover, that gap is approximately 52 percent between
revenues which would be estimated at 15 million and operational expenses
of 29.7 million. Therefore, the reliance would be on general funds to
cover that gap. I'd like to now turn it over to Mr. Takamine. There are
some other, several fees and rates that are being proposed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, again on Page 30 starting with
account 3429 Fees - Refuse Disposal. Unit charge goes from .0265 to
.029 per pound, and also, .045 to .0475 per pound for grease trap waste
contaminated cooking oil; .0345 to .0415 per pound for cleaning, clean
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cooking oil. And, Mr. Takamine, if you can provide with some comments
or insights?
MR. TAKAMINE: The first one we can convert it to pounds, I guess it's easier to
understand, I mean to, to tons because we charge by tons. But the first one
at .0265 increase to .029 converting it to tons that's, that's for commercial
tipping fees. The current rate is $53 per ton. So at the increase that we
just mentioned would bring it to $58 per ton for commercial tipping fees at
the landfill.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then the, the next one.
MR. TAKAMINE: The next one that went up from .045 to .0475 per pound for
grease trap waste contaminated cooking oil converting it to tons, its
current rate of $90 per ton increased to $95 per ton. And that is basically
fats, oils and grease, or what we call FOG going to the landfill. And, and
that's actually being recycled through the EKO contract, the subcontractor
which his Pacific Biodiesel being converted to biodiesel.
And the last one mentioned .0345 increased to .0415 per pound for clean
cooking oil. I think, I don't know why it says clean cooking oil, but
basically that's the biosolids. Maybe we need to make a correction to that.
That is for biosolids current tipping fee of $69 per ton increased to $83 per
ton.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Earlier, Tracy, we made mentioned of the fact
that the supplemental funding that's required, you know, to really sustain
this whole area. What realistically would these fees have to be in order for
us to actually break even?
MR. TAKAMINE: These, these fees actually only one of them would have to
increase and that's the commercial tipping fee. Let me get that. The
actual cost of service we should be charging $97 per ton.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and we're charging what?
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MR. TAKAMINE: We're currently charging 53, and we're asking for $58 per
ton, increase of 9.4 percent.
MS. OKUMA: Councilmember Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
MS. OKUMA: I can just, we can refer you to when we did our presentation about
a week or two ago we did the . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MS. OKUMA: If you refer to Page 21, if you have that in front of you, that tells
you what the gap is as far as what needs to be filled for each of these
programs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, Mr. Chair, I think these may be
some areas because we're, if we have a big budget deficit to fill, and we,
we cannot continue subsidizing from the General Fund all the time. Then,
you know, my philosophy is these are the areas where we have to look for
revenue where people are not paying their fair share. So thanks very
much, Tracy.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, and, Director, again, you
said that your operations budget is 29 million?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And your revenues is 14, and
your gap is...
MR. TAKAMINE: At the, at the current rate.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: At the current rate is 14 million
and your gap is 15 million?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then what Member Johnson
asked, then how do you make it self-supporting or self-sustaining? You're
saying only that one section needs to be increased? . . . (inaudible).. .
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, that, that's one section out of the three that we just
mentioned. Actually, the rest of the Solid Waste Budget if...we'll actually
go over the collection fees for residential refuse collection when we get
further on, but that would have to increase from the current rate of $14
per, per month to $38 per month. And our recycle diversion which is
currently $10 per month would have to increase to $23 per month. If you
take all those three increases that would put us pretty much on a
self-sufficient revenue stream.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That would be some hefty increases. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The category six is the commercial charge fee.
Is that where I look at, look, look for it?
MR. TAKAMINE: For commercial?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: Oh, I think we're up, actually we're up -CHAIR PONTANILLA: On the top side.
MR. TAKAMINE: --on the top right now -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Tipping fees.
MR. TAKAMINE: --right across line 3429, fees - fee disposal.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Page 30?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Page 30.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and then guide me to the place that I've
got to look at.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, when you look at Account 3429.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You go Fees - Refuse Disposal right across the sheet.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Unit Charge and the three charges that you see are
tipping fees.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So what Mr...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And right now...go ahead, Joe, I want to listen.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay, and what Mr. Takamine is saying that he
gave us per ton the cost for each of the three areas that they're looking at
increasing. One is the refuse disposal per ton, the other one is grease trap
waste contaminated cooking oil, and the other one I think was biosolids.
MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct. It says, currently it says for clean cooking
oil -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Clean cooking oil.
MR. TAKAMINE: --but really that's biosolids.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So then the question was asked that we
should raise, not we should raise, in order to make up that $15 million
deficit where would we raise and up to what point, and you said?
MR. TAKAMINE: And if you're just looking at these three items that we're
talking about right now only the tipping fee, the first line would affect our
revenue stream. The other two that we're talking about the, the, the grease
trap waste contaminated cooking oil or FOG, and the biosolids is actually
part of our EKO Composting contract which is basically a pass through.
These numbers are used to account for FOG which we actually pay to,
directly to EKO for the contract, and for the biosolids which, which in this
case here this $83 is for charging outside non-County biosolids mainly
Pukalani Country Club, and we charge them the same rate that basically
equals charging the County for processing of the County biosolids.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Now, now that increase that you had on
the first one is not residential, it's commercial?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's commercial tipping fees.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's commercial. Okay, and I don't have that
book that the Director talked about, but in it does the commercial sector
put into our landfills a lot more than the residential?
MR. TAKAMINE: The commercial sector puts in...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And I don't know how you make that
determination, but I'd like to know the answer.
MR. TAKAMINE: I, I would say between 60 and 70 percent is what the
commercial puts in and residential is about 25 to 30 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, and would you say that the amount that
we're charging the commercial to make up that 15 million, if we were to,
say 70 percent, you pay 70 percent of whatever the cost is, would that be
fair?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, the commercial, right now, at the current rate, well, at
the current cost, for example, of our operation right now, the landfill
operations of the division, the landfill incurs 61 percent of our operational
costs. The refuse collection incurs 22 percent, diversion or recycling is 12
percent, and abandoned vehicles is 5 percent. So landfill costs is, is 61
percent of my operating costs and revenues from the landfill currently is
about, running about 62 percent. So it, it's just, you know, it's basically
the same percentage right now, although the actual cost of service, like I
mentioned for commercial should be actually an increase of 83 percent
right now from $53 per ton to $97 per ton.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And that's just to, to, to break even, to make
that $15 million deficit?
MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. What you are recommending in essence
we would, what, hit what part of that 15 million?
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MR. TAKAMINE: It, it's actually, all of, the commercial is not paying for all of
the landfill operation, for example.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: Part of that we would have to also increase and it's part of the
increase in the refuse collection. Right now the $14 that we charge for
residents does not include the cost of service to landfill their, their trash.
If we were to include the cost of service of landfill residential refuse, and
the actual cost that we're currently incurring of our operations, again, it
would go from 14 to 38.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Got it.
MR. TAKAMINE: So part of that would also pay for that landfill operation.
MS. OKUMA: Let me just try, try to summarize again.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, let, let, let me try this. Okay. The actual cost for
solid waste would be, if we were to charge the, the dollar amount to, to
meet their deficit would be $97 for commercial users, $38 for residential
collection, $23 for diversion. What people are paying today for landfill,
commercial, tipping fees $53, collection $14, and diversion is $10. So
there is kind of a wide gap for all three areas. And if we were to say,
okay, we're going to provide the Solid Waste the funding that they require
so that no monies from the General Fund is utilized, then you looking at
hefty increases in all three areas.
So basically what you, what I'm trying to say is that the landfill for
commercial users would go from $53 to 97, collection, collection meaning
throughout the neighborhood from $14 to $38 per month, and then for
diversion $10 to $23.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right, and, and if we want to move towards this,
I'm not saying how much we want to move -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that would ultimately, by making these raises,
open up General Fund money -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --that right now we're giving to them.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So I don't, when I looking at these now, I don't
know what their recommendation is as far as the raises.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, well, I think, let me try this again. We making
small bites to get to these numbers, the 97, the 38, and the 23.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, remember way back when, when this, when this
whole thing came back, came to us, residential rates were, like, $12 a
month or something like that or even lower, and it went from, I think from
$7 to $12 to $14 and, and now, you know... or yeah, from $14 and, and
whatever increase they're planning to do.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So it's gradually trying to bite at this big number.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, the thing is, is that unless we try to keep
monies out of the landfill, opening these landfills and closing these
landfills are very expensive -CHAIR PONTANILLA: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --from what I can see and what we need to
charge. So we need to, number one, not put as much in; and, number two,
if the commercial is contributing to 70 percent of the trash being put into
it, and they are not paying their fee, the EKO fee similarly to the
residential and the, whatever that other one is, the 10 to 23 one, we need to
look at collecting this, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, yeah, I agree. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and I guess we got to tackle what we
want to see that...

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, it, it would be up to us to create that fee. So what
the Department is saying, this is their recommendation at this time.
Whatever fee that we, that we want to impose on our customers it would
be decided among all nine of us.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, okay. So they, they don't have a
recommendation; huh?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well the recommendation -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: We're going to be the...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --is noted as right here.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, see, I don't understand those figures. But,
anyway, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Mr. Chairman, I think for the, for the Department I, I
think I would like to, to know, you're asking for these increases in these
categories, and I don't know how effective you were in actually collecting
these prior fees from existing users. So what have [sic] been your, your
ability to collect fees because here you are asking for more fees, and I just
want to know whether or not you have been successful, and I actually
asking about delinquencies? So if you cannot collect, you're coming to us
asking us to charge more, when in the first place you have I don't know
what kind of delinquencies. So can you kind of equate that for me in
terms of what may be outstanding?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. TAKAMINE: Okay. As of, as of April 13, we had 1,173 delinquent
residential accounts totaling $94,284. We've sent out, it's hard for us to
control it because these are just single, we send out, you know, bills twice
a year. We've sent out a second, first delinquent notice, and we are
currently in the process of now closing any account that's not up to date,
and we need to do this in order to get ready for our next billing cycle
because we need to clear the books in order to ensure that we know how
many accounts that we currently have that are active.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And that's just your residential accounts. Do we have
any delinquent commercial accounts?
MR. TAKAMINE: We do have delinquent commercial accounts. I don't have
the exact number, but we have some big commercial accounts that are, are
overdue, and I think right now it's running about I would say between
500,000 to $1 million worth of fees.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay, and, Mr. Chairman, the only reason I ask is
because it's quite difficult to impose additional costs on somebody who
has these delinquent numbers. So prior to looking at the implementation
of a new fee we've got to come up with a means of collecting what's
already due. I just needed to share that aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, Mr. Mateo, I, I agree with you and there's some,
there were publications in the Maui News in regards to delinquents as, as
well as issues with the, with solid waste area. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and I know what you're trying
to do, and I, we're going to have to make hard decisions, but of that
94,000 how many accounts you said, one thousand what?
MR. TAKAMINE: One thousand one hundred seventy-three.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One hundred seventy-three. So you're
somewhere around $800 per account. If I do my math, 94,284, right,
divided by 1,100 and...
MR. TAKAMINE: It should, it should be about $84 per account, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh? About $84 an account, okay, maybe
I'm wrong.
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, $84.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Sorry, I stay over here trying to
calculate. But my question is this, you know, Chair Mateo brings up a
good point about collection, but even if we were able to collect all of this,
this wouldn't, this ain't going to do much to dent the whole problem. The
problem is we've, we've subsidized it for a long time. The day of
reckoning is coming. Last year, when, when we wanted to raise it by $4
everybody went ballistic, we didn't want to raise it, no don't touch it. We
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ended up going $2 and everybody told me I was nuts because I politically
suicide for wanting to raise it last year.
The problem with us has been this. We wait, we wait, we wait, and wait,
and then we gotta go charging with big numbers. Water, classic example.
Five years no rate increase, bam, all of a sudden double digit, double digit,
double digit, and everybody's upset. When we said back in the late '90s
let raise it a little, no, no, don't touch it. Don't touch it. That's been our
challenge. Okay, let's be honest. Let's put the cards on the table and let's
call a spade a spade. Okay. So that's been done, we cannot change the
past, we're going to have to make the future pay for it, right.
So here we are and like Mr. Nishiki said, we're way out of whack. You
want to go, we need to collect 38; you're proposing 18. That's on the next
page, so I'm not going to go ahead of myself. But what proposals you
guys are making are small chunks, but it's not going to help a lot. We're
going to have to make a bigger decision and maybe take bigger chunks
right.
MS. OKUMA: Well, let me just point out that as I started this before turning it
over to Tracy, under our current rates given what our expenses are and
given our projected revenues we have a gap of 53 percent as between
revenues and operation expenses. Even with this fee increase being
recommended that gap will only close to 52 percent. So...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. If I may ask, Ms. Okuma,
percentages, the world out there looking just like me, I don't know. Give
me a dollar figure. What are you talking when you're talking a dollar
figure between what we're actually getting and what we actually should be
collecting, more or less? No have to be the exact dollar, but give me a
number, because I think the people need to know that.
MR. TAKAMINE: Based on our current rates the revenues we would be bringing
in would be 14 million, approximately $14 million rounded off. If we
increase it by what we're recommending today and everything passes we
would be bringing in 15,142,000. So approximately $1.1 million
additional funding revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And if, if you talking 52 percent, then we
should be bringing in, like, $32 million in actual true costs of what we
need to run and do all of our refuse system, solid waste.
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MR. TAKAMINE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you . . . (End of tape 6A).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We shall decide that. The recommendation has been
made by the -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Environmental Management Department. Mr.
Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: These delinquencies put aside, and we got to
figure out how we're going to collect it. Isn't there a large group of
residences that don't subscribe to garbage collection? And my question is
where do they put that rubbish then if they don't do it with the County?
Just...
MR. TAKAMINE: You're exactly right. I don't know what the exact percentage
of residents that are not on, on residential refuse routes, but we do, it's, it's
not a mandatory collection service, so it's, it's voluntary. And when you
look at it at the end, all the trash that everyone creates on this island ends
up on the central, on this island, and maybe in Hana, it ends up in the
Central Maui Landfill. So we, the County, you know, we're incurring the
cost to dispose of everyone's trash. Sooner or later it gets to the landfill.
They might not have to pay a residential refuse collection cost. You
know, they could hand carry it down there or they might take it down to
the local ballpark and dump it illegally in the, in the trash bin there, but
that trash eventually gets to the landfill, and we have to incur the cost of
disposing it. So these individuals that are not on the system are getting a
free, free ride.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Do you have any recommendations, like,
mandatory. . .(Inaudible). . .?

MR. TAKAMINE: One of, actually one of the recommendation is part of our
recently completed Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan is to go to
universal refuse collection and that may solve the problem in that it will
require everyone on our routes that we go down, if you're going down a
street and there's a hundred homes, and we're currently picking up, say,
50 percent of those homes, if we go to universal trash collection it will
require, by law, that everyone on that route will pay for refuse collection
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whether they want or not, and we will pick up the trash if it's out. If it's
not out we won't pick up their trash, but they're paying for the service.
And that way we'll get 100 percent participation in terms of a revenue
stream for that particular route.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Takamine. And that will be discussed
on another day. Okay. Members, we have the responsibility. If you want
to increase the fees to meet the deficit, then it would be us to decide that.
And what you see that is being presented to us are recommendations by
the Department.
Going to the next area, and this is an area that probably going have lot of
discussions again. This is Fees - Refuse Collection. Right now people are
paying $14 to have their trash picked up in Maui, on Maui; $7 on Lanai.
So what the Department is proposing is that the monthly residential fee for
Maui and Molokai be increased from $14 to $18 per refuse collection unit
per month for both islands, and this is twice-a-week pick-up. For the
island of Lanai the recommendation is from $7 to $9 per refuse collection
unit per month on the island of Lanai or one half the rate of Maui and
Molokai. It's going to be once-a-week service that would be provided.
So, Members, we had a lot of discussion on the tipping fees and basically
what the Department is proposing is an increase for refuse collection
residential from $4 on Maui per month and $2 per month for Lanai.
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. If I may ask the
Department, how much is a resident subsidized? What is our subsidy?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, currently the charge is they're paying $14. The actual
cost of service is $38, so they're being subsidized by about $24.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Twenty-four dollars, okay. And now that we're
getting two pick-ups, now yeah, is that, the so main, the major reason for
the increase is it just fuel cost or to pay for the second pick-up?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, actually the 14, let's see, the $14 to $18 charge for
residential refuse pick up, we currently provide manual and automated
service. So an automated service gets picked up twice-a-week, manual
service gets picked up once-a-week. Our, our charge is not really based
on whether they get once or twice. Again, the cost of service is $38 per
month. We're, we're charging 14, and we're asking 18. We, we're trying
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to increase at a reasonable rate. There's no, there's no formula we used to
come up with the 18. It was just based on, you know, what, what would
be an acceptable increase and that's what we came with. If, if we wanted
to come with that 38, we would have came with 38. Of course, we'd
know that we wouldn't get it. So we proposed this rate as a, as a
reasonable increase in rates.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. All right. Well, Mr. Chair,
we might get a few calls from those with manual pick up, but I think...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, what the Department is saying is that this
increase is small, but if they were to pay their fair share it would be from
$14 to $38 per month.
MR. TAKAMINE: And there's no difference in the manual versus automated in
terms of volume. The automated twice-a-week pick-up each cart is a 96
gallon cart. So when you get pick up twice-a-week it's, it's usually 180
gallons average. On a manual route, although they get picked up
once-a-week they're allowed to put six 32 gallon trash cans out which
equates to 180 gallons. So volume wise each resident is paying the same
for the same amount of volume per week.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: The people with manual accounts about how
many and what areas do we still have manual pick up?
MR. TAKAMINE: Manual pick ups are mostly, we still have Upcountry from
the Rice Park area going toward Kaupo, we still have gaps in the Haiku
area, and even in the Wailuku area we have manual pick-ups right down
here in Wailuku town, and Kihei we might have one or two streets out
there in Kihei, but mostly everything there is automated.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know, it's an increase and nobody likes
increases, but I think we better get real here. You know, if we don't
charge the, the people for the refuse collection, then we have to pay with
general funds. And since we don't have a whole lot of general funds, and
we're facing this huge reduction in our income this year, it's pay one way
or pay the other. To me I don't see the difference. You either going to
have to pay a refuse fee or you're going to have to pay property taxes to,
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to pay our bills. The County's bills have to be paid. We can't escape it.
It's just a matter of how you package it. And I've often thought that this is
the kind of thing we ought to hide, and not hide, but include in our
property tax so it's taken care of. And that way we don't have to be, sit
here every year trying to dicker about how much to charge and getting the
community all upset. But we'll deal with this on another day, Chair, as
you said.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Amen to that. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, and, and we'll revisit this I'm sure, but as
Member Baisa said there really is, it's never going to be a good time to
raise the rates, but we are not a charitable institution. We have our bills to
pay and our fiduciary responsibility is to manage the affairs and the money
of the County of Maui and that's what we're here to do. So unpleasant as
it may be for people to have to pay their bills, even the stimulus money is
our own money, and we're committing future generations to have to pay
back that huge debt. So I just, I support whichever direction we go, but I
think that people, as Member Baisa said, we have to get real, and it's not
going to help us to dig a bigger hole because we're only going to have to
buy bigger shovels next year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah, thank you, Chair You
know, I support Member Baisa's position and, you know, the question is
when do you do this? Obviously this is one opportunity we have and
that's to make a drastic change to the rates itself, but other than that, you
know, at which time do we do it, you know. So I don't know if there is
ever a good time, but obviously if we could fix this one right here and say
that it's a fix for your Department, we would be putting back $15 million
back into the General Fund and that almost takes care of our deficit, you
know. And that would mean that everything else that we've been grinding
over for the past several weeks is pretty much resolved, you know, but it
comes at the cost of our, our own communities.
It speaks nothing to the fact that delinquencies might, in fact, now become
a challenge or even increase greater. It comes with the realization that we
may have to be dealing with now trash being dumped elsewhere and how
we're going to enforce those kinds of challenges. So, so there are going to
be some consequences in, in any direction that we move. But we'd have
to be pertinent about deciding how best now to deal with those
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consequences and understand that there will be, you know, unintended
consequences perhaps. But, you know, I don't know when is the, there is
a good time to have to deal with this than the time we're in, you know.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, hopefully the Integrated Solid Plan, Solid Waste
Plan in regards to universal pick-up, you know, can, can be done. I have
had some conversation with real property people in regards to adding
these dollars to the real property tax and there are some issues on that side.
So when, we'll figure out when it comes. Grab the crystal ball. Member
Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, I just, in listening today when Gladys
brought up how we're going to do it, I think it's high time that we do it,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Bottom line is the day of reckoning is here,
and we've got to start being real. And that's the bottom line. We've put it
off for too many years, and we can no longer put it off. We cannot hide
the facts. So, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, and to, to do this without putting it
into the real property tax is looking at the rate increase, well, looking at
the, the cost that was provided to us during their presentation in regards to
all of the increases that we need to do on the landfill, the collection, and
the diversion area. And we're looking at, for collection our residents
they're going to be paying almost, like, 200 percent more. Okay, thank
you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You, you brought up the, a statement, but I
didn't hear all of it yet about Property Tax Division not being able to do
what we may want to do with . . . (inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, they can do what we want to do, but it's going to
take them time to do it. But if, in order to meet their deficit, at this time,
whatever was presented to...what was presented to us last month, I think,
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the Solid Waste cost of service, if we implement these numbers, then we
would meet the deficit for Solid Waste. Okay. It's up to us to decide that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. When we come to the deliberation that's where
we fish or cut bait.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Continuing on to Page 31, Members, I
know that, you know, about the dinner break at 5:00, but I just have one
more area that I want to cover with the Solid Waste Fund and that is in the
area of Fees-Scrap Metal Disposal (Molokai Commercial) as well as
Fees-Abandoned Vehicle. And, Members, you can find it on Page 31.
Member Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess the question I have was on the fee
for abandoned vehicles, $40 administrative fee per, per vehicle. Is that
what we're going to, we're charging up front when they register the car in
each and every year? No? One saying yes, one saying
no. ... (Inaudible) ...
MR. TAKAMINE: No, that, that fee, that $40 fee -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: --is to recoup when an individual's car is towed off of a
County highway or State highway-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: --and they want to repossess the car once it's been
impounded, and it's in our abandoned vehicle lot. We currently have been
charging the individual some service, some fees based on our
administrative costs, postage, and newspaper ad. We, we have a value
which we came up with was $40, and they also pay for the towing, the
actual towing charge and the actual charge for keeping it in the storage lot.
We've been doing that, and we realized, since we took it over from
Finance in 2006, but we realized it's not part of the County Budget
Ordinance. And so, we're trying to correct that by putting the $40 service
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fee in there so we, we can continue to collect it, and it be allowed under
the ordinance for us to collect that fee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So the other parts of that, the towing, and
the, the storage and all that, that's separate and that's being accounted for
already?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, under, under the, our ordinance -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. TAKAMINE: --it states that we're allowed to recoup the actual cost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. TAKAMINE: This fee that we've been adding on is actually two hours of
staff time we estimated $30, postage $6, and newspaper ad $4 per vehicle
on average.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Okay. Okay. Okay, thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Does this mean that on Molokai
vehicles and tires can now be taken into the landfill?
MS. OKUMA: At this time, we do have a Department of Health permit, but it
does not allow for...we are at this point still working on moving towards a
permanent plan as far as the ability to be able to accept these items and the
permanent plan is required by Department of Health permit. And so,
we're moving towards that, but as part of that, this thought was to at least
give a suggestion as far as charges per, per unit.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So those vehicles that have started to be
collected, when DOH finally provides you with a clearance, then all these
vehicles that will be now hauled to this site will be imposed this fine?
MS. OKUMA: For this amount and this is only for, this is for commercial only.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah, well, that's I mean that's how most of them
should be towed down to the landfill. Do we have an idea when we will
be, I mean, I think the wait has been now two years?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, I want to make sure we clarify this. We are currently
taking residential. We're taking automobiles, tires, batteries, propane
tanks, scrap metal, and appliances for free from any resident that brings it
in. We are working on as, Ms. Okuma said, the final plan for commercial.
Well, actually we're working on the fmal plan for our metals facility
overall, which include, will include commercial. And right now our plan
is to, and, and we haven't fmalized it yet, but is to probably go out for a
service contract to allow someone to come in as a concession. And if he
comes in as a concession we may not need these numbers because as a
concession, from what I understand, the contractor can charge whatever
cost he wants to charge, basically, and he just pays the County a
concession fee.
So when we came up with this, our budget, when we put together back in
October, we were still looking at possibly going out for a bid and, and the
County controlling these prices. So that's one of the reasons why we put
this in here. But since then, you know, we're looking at a different type of
service contract. So we, we're trying to cover, cover our bases in case we
do go this route, but, but we're not sure exactly which way we're going to
go at this time, but it's leaning toward the concession.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I have one last question. Coming back to
refuse collection, if the County, the County cost is $38 per month for
residential, what would a commercial hauler charge per month? Would
you know?
MR. TAKAMINE: Yeah, actually the commercial, right now a commercial
vendor charges about 30 to $35 per month for a residential pick-up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you wouldn't see an increase for residential pick-up
by commercial haulers?
MR. TAKAMINE: Well, if we, if we raise the tipping fee to the landfill the
commercial hauler is going to probably put that directly onto his customer.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Meaning the $98 if we were to go max?
MR. TAKAMINE: Whatever fee we, we would increase the tipping fees to he'll,
he'll probably, you know, charge direct, pass it directly onto the individual
customers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, and these customers are?
MR. TAKAMINE: They actually have commercial businesses. I know they have
residences out in, single-family residences, and they have, they take care
of all the multi-family. So actually all the multi-family units, all the
condos are being serviced by commercial vendors. So if you increase the
tipping fees, it will directly impact a lot of residents that live in condos
and multi-family units.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay, Members, we're going to take our
dinner break and when we get back, that's all for the environmental
management area. Anybody have a fast question that they want to ask? If
not, we're going to take our dinner break and return at 6:15. And when
we get back we'll take, we'll take the water rates. This meeting is in
recess until 6:15. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

5:15 p.m.
6:19 p.m.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, we do have the Water Department
with us today, and if, if you recall sometime last month we had a overview
in regards to some of the things that they wanted to do in the 2010 Budget.
And the reason why I'm telling you hopefully you guys all recall what
happened at that time. Members, just for your information from Page 40-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, 40. Okay, thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --to 44, these items were in Appendix B, at one time.
What they did was now we incorporated all of those pages in to the fee
rate and assessment for taxes. So there's no change in that particular area.
So, Members, we'll start off with Page 38, the revised 38 that we got on
April the 8 th, 2009. There were some adjustments made by the Water
Department. So, at this time, I'd like to call on the Water Department to
go over with us the changes that are being considered. Mr. Jeff Eng, if
you could provide some opening comments that would be good.
MR. ENG: Yes, I will. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ENG: Good evening, Committee Members. As you know, the Department
needs to annually set its rates and charges in order to meet it's anticipated
operating expenses, departmental costs, debt service obligations, and
revenue fund transfers to the CIP replacement fund. There are two
components of the water bill, the service charge and the consumption
charge. The Department is proposing increases in both of these charges
which will amount to approximately 8.5 percent increase in revenue. And
I would like to explain briefly each of them.
First, the Department charges each of its customers a monthly service
charge based on meter size. Second, a consumption charge is a rate
applied to each 1,000 gallons of water consumption. For the general rate
customers the consumption charge rate design is an increasing block rate
structure consisting of three blocks with each block having a higher rate.
For agricultural customers the rate design consists of two blocks having
increasing rates and a third block having a lower rate. For our non-potable
customers that, that is the Kula Agricultural Park farmers, their rate design
is a uniform rate structure.
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The proposed rates provide the Department and its customers with the
following. The rates continue to provide a strong conservation signal to
our customers. For the general rate customers the second block rate is
76 percent higher than the first block. And the customers in the third
block rate pay a rate 148 percent higher than the first block. Furthermore,
we believe our recent annual rate increases along with our public
education efforts have been very effective in achieving the water
conservation results we have been seeing. And just for your information,
in the past year and a half, the consumption in the Central Maui system
has decreased by over 2 million gallons per day. And this is well beyond
our expectations, and we certainly appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Very good.
MR. ENG: However the Department still plans to take conservation to the next
level when funding permits with an aggressive low-flow plumbing fixture
retrofit program that would even include possible rebates.
Also, the rate structure continues to maintain relatively low rates for
customers consuming low quantities of water. With our proposed rate
structure, the first block customers, and those are our lifeline customers,
will have experienced only a total of 61/2 percent increase in their water
consumption charge since Fiscal Year 2007. Their charge will have
increased from $1.55 per thousand gallons in Fiscal Year 2007 to the
proposed $1.65 per thousand gallons in Fiscal Year 2010.
The rate structure also continues to support agriculture and the Kula
Agricultural Park farmers. These non-potable customers uniform rate of
$1 per thousand gallons will not increase this fiscal year.
Finally, the Department understands there is now an interest in creating
new customer classes such as the single-family class. And while we
believe this is the direction we should go in the future, currently, and this
was asked of the Wastewater Division earlier this evening, there is no
defmition of single-family in the Maui County Code by which we can
develop this class of customer. And the Department is hoping we can
work with the Water Resources Committee this year to develop an
appropriate definition. Furthermore, the Department would also like to
see an appropriate definition developed for agriculture so that only real
true farmers receive agricultural water consumption charges. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you for mentioning about creating a
defmition for single-family as well as, what was the other one?
Agriculture. Yeah, those are critically needed. Real agriculture.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, you've heard Mr. Eng in regards to the rates
that are being proposed. On Page 38, and, Members, this is a revised
proposal. If you note the Chair had sent to everyone on April the 8 th a
revised sheet. So I'm just going to take the whole sheet, well, we'll go by
section. The Water Service Rates General Water Consumers, if you guys
have any questions on that I'll start off with Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. So am I correct in saying we're
going from $1.60 to $1.65? No?
MR. ENG: That's correct. That is for the first block.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: First block. And second block to 2.90 from
2.80, and then the last block is 3.90 to 4.10. But I saw something very
curious and, and tell me if I'm right or wrong. I understand you're
proposing, the old block used to be zero to 10,000, now the new block is
zero to 5,000. Am I correct or am I reading this wrong?
MR. ENG: No, you might have an earlier-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Version.
MR. ENG: --mistaken copy.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I was looking for the other one. So I
couldn't find it.
MR. ENG: You are correct that our first block is zero to 10,000 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Zero to 10,000.
MR. ENG: --as it was before.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And what is the new one?
MR. ENG: It is misprinted in the earlier version.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, but what is the new one now?
MR. ENG: It's the same.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Same. And, and 10,000 to 30,000 is still
the second block?
MR. ENG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And 30,000 on up is the third block?
MR. ENG: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so that was my questions, and I
think you answered it because without that we would have, I don't have
the other one, Chair, sorry, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you don't have the April 8 correspondence?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None of us have. We was looking on this
one. Sorry, Chair, I'm guilty.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: It, it's a single page.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: April 3 rd, April 6, April 6, April 8, okay,
here. All of us is scrambling right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay. Okay. Thank you, thank you.
Okay, I see the corrections that were made versus the one we had. So,
anyhow so I guess the, it answered my question because if what I was
looking at you were talking, been talking about a tremendous increase
because the blocks were shrunk very, very limited. Because zero to 5,000
divided by 30 days would be like about a hundred and something gallons
per day, and I don't know of many people that just use the hundred and
something gallons a day. Well, I'm just saying I don't know too many
Maybe you might be the only one.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair, I
appreciate that clarification.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yes, Jeff, there was talk of maybe adding a
fourth tier, if something, somebody using 50,000 gallons or more. Is there
any kind of justification maybe for these higher users for us to include it in
another tier?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department.
MR. ENG: Thank you, Member Nishiki. It is something that our consultants
evaluated back in 2008, the rate study conducted back then and completed
back then. There, they thought there were some valid points for the
. . .(End of tape 6B). . . to that time, but, again, it didn't have a proper
defmition by which we could work with. But they did feel that a fourth
tier might have been appropriate at that time. Again, we're finding is that
with our, you know, we've had rate increases the past few years. We
believe a lot of our conservation, besides the public education efforts,
might be the result of these rate increases. They are showing a positive
effect toward lowering water consumption.
So I think we would need to reevaluate that to see if we need another
fourth tier. I think in the future we may do that. I think we need to
address the definition of that class first and what customers we want
included in that as single-family, whether that be a single-family stand
alone dwelling, would that include an ohana, a small duplex. And that's
something through the Water Resources Committee I, I expect us to
address this, this year.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: But in the, in the rate increase that you show
right now you got just up to 30,000. So my question is there may be
people that are using an excess of water. So if we created a fourth tier,
then those people, knowing what they're going to be charged with may
then look at their water consumption -MR. ENG: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --and we could create even more water
consumption because there must be people out there that may be using that
amount of water and that's the reason why, perhaps, the recommendation
was there.
So I just saying that, because these people are really abusing the water and
using this amount, Mr. Chairman, then we should charge 'em. Let them
conserve, or let 'ern pay if they're, if they are going to abuse our water. I
think it's fair. I mean we're not, we don't have to cite 'ern, but we can
make 'ern start conserving. Your thoughts, Jeff?
MR. ENG: Well, I believe that, you know, in the past few years when we did
develop new rates, we came before this body, we did focus on higher
increases at that third block. So as you can see, you know, they're going
to be paying $4.10 per 1,000 gallons. I certainly wouldn't want to pay that
much. You know, I'm glad I'm still, stay down in that first block. But,
yeah, if you just do a little analysis of how these rate increases have, have
moved over the past couple of years and let me see if I can get this for
you.
Yeah, so if you look over, and if I can go over the past few years from
Fiscal Year 2007 to our proposed rates for 2010. Now, the first tier is
really only experienced, will have experienced only about a 61/2 percent
increase in three years. The second tier 20.8 percent. But that third tier
has experienced 44.4 percent. So they have experienced the brunt of the
rate increases too. So we believe that they are, at this time, paying their
fair share. And also, and Ms. Perdido just pointed this out, is that the
majority of our revenue does comes from those in that third block tier.
So...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jeff, what tier are you talking about?
MR. ENG: The highest, the third tier.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The third tier.
MR. ENG: The $4.10 per thousand gallons.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
MR. ENG: They will be paying.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Now, Jeff, I, I didn't want to hurt that group that
is 30,000 and over as you said. I wanted to catch the next tier that you
proposed, I think, in 2008 which is 50,000 and over. Because these are the
ones, if they, if they want to use it, Mr. Chairman, let them pay for it
because the big users like this are the abusers.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So I think that, you know, I mean, Jeff, if you're
saying no then fine, but I think that if we raise the rates we're going to see
a lot more consumption, not consumption but conservation. You know,
and I'm not satisfied just because you come out tonight and said, hey, you
know, we saved 2 million gallons. I want to save more through
conservation because this is one area that, you know, all our studies that
you constantly push. And I think that we can charge the 50,000 more.
I'm just curious.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Before you answer that I'll just make a
comment. The last time we were talking about higher rates in regards to
consumption and one of the biggest debate, well, the debate was how do
we handle condominiums as well as apartments because we do have lot of
residents, single-family, you know, owning apartments as well as condos.
So because of their one water meter, you know, the consumption will be
for some or most condos exceed even 30, even the 50,000 gallons per
month. And what rate do we charge them, you know? That, that's
another thing that we need to also consider, yeah, but I understand where
you're coming from, Member Nishiki. So, Jeff?
MR. ENG: So getting back to your question, Member Nishiki, are you still
thinking about a single-family class or just a fourth tier, fourth block to
our general rate class? Because, again, if it's creating a single-family
class, again, we still need to work on that defmition. So, and then if we
just wanted to develop a fourth tier for a general rate class customer I
think that would require further analysis to fmd out who would be
impacted, and then what volume do we set that at? Is 100,000 gallons per
bi-monthly billing period too high, too low? We don't know.
Now, there may be some unintentional consequences like Chair Pontanilla
pointed out. We may be impacting, you know, long-term residential local
multi-family housing too hard. It does require some analysis. But we
support where you're going, you know, to. I mean we definitely want to
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be there one of these days, and I think, you know, most of us here now
understand what we're facing with. You want different classes, let's
identify and, and define them, and then let's sit back and see who do we
want to impact with these higher rates.
We have seen, even from the large water users which, you know, many of
us feel are, are hotel customers and that came up a couple of years ago.
You know, are we impacting them enough? Are they, you know, feeling
the, the crunch from our rate increases? So I did an analysis comparing
calendar year 2007 to 2008, our latest set of data. And I was surprised to
find there were like 14 hotels across, you know, the whole range, that we
analyzed, they've lowered their consumption in total by 15 percent and
that shocked me. I, I knew they were conserving. I've heard it from them
but... so it shows that I believe the rates are affecting them. And I believe
that any smart general manager of a hotel realizes he can control that
expense.
So, you know, and I use the bash hotel. I used to think that they were, you
know, perhaps wasting water, but given the data that I've analyzed I think
they're trying their best. And this, even this additional rate increase I'm
sure is going to have an impact to their use.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question. Hale Mahaolu, for
instance, how many water, do, do they have a single water meter to take
care all of their residents or, or they have multiple meters throughout the
property?
MR. ENG: Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, we don't have that information handy. We
can get that to you if you desire.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. I'm just curious, you know, how it's going to
affect, you know, elderly housing such as Hale Mahaolu which they have
all over the County. If it's going to impact them as well as the, our
hospital over here if we should go to a fourth tier, 50,000 gallons or more,
but I understand Mr. Nishiki's concern in regards to more conservation.
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm going to ask you the same question, Jeff,
that, you know, we kind of asked Public Works, which is when you look
at the overall rate in comparison to what we really need in order to sustain
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this entire program and the water delivery system, is the money that we're
getting in with the rate increases sufficient to allow the Department to
function without having to continually supplement?
MR. ENG: And the question may mean supplement?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, you know, like, are you, do you have
sufficient monies generated from the fees and the rates to actually operate
your Department within your budget, or do you have -MR. ENG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --to continuously borrow?
MR. ENG: Yes, Member Johnson, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ENG: That's our task when we developed this budget is to analyze all of our
sources of revenue as well as all of our expenses, debt service obligations,
transfer to the Capital Replacement Fund, and we are balanced.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That is...
MR. ENG: This is a balanced budget with sufficient revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That you're to be congratulated for. I know
sometimes it doesn't allow for expansion, you know, of the system, but
that's not what the job, you know, as far as current rates go, you know,
that's not structured. It's just to provide for the service. And the increases
that we're getting now are part of this structured increase, the incremental
rate study and these are based on those recommendations as well?
MR. ENG: Yes, it's based on the same recommendations, the same rate model.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ENG: All we do is plug in more current expenses, and we determine the rate
increase.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You got it. I have no questions in the rest of
this area because of the statements that he's made. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. First question I have is
can you explain to me what, what is the advantage of having a
single-family rate? What does that mean?
MR. ENG: The advantage that was pointed out by our consultant for that 2008
rate study was we were, at that time, realized that we had to focus on
conservation. That's been kind of like the big topic the past couple of
years. The consultant felt that, you know, the single-family class of
customer is pretty homogenous whereas general rate includes everyone;
single-family, commercial, industrial, even some ag. They felt that with
single-family if you designed a rate structure appropriately you can really
capture those high consumers and drive them down in consumption. So
you would separate basically homogenous group, identify the highest
consumers and hit those high rates there and, and that was really to really
cause conservation solely. It wasn't really meant for additional revenue
even though that could be one of the results. It was to stop the highest
consumers from using that much water.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I don't think is the place to debate it, but I
was just curious because, you know, a single-family could vary so much
in, in how that's defined. You know, when, because of my, my usual
background, my background, my usual way of thinking of a single-family
is a small little low income family in a small home and that could range in
a single-family to a family living somewhere in one of our very high class
areas. . .(Inaudible). . .they could still be a single-family. So, anyway, I
won't get into that tonight, but that definition it would be very important
to me.
MR. ENG: Yes, it would.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The other question is Member Johnson asked the
question about would this produce enough revenue for you to operate the
Department, and you balanced your budget, and I understand that's
probably the intent of this is I can pay my bills based on what I do. My
concern is how do we get money to do more than what we do. And, and I
don't know if that's involved in this rate structure or in a potential rate
structure, but, you know, obviously we have a need to do a lot more in the
way of water and where are we going to get those monies? Do they not
come partially from rates?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. ENG: Thank you, Member Baisa. When it comes to like expansion of our
water system, you know, a lot of that is through our water system
development fees and, and that fee is when we issue a meter. Other than
that, you know, really bond funding is really what we need to lean on and
as we all know, you know, there's some strict limitations on bond funding
and that's why we had to keep within those constraints which we did.
Fortunately, we have some of these recovery funds coming in that's going
to be very helpful, and we are, we're right there on meeting our deadlines.
We have to get some projects basically encumbered to contract by the
middle of June. So we're moving on right now with, we're advertising for
those projects. So I'm real pleased with my, with my engineering, the CIP
group are doing.
So, you know, given the environment we're in right now I, I'd say we're
fine. You know, we're going to manage this coming year and hopefully
we'll even find ways to even cut costs further, and we're looking at things
regarding our labor costs, even always working on overtime control.
That's a big key one for us. But we will be fine. I appreciate your
concern.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, well, my concern is that, you know, I
certainly would like to take water off being the top priority that we hear
about every single day. And, you know, I know in order to do that it takes
money. And, yes, we are in hard times, and I think for this year I'm
willing to let the water business go because we have other more important
issues on our table right now, like how are we going to pay all of the bills,
and we just got through meeting with the Solid Waste people, and we have
to make some serious decisions there. So for now, this is, you know, I can
let this go. And thank you very much. I, I know it's not easy to manage
on what you got.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and good evening,
Mr. Director, and thank you for sharing with us some good news along
with a proposed rate increase. It's seldom you get both at the same time,
but I appreciate the Department's efforts in promoting conservation as
well as your proposal to consider a new, I guess, rate category to reflect
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true farming and proposed rates for that. If we, you know, what is the
percentage of your increase again, I, I probably missed it in the beginning?
MR. ENG: It's, it's equivalent to 8.5 percent increase in revenue.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 8.5 revenue. Okay. Good. Good. And I
presume we're looking at the next fiscal year to add another consideration.
Looking down the road, I mean it's inevitable, yeah, but better to take a
light, two light hits than one big knockout punch, I guess, yeah, that's the
philosophy.
MR. ENG: Yeah, we don't know what next year will look at, look like at this
time. But, again, you know, we have to have a balanced budget, so, so
when we, I couldn't even go for the big knockout this year anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Okay. I, have no, no problems with this,
Mr. Chairman Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Also, in the general water consumers area
the per meter per month charges has gone up and, Members, if you have
any questions. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. No, questions, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No further questions. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I don't have questions in the rest of
this.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. In regards to the agricultural rates there is an
increase of five cents for zero to 10,000 gallons and ten cents for 10,001 to
30,000 gallons, and over 30,000 gallons it remains at the dollar.
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I just, the only question I have, Jeff,
you guys are still comfortable with this dollar for the power itself because
I know that's been one of the bugaboos is the fluctuation in power, yeah.
So you feel this dollar rate will be adequate, and I know we don't know
what the future is, but do you feel it's adequate?
MR. ENG: You know, that was a little conscious effort in developing that
non-potable rate of $1 because in theory it was based on power costs per
thousand gallons. But when we were crunching numbers we would have
to increase it to $1.25 and the Administration felt this is not the year to
bump it up 25 percent to the Kula Ag Park farmers. So the decision was
made, by the Administration, to keep it at $1, so we don't even refer to it
as a power cost. But, again, as I indicated we still are subsidizing
agriculture, and particularly the non-potable customers.
And I mean just for your information I was looking at our Kula Ag Park,
just power costs to run the booster pumps there last year cost us $1.54 per
thousand gallons and that doesn't include, again, very fixed and variable
costs only electricity. So they get, are getting a nice subsidy, and we do
still support that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So let me ask you this question, roughly,
using the Kula Park, the Kula Ag Park how many, how many thousands of
gallons they use in an average month? I know you would have that
information. (silence) Whatever come close. Don't have to be exact,
okay.
MR. ENG: Ms. Perdido lost her voice.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
MR. ENG: I think she's faking it, personally. But it's about 15 million gallons or
15,000 thousand gallons per month.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roughly 15,000 gallons per month.
MR. ENG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: About 15 million gallons per year.
MR. ENG: Just say 15 million gallons per month.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Per month?
MR. ENG: Would be easier, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifteen million gallons per month.
MR. ENG: Right. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That tell us another story. Okay.
Thank you very much, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Eng, is it the Department's
intent that once a definition for agriculture, or farmer, or whatever the
discussion is going to be, the intent of the Department is to provide that
classification at a lower rate, lower than the initial 160, if they in fact are
true, you know, true farmers doing true ag?
MR. ENG: Council Chair Mateo, actually we're not looking at any reason to
lower the rates, but Ms. Perdido has to deal with these ag water customers
who come in and are requesting ag water rates. You know, it's really
tough for her to deal with it when right now the criteria is be ag zoned and
have something growing simply as that, you know. And we send
inspectors out there and, you know, they're using their subjective analysis.
And yeah it's kind of looking like a farm. It's not enough to say deny
them. It's some kind of forest because the defmition is just basically
you're in ag zone .
You know, we would like to see really more, you know, more precise
defmition. You know, maybe not even zoning, but you got to have
income, you know, requirements. You know, I, I think any farm that has a
Mercedes and a swimming pool is not a farm. You know, but we see a lot
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of that too. Okay. So, so I'm counting on you folks to help us with those
defmitions.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, thank you. No, and I appreciate that. It was just
that if we are able to come up with a definition, and the criteria that truly
fits the definition of what a farm is, based on agriculture, then in order for
us to meet a County objective which is to, by all means, support the ag
industry, then I would be hoping that once we can complete and define the
defmition we would offer a rate that would more or less encourage
farming.
MR. ENG: We can do that, certainly.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. And to piggyback on Danny I think, Jeff,
this is my concern and, and fellow Council Members, we're not
committed to agriculture. We're not. What we see here in a raise in
agriculture rates shows me that that's BS. We're not committed to
agriculture. You know, there's places like in California where they
subsidize, and they give water free to farmers and maybe that's something
that, reason why they're so successful in farming. I think even in
Honolulu, on your big farms and stuff like that, the rates, okay, I don't
know it off hand, but I know that it is inexpensive. And that's the reason
why people want to farm. There's a chance for them. You heard Warren
Watanabe come up today, despite that I may have chastised him, he was
talking about farmers, fertilizer rates going up, shipping rates going up,
now water rates. This does not show me any commitment to agriculture.
I think that, Jeff, despite that she may be having problems with identifying
a farm, if she doesn't, if it, if it doesn't look like a farm don't give them
the ag water rate. Charge them more. However, if we need to identify
what agriculture is, then you need to, then that may be our responsibility,
but you've not given us any kind of direction as far as what you need to
see in an ag definition. But, Mr. Chairman, I am not going for a raise in
water rates for the ag users. This will further push people out of farming
by now, again, giving them another hit in, in trying to grow and work the
land to, to farm. Come on, this is insincerity. You say you want to help!
Well, then drop the rate! Don't raise the rate on me! What...is that a
help?

- 202 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

MR. ENG: Mr. Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I don't know if my language, my English is the
same as the Water Department, but it's not helping agriculture.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Eng?
MR. ENG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I just want to clarify with this whole
agricultural rate customer gets. Okay, a lot of these customers they have a
large parcel of land, and their home, a lot of them are very nice homes.
You know, they're in ag zoned land. So what, if you look at the rate
structure here, those first two blocks zero to 10,000 and 10,000 [sic] to
30,000, they're treated like any regular general rate customer because
we're assuming most of that water is for their normal household domestic
use, but they're getting a huge break because then at that third block
they're only being charged a buck. They are getting ag rates, non-potable
rates the same as the Kula Ag Park farmers. It's just that they're being
charged for those first two blocks normal general rates and that's for their
domestic needs. We shouldn't charge, give them a break for a buck a
gallon, thousand gallons for their household domestic needs. They still
got to maintain their house and do those type of things. But they are given
that significant break in that third block.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I, I, I, I still, you're still adding more cost
to a farmer and, and that's where I feel like this is a special group of
people. They, as Gladys said, they grow food. They grow food. Where
would you be if you didn't have food? You'd be in your grave. And to
put these people, you know, Sol's not here, but he was talking about trying
to get more people to grow food here. This will not be any kind of
attraction for any person wanting to farm. And so, you know, I, I think
I've said enough, but that's the reason why. Warren Watanabe is here
saying when, when the question was asked of him, oh, yeah, yeah, we'd
like to see more people farm, and he was talking about the generation that
missed farming. But we got to speak and act with sincerity,
Mr. Chairman, and I don't think that this is a sincere effort to help the
farming community.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I understand what Member Nishiki is
saying, but I think, from my perspective, one of the first things we have to
do is separate the legitimate farming operations through a legal defmition
so that there is a level playing field, so it's not arbitrary, and so it won't be
subject to challenges. And I think that's one way to help the Department.
The other thing I think that we can do is for those individuals that are
running operations where they have maybe soil stabilization or, you know,
two palm trees and a coconut, you know, that kind of thing I think they
need in another venue. We need to look at ways that they can help
subsidize the people that are doing legitimate farming, and I think that's
where, you know, if they don't want to farm, if they're going to lease out,
whatever mechanism that is, I think we can address that, Mr. Chair, in
Committee, and I think Member Kaho' ohalahala, even though he's not
here, I think that the conversations that we have, we're committed to doing
that, and I think that will help the Department because right now there are
legitimate farmers that would be entitled to any kind of help that we can
give, but there's all these other people too, and I, I don't want to
categorize everyone in, in that situation.
So I'm committed, Mr. Eng and Holly, to trying to help that because I, I
see that all the time. So thanks very much. And I, as I said before you can
just skip . . . (End of tape 7A). . . I believe that as long as their budget is
balanced and, you know, the other issues that we've spoken about it is
what it is. So I applaud you, Mr. Eng, for, you know, at least just being on
target for the rates that were actually recommended by the rate study.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I just wanted to say that I'm very excited
about this idea of having to have a good defmition of agriculture. I tried
all of my time as Planning Committee Chair to get to it, and I couldn't
because we had so much else going on, but I constantly had Warren
Watanabe from the Farm Bureau reminding me that he needed that
information because it's relevant not only to this discussion of water rates,
but a lot of things. What is agriculture? And I'm really happy that with
our new committee structure we have Member Johnson now, who has
agriculture in the title of her committee, and it's in her purview, and I
know that she's committed to dealing with it. So maybe we will get an
answer this time. So let's go for it, and I think it will solve a lot of
problems.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, I just wanted to state my support as well
for the Director's efforts and looking forward to, I guess, a long healthy
discussion when we get to that point of establishing a definition for
agriculture. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Also, included on that particular page is the
per meter per month increases. If, Members, do you have any questions
on that? Same page, Page 38. No questions? Thank you. On Page 39,
there are some additions. One of them is replacing damaged or missing
meter, cost of meter, plus 20 percent, plus cost of the material by size.
And I think the reason why the addition is to cover our costs whenever we
get called to replace a damaged or missing meter. Members, you got
questions in regards to that? Thank you.
And then there's on the bottom there will be a minimum charge of $100
for all jobs billed at actual cost. Just trying to recover costs. Members,
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Can I just hear a quick explanation from the
Department on that?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure. Department?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That $100.
MR. ENG: Yeah, that's just really, it, it says my Fiscal Department, you know,
that cutting of reimbursement checks for the small jobs and that becomes
humbug and time consuming over time. So, you know, there would be a
minimum charge and so if there's a refund required, but, you know, but
there will be a minimum. You know, we're not dealing with...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And the $100 minimum was just a number you
guys...
MR. ENG: Yeah. You want to take it?
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MS. PERDIDO: Yeah, the minimum would help cover the staff time and
everything that we, we have to prepare the bills, you know, and collect and
all that which usually we don't charge when we do bills, you know, when
we do the regular bills, you know, that we do, do refunds for. So it's like
a minimum charge. Say you're charged maybe $70, you know, the cost of
all of the items come out to that and this would be, like, administrative
costs to cover that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and all these years we've never had
something like this then, yeah?
MS. PERDIDO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Wow, it's amazing how much it costs to
process. Okay. Good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. And, Members, again, on Page 40
to 44 just bringing Appendix B forward in it's right place. So, Members,
any more questions in regards to rate and fees from the Water
Department? Seeing none, thank you very much, Jeff and Holly, for being
here this evening. Members, we're going to take a five minute recess and,
to allow Parks Department to get to this Chambers. So we'll take a five
minute recess, and we'll return at 7:010 [sic], 7:10. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

7:06 a.m.
7:16 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. Members, we do have the Parks Director,
Ms. Tamara Horcajo, with us today and there are some changes in their
rates and fees. Starting on Page 20 and if the Director can direct us on
Page 20 as far as the changes that are being made.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you. Good evening. I'm going to make this hopefully a
little bit short. We appreciate you staying here this evening and the Parks
Department does not have that many significant changes, but we do have
some. They follow along with our mission. Our mission is safe,
satisfying, and this year we added the words cost effective recreational
services for residents and visitors of Maui County.
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So I believe on Page 20, what you folks have there is our rate and fee
schedule. It's the same rate and fee schedule that looks very confusing
that we've had for years and years, but the items that are underlined are
the additions. Please note these are the things that we have changed which
is the key deposit we have changed from $25 to $50, and we've added a
line in there $50 automatically deposit will be withheld if the permit
holder fails to pick up the key and the staff is called out to open the
facility. I think that's kind of self evident. We need to have our
permittees who come in be more responsible with their keys, and we feel
that $50 is fair in this economy and also trying to be supportive of funding
our parks staff as well. So that is the first change.
The other changes that you can see throughout this very complex schedule
here is that the items that were previously indicated with a zero, which
means no fees, were attached. We have, people have, is everyone with me
here? We have no, where there was a zero fee we have just increased it.
For example, we added a charge for a Type III of $5 for a gymnasium
which is at least something minimal which previously wasn't. If it's a
revenue generating event it was a little bit higher. So that each of our
activities now have some kind of fee attached.
You will also note that the other increase is for lights. So that is any
venue that is booked between 6:00 to 10:00 p.m. Please note that, like, for
the football stadium we added a charge for lights and for the baseball
stadium in the evening. Previously there was no charge there, and so
we've included an increase on lights. Are there any questions on this
particular? Do you want me to get into more detail?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, why don't you go through all the changes, and
then we'll just, just cover with the Members if they have any questions to
those changes that you have on this sheet here.
MS. HORCAJO: Okay. I covered the top one which was the key deposit. The
gymnasium Type II was from zero...Type II(R), which is a co-sponsored
event that is revenue, that is revenue, they get revenue from the event, it
was changed from zero to $75 for the rental fee, and a Type III event,
which means an individual is renting the facility, was changed from zero
to $5.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If you can start, you covered the gymnasium, the
football stadium --
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MS. HORCAJO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and you didn't touch on the baseball stadium, but
there are increases to the baseball stadium during the day and with lights.
There's flat charges. So if you can continue on, on
Amphitheaters...Lahaina Civic. Oh, Keopuolani Park.
MS. HORCAJO: Keopuolani?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MS. HORCAJO: Thank you. The Type II with revenue was changed at
Keopuolani Park, that amphitheater there that is below or next to the
botanical gardens, from zero to $25. The Type III is changed from zero to
$10. The Lahaina Civic Center stadium with lights the rental for a Type
II, which was co-sponsored with revenue, is changed from zero to 25, and
the Type III from zero to $10. And we added, right below that we added
with lights at the Lahaina Civic Center amphitheater to add an additional
flat rate charge from 6:00 to 10:00 p.m., and that line was added at an
additional rate of $25 for Type II(R), $20 for Type III, $50 for Type W,
and $100 for Type V.
The swimming pools and this is up to two-lane rental which individuals or
agencies can do. The Type II(R) is from zero to $10, the Type III is from
zero to $10 as well. The other change on that is we've added on a Type II
and Type III, if you go across the custodial deposit, there was no deposit
previously, and we've added $100 deposit.
If you go down the next is the community center listings and these are
community centers without air conditioning. We changed the deposit rate
here to match the capacities of the community centers. So facilities up to
200, and that's community centers, the custodial deposit for Type II and
Type III was changed from 175...or 125 to 175, and the same for Type W
125 to 175. The capacities at community centers up to 300 was changed
from 125 to 225 for Types II through W. Community centers with
capacities up to 400, and this is for the deposit, is changed from 125 to
275 for Types II through W. Community centers with capacities up to
500 was changed from 125 to 325 for Types II through IV, and also for
facilities with capacities over 500 was changed from 125 to 350. And
these deposits are when people have a party, they rent the facility, and
they don't clean up. A lot of times people go, whoa, I had a party, $125,
I'll just leave it like it was. So we have changed that now so that if they

- 208 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

are going to leave it, then it pays for our staffs over time to come back and
clean it and that's why it's based on the capacity.
We actually kept the air condition, the community centers with air
conditioning, since they're the same size, and it would take the same
amount of staff time to clean it whether it had air conditioning or not,
those fees that I just listed are exactly the same for with air conditioning
and those are located right underneath.
The next item is pavilions without kitchens. We had no fee there for a
Type II(R), which is revenue generating again, and we added a fee of $25.
Oh, excuse me, I, I, up above I missed the pavilions with kitchens, and I
added, we added an increase in the deposit for that. That's like Kalama
Park has a kitchen and One Aliihas a kitchen as well and that was for a
Type V event which means revenue generating, it's a commercial activity.
So it's a commercial activity. This is not if just an individual rents it. It's
like for a swap meet or something like that. To move on to the pavilions
without kitchens I think I covered that.
Moving down ball fields. A Type II(R) there was no fee previously; we
added a $10 fee, and also for Type II and for Type III for ball fields. We
added right below that you'll see with lights, that means from 6:00 to
10:00 p.m. If someone wants to have their activity, their practice or game
at night there's an additional charge here. Type II community class, that's
a County sponsored event is only $2, a Type II(R) is $20, and a Type III
we changed to $25.
We've added two new sections here. The next one which says portable
equipment without utilities. We're fmding more and more people are
bringing things into the park, so we are now going to be requiring a permit
for these portable equipment. In this case it might be a bouncy castle.
We're going to set up a permit procedure for that to happen. If it's a
revenue generating activity it will be $15. If it's a Type III event, which is
just an individual, it will be $10. A Type IV, which is a private non-profit
organization doing a fundraising activity is $30 and a commercial event
would be $90.
The next one is the portable equipment with utilities. This means that
they're going to hook up to the County parks. We're fmding people are
hooking up everything from their bandstand to the waterslides or, you
know, there's a number of items that people are now using the County
utilities for. So this is a new item that we are including in our Parks Fees.
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The change includes a fee for Type II(R) at $30, Type III at $25, Type W
at $60, and Type V at $200. There's also the, I'm sorry, the deposit
associated with this that we're going to be requiring. We're in the process
of working on our admin rules for this so that they are completed prior to
July 1 st so that we can have permits for these activities in our parks. And
there will be a deposit of $50 for Type I, Type II and II(R) is $75, the
$100 for Type II and III, Type W is $200, and Type V, again, is a deposit
of $400.
The last, oh, the last section that we have on this matrix is any park
premises that is not otherwise described in this table. So if people want to
use our parks or a facility that's not listed in this table it can be covered by
this particular catchall here for reserving for exclusive use, this is by
permit. So the change here, the fee if it's a Type II community class it's
$2, for a Type II(R) is $10, for a Type III, an individual to reserve a
location is $5, and then we have the deposits are $25 and $50 located here
on the side. The additional charge of with lights is included right below
that. It's kind of, again, this catchall for exclusive use in any of our parks
facilities. The Type II community class is an addition. We've added a $5
rate, for Type II(R) $15 rate, for Type III $25 rate, for Type W a $50 rate,
and for Type V a $100 rate. And this is for the night usage from 6:00 to
10:00 because of the lights. Before I move on to the equipment is there
any questions on this?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, I got some questions. Yeah, I had some
questions before I call on the Members.
MS. HORCAJO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On your custodial deposit by type on the top of the
sheet, you got Type I, you got Type II or Type II(R), and then you have
Type II-Type III. So how do you identify the II on, on the second column
and the II on the third column?
MS. HORCAJO: I believe that we should have added a II(CC) -CHAIR PONTANILLA: On what column?
MS. HORCAJO: --to the first column; II(CC) or II(R), because the next, and I
will go back when I'm not so tired and look at this better, because I
believe you're right. There must be, we must have left off the CC in one
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of those columns which is for the community class Type II, and we will
work with Fred and you on correcting that.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and then on the custodial deposit type for
facilities with capacities over 500, this is without air conditioning, is 350
for Type III and Type W, but when you come on the bottom you say it
was the same. For the same capacity it's 375 for air conditioning. Does
that also need to be changed to 350 to make it all consistent?
MS. HORCAJO: That's a very good eye. The only center that we have right now
with that one would be Kihei Community Center would be listed under,
with the air conditioning, and we perhaps I believe made that at 375 on
purpose because that's a very highly used facility. So I apologize for
not...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So this is only for Kihei then?
MS. HORCAJO: Yes, that would be the only community center that falls into
that category for our Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Too many numbers. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Perhaps just a reference because I think if we're looking
for consistency once you make exceptions then it will never be the rule.
So if it's going to be set at a fee, it should be set at the fee and exceptions
are a little more difficult after that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair Quick question for the
Director, when was the last fee hike for custodial deposits? How long ago
roughly? Because, and I ask that, Mr. Chair, because it is pretty big hikes.
So I'm just curious.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Horcajo?
MS. HORCAJO: Our Deputy Director believes that we did have a hike in 2005.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: I could go back and look for sure, but we, we did have a hike
previously, and then due to complaints it was lowered. And so, we're
trying really hard to find that balance between paying for the service and,
and still being a community service to provide a facility.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and, and there were a lot of abuses, I
guess, if you, which is why the reason you, you're putting a really high,
significant hike?
MS. HORCAJO: We have found some concerns with the deposit, yes. Our
permit staff and our staff in the districts have asked the Department to
support this, and so I guess we are, we have found support with the
Administration so that people will get their money back if they do clean
up. So the deposit is a temporary holding, I guess, stick that the
Department has so that we can keep our facilities in better shape.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. I mean I totally support,
you know, an increase in the deposits. It's just that we may get questioned
by our constituents as to how come such a big hike. So I just want to
make sure I can tell them, give them an explanation if we do consider
these numbers. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And I, I hope the numbers that you
provided us will cover the cost to do the custodial work, you know, after
the event is completed. And then the other thing that I had is in regards to
the lights, you know, the figures that you show hopefully that covers the
cost of the lights at night. Members, any more questions regarding this?
Okay, moving on Page 21.
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MS. HORCAJO: Page 21 is a change for our Department in that currently the
fees for equipment are outlined in the Maui County Code under Chapter
13.04.140. We're changing this so that they are going to be now included
in our annual budget review. The fees outlined currently in the Maui
County Code under that Chapter that I listed do indicate the same fees that
are reflected in your Type III. So this is a change putting these into the
budget. So to let you know that the equipment that we're talking about is
the stage platforms, currently in the Maui County Code they are a $10
rental. We are keeping that the same for Type Ills, which is individual
use. It will be changed to $15 for Type W, $30 for a Type V event.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So now the numbers that you show are also the same
numbers in Section 13.04...
MS. HORCAJO: The numbers are the same for Type Ills. In other words,
currently in the Maui County Code, under that Chapter, the stage
platforms indicate $10, the bleachers indicate $25, and the picnic tables
show $10. It does not show a change for commercial activity or revenue
generating. It only shows those items. We have outlined those in our fee
schedule here to better reflect the event.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So there's no added fees for any of these then?
MS. HORCAJO: For an individual renting the stage, the bleachers, or the picnic
table.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Nope.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Seeing none. Okay, the last item for tonight is the Golf
Fund.
MS. HORCAJO: Chairman, I know that you move, moved on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, sorry.
MS. HORCAJO: I do want to note that I did add, we did add the mobile bleachers
and mobile stage. That was one reason for changing this. We have not
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previously had fees for these. These are new items in our Department.
We want to let the community know that they will be available for special
event rental not for individual party rental, and it is reflected here in the
fee schedule. So we're looking forward to bust those out at our next big
event.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. HORCAJO: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The last item is the Golf Fund, Page 35.
And, Members, on April the 9 th , the Chair had provided or Mr. Pablo
provided us with some amendments and hopefully you got the
correspondence, the copy of the correspondence, April 9 th from the Budget
Director. And this is a revised Appendix B, Revenues - Fees, Rates,
Assessments and Taxes in reference to Golf Fund Charges for Current
Services, Students' Monthly Rate. Okay.
MS. HORCAJO: The golf fees, which I think you know we've been focusing
trying to make our golf course better, and thank you very much for
supporting the audit. For the majority of this fee schedule the fees have
remained the same with the correction of we are no longer going to be
offering the twilight rate. This was something that we charged, tried this
last year. It was from three o'clock to six o'clock. We tried a reduced rate
of $5. The regular rate for residents is $8. As you can see that is not
changing. Our golf course is so busy from 3:00 until 6:00 that we found
that we were actually losing money. So we, we tried something new, it
didn't work, we're going back. So we will not be having the twilight rate.
So that is noted on your, that is a change. That is for residents. So that
twilight rate of $5 will be deleted.
We've added a military rate which was previously not there. The
Administration support of our military and the military's request for
resident rate, we are noting it here and the Administration is supporting
that. So the military rate, if they show their military card will be $8. And
nothing else has changed . . .(End of tape 7B). . . again, on the
non-resident rate we have deleted the twilight, and we have added the
military rate of $8. So even if they're not a Maui resident, if they show
their military card it will be $8.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. HORCAJO: And that's, the correction that was distributed to you, we had
made a typo from our Department. That was on the student card we had
accidentally showed $18 for the student card, but that was incorrect, it is
$8. It has not changed. It will remain $8.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I guess basically with these changes
I guess the million dollar question, will this basically keep us from
needing much money, if any, from the General Fund or do we still have to
subsidize?
MS. HORCAJO: We believe that for the next year you will still be subsidizing
the golf course as a recreation program for our residents.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know you're trying to convince me, but
this is late, don't be convincing now. And, and I guess the other question,
the other part of that question would be approximately how much? How
much? Your best estimate at this time, and I'm not going to go hold you
to the fire, hold your feet to the fire.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think during the review period I think the, the amount
was $1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Two million.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Chair, I hate to ask, but I wasn't here
during the review, and I apologize.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Like other Members when they're not here
they ask the question, I ask the question. So what is that about a million
and a half, two million?
MS. HORCAJO: We, we would like to say it would hold at a million or less.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Million or less. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo? Mr. Nishiki?
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just one quick question, and it's not to do with
these rates. I don't have any problem with that, but maybe someone can
tell me, approximately how many golfers do we have golfing every month;
just an estimate? Like I said I don't need it audited.
MS. HORCAJO: No, well, we actually have the rounds per month here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How many?
MS. HORCAJO: In July per, per day the average was 244 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MS. HORCAJO: --rounds per day.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a few. I don't need the whole thing. I just
want some numbers to play with.
MS. HORCAJO: February was 248 a day and that's 18, and March was 234.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's a lot of rounds.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Of course, you know, where I'm going, Zach. I
want that, I want that cart money.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman Just one
clarification on the addition of the military rate. It will be made clear to, I
guess, to anyone who wants to golf as far as what type of military
experience they had. Are we looking at just providing for active duty, or
retired military, or someone who served in the military briefly? Because,
for example, we have four Members on the Council who had the
experience in the military. Like if Mr. Nishiki wanted to go and golf, and
he just said he served four years in the military, does that qualify him or

- 216 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
April 14, 2009

does he have to be certified retired military and have the old ID card and
what not? Can I get a clarification on that, Madam Director?
MS. HORCAJO: Councilmember Nishiki, do you have your military card? We
will be requiring a military card.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So for active duty and retired military.
MS. HORCAJO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that's all for the Parks
Department in regards to Fees, Rate, Fees and Rates. That concludes our
review regarding Rates and Fees. You guys have any more rates and fees
that are going to be coming up?
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, these were the only three Departments we requested to
come. You may want to discuss with the Committee the new Bed and
Breakfast Fees that were submitted after the initial budget by the Budget
Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, fine. We'll take care of that tomorrow.
Members, the Chair's going to call it a night.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And we'll reconvene at nine o'clock. And, Members,
the Chair, Chair Mateo is going to go to Oahu because of that important
Bill 1744 and other issues that we have that he needs to go to the
Legislature. The Chair has a dental appointment at ten o'clock. So,
Members, tomorrow morning we'll go through the B&Bs from 9:00 to
10:00, and then we'll take a recess until two o'clock, and then we'll
reconvene at two o'clock tomorrow. We'll take care revenues. Yeah.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member, Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Oh, Chairman, just to share information with yourself
and the rest of the Members, House Bill 1744, House Draft/Senate Draft 1
passed third reading today with 19 aye votes and six noes, and several
with reservations, several of the ayes with reservations. So now the bill
goes back to the House. So it becomes more and more of a reality for, for
us. So there is no good news at this time and hopefully tomorrow I'll be
able to fmd out or get a little more information on, I guess, how it's being
positioned. So I just wanted to share that information.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'm interested in the effective date. Is it
July 1, 2009 or July 1, 2010? And that's going to determine what we do
here the rest of, the rest of April. So with that, Members...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'? Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, I'm sorry. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know we're all dying to get out of here, but I
want to be really clear before we go home tonight because the, the
eleventh hour is approaching rapidly. I know that we have received
couple of memos and some verbal instructions in regard to the proposals
that the Members can submit and, you know, we've been busy here day
and night so it's been very difficult to fmd time to sit down and make
calculations. Also, we changed from including the TNT [sic] to not
including the TNT [sic], so that's making it even, not TNT [sic], but TAT,
I'm sorry, I keep saying TNT because the business I come from that was
the acronym.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, it's like a bomb.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, right. Whatever it is. You know that bad
thing that's going around here, that bad germ. Anyway, I want to be clear
about when exactly that paper has to be given to you because I think all of
us want to submit something, but we want to be sure we, we know exactly
when and when can we work on it because, you know, time is very scarce
right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I understand. And the Chair had requested the
Members to provide their proposals after the Council Meetin g April the
17 th so the Chair will have some opportunity on the 18 th to compile
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everyone's proposal into one proposal. And starting on Monday, the 20 th ,
you know, we'll go into decision making in regards to the proposals that
we all submit, and I'll compile that and, you know, I'll come to a proposal
from the Chair to the Council Members. And the reason why for both is
that should we not receive the $18 million in regards to the TAT, if it
should be taken away from us on July 1, 2009, and that's, you know, a
reality, then what do we do? So that's the first proposal. How do we trim
our budget by that amount or how do we increase revenues to meet that
amount. And the...well, the second proposal with the, you know, with the
TAT would be, again, I know some Members had some issues in regards
to some, some of the non-profits here on Maui, then how do you fund it or
what do you take off, yeah, in regards to that second proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Maybe I can be more specific then. Okay,
tomorrow we have a break because we're taking a break in the middle of
the day, so that, we found some time there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Your intent is to go late tomorrow too?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, we will review the revenues -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and, and that's all we have, I have on the agenda
tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, and then on Thursday?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Thursday we get the Real Property Tax certification
and that probably will go only through the morning.
MS. REVELS: Mr. Chair, the Real Property Tax certification is scheduled to
arrive in the afternoon.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On Thursday. So you may have a lot of time in the
morning. In fact, the whole morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, because I'm looking for some time to work
on this, and we just haven't had any, and I'm feeling kind of pressured.
And, you know, this is an important thing because if we don't submit our
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stuff, then it won't get considered, initially, of course. I know its open
season right up until the second reading but, you know, the sooner the
better. So just trying to get a feel for the rest of the week.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you got some time tomorrow morning until two
o'clock in the afternoon, and then on Thursday probably the whole
morning, and then on Friday whatever time prior to the meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Prior the meeting?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Prior to, after the Council Meeting and prior to the
Budget and Finance Committee reconvening on Friday to accept all of the
proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that second meeting is only to accept the
proposal?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, that got to be an open meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that time is flexible or has it been set?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: What do you mean flexible?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: For the, for the reconvening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: See, we'll set a time. I don't know how much items
that's going to be happening on Friday. If I say two o'clock, hopefully we
can get done with the Council meeting at two o'clock or prior to two
o'clock maybe like say noon, but, you know, we've been running about
noon, one o'clock. So we need some time to take our lunch and then, and
then reconvene on the Budget and Finance Committee Meeting. I, I need
to take a look at the Council agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, just trying to get an idea because, you
know, this is a really important thing for us to do.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, especially with the news that we got from...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right. You know, especially this year. This is
really tough knowing that we've got to look for $18 million. Thank you
very much, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, and, and, you know, again look for $18 million,
look at some revenue generation too. So, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we'll meet again tomorrow morning at nine o'clock.
So this meeting is adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
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